Town of Reading
Meeting Posting with Agenda

Board - Committee - Commission - Council:

Select Board

Date: 2022-03-01 Time: 7:00 PM

Building: Reading Town Hall Location: Select Board Meeting Room
Address: 16 Lowell Street Agenda:

Purpose: General Business

Meeting Called By: Jacquelyn LaVerde on behalf of Chair Karen Herrick

Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meetings excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays. Please keep in mind the Town Clerk’s hours of
operation and make necessary arrangements to be sure your posting is made in an
adequate amount of time. A listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be
discussed at the meeting must be on the agenda.

All Meeting Postings must be submitted in typed format; handwritten notices will not be accepted.

Topics of Discussion:

This Meeting will be held in-person in the Select Board
Meeting Room at Town Hall and remotely on Zoom. It will
also be streamed live on RCTV as usual.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://usObweb.zoom.us/|/83411487000

Meeting ID: 834 1148 7000

One tap mobile
+16465189805,,83411487000# US (New York)
+16465588656,,83411487000# US (New York)

Dial by your location
+1 646 518 9805 US (New York)
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 834 1148 7000
Find your local number: hitps://us06web zoom us/u/kdcP1550ih

7:00 | Overview of Meeting

7:05 SB Liaison & Town Manager Reports

7:15 Public Comment

Consent Agenda:
e Vote to dissolve the Ad Hoc Town Manager
7:30 Screening committee
e Approve Deborah Drive Driveway Request 9

e Vote to extend sunset date for Parking Advisory

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed
at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 1

Page | 1




Town of Reading
Meeting Posting with Agenda

& Recommendations Committee (PARC) to

April 30, 2022
7:45 | Water Sewer Capital Projects Overview 25
8:00 | Approve Longhorn Change of Officer 38
8:05 Discuss/Approve Temporary Lights at Coolidge 84
8:15 | Vote to Close Warrant for Annual Town Meeting 98
8:30 Discuss Town Charter Section 5.1: Town Manager
) termination pay
8:45 Discuss Future Agendas
Approve Meeting Minutes:
e February 1, 2022 127
e February 15, 2022 134
Executive Session:
9:00 Purpose 3: Discuss litigation strategy with respect to

Toussaint v. Reading

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed

at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting.

Page | 2

2




Office of the Town Manager 781-942-9043

16 Lowell Street townmanager@ci.reading.ma.us
Reading, MA 01867 www.readingma.gov/town-manager
To: Select Board

From: Fidel A. Maltez
Date: February 24,2022
RE: Town Manager Memo for March 1%, 2022 meeting

This memo is submitted with enthusiasm and optimism as | officially start my tenure as Reading’s 3™ Town
Manager. | would like to emphasize how much of an amazing leader Bob LeLacheur has been for the Town
of Reading over the last 25 years. Bob has been an incredible mentor during this important transition — |
will be forever grateful for his guidance and words of wisdom. | hope to build on his legacy and continue
making Reading a great place to live for all residents.

The most exciting news to share is that our Town Moderator, in coordination with our incredible staff, has
confirmed that Town Meeting for April 2022 will be in person. Town Meeting will be at the Performance
Arts Center at Reading Memorial High School. Our staff is working very hard to provide a safe and
comfortable environment to Town Meeting members. | am confident that Town Meeting will go smoothly
this April.

In preparation for Town Meeting, Bob has graciously completed the Warrant and the Fiscal Year 2023
Town Manager’s recommended budget. The Town Warrant is part of this meeting’s packet. The Town
Manager’s recommended budget will be reviewed in March by the Finance Committee. Given Bob’s
incredible finance expertise, | am confident that this will be a strong budget for our community.

In this week’s packet, we have included the recommended Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for your
reference. At this meeting, Ryan Percival, our Town Engineer, will be providing a thorough overview of
the upcoming large water & sewer projects in our community.

Finally, | would like to thank the staff members, community leaders and local business owners who have
welcomed me over these last few weeks. | have met many incredible residents and volunteers for coffee
and lunch, and look forward to continuing this during my first 90 days and into the future. | look forward
to developing strong and supportive relationships in our community.

FAM



7 7 SJ913A Sunyied BUUSMDIA BUIR|F|2202/vT/T
2¢/€7/T 8ulesH UoI1eAISSUO) - UswIedy AJ0SSs20Y aAlIQ Yesogaq v§ (pMd Jodo0) BIpUS) |Z20T/£T/T
jutejdwo) me7 Sunasiy usdo 8y [I°9ANL e | Z202/T2/C
1s9nbay Ja19|A Bunjied uewuo] eull|zzoe/12/c
SJ919IN Bubjied MaN AuessH Ayiey |zz0z/61/¢
sak SSAlleUIR|E |BUY | 2T20T/€T/C euuar/|apl4| pJeog 399195 Aq 910\ PJL0JRI0IS XV 8|3eUODIW BI[S87|Z20T/LT/T
01 1UspISaY YUM 13N
Jue7 uJioques pue ‘sjooyds sa1noy ajes ‘1sanbay epusdy gs 3lzuayde 32nJg|220Z/ST/T
8uneaH SOg 7¢/ST/T 104 suswwo) ouueuog 3dIN |220Z/v1/¢
193435 VIR 651 Jaulwe) qog|zz0e/11/T
Mo|aq Suieaw IST Yaiel\ 10} ajepdn pieog
pasop sauawiwio) dn moj|oJ 91eq épaiinbay jodsay gS Jido] J9pua§| PoIAIaddY 93eq
wmconmwm_ wmconmwm_ jjers




2022 DRAFT - SELECT BOARD AGENDAS 2022
Staff Estimated
2/24/2022 Responsibility | start time
e Meeeweee: 0 . . @ W
Overview of Meeting Herrick 7:00
SB Liaison & Town Manager Reports Board 7:05
Public Comment Board 7:15
Vote to dissolve the Ad Hoc Town Manager
Consent Agenda [Screening committee Landry 7:30
Consent Agenda |Approve Deborah Drive Driveway Request Percival
Vote to extend sunset date for Parking Advisory
& Recommendations Committee (PARC) to
Consent Agenda |April 30, 2022 Board
Water Sewer Capital Projects Overview Percival 7:45
Public Hearing  [Approve Longhorn Change of Officer Maltez 8:00
Recreation
Discuss/Approve Temporary Lights at Coolidge |Committee 8:05
Vote to Close Warrant for Annual Town Board/Town
Meeting Counsel 8:15
Discuss Town Charter Section 5.1: Town Board/Town
Manager termination pay Counsel 8:30
Discuss Future Agendas Board 8:45
Approve Meeting Minutes Board
Executive Session Purpose 3: Discuss
litigation strategy with respect to Toussaint |Board/Town
Executive Session |v. Reading Counsel 9:00
March 2, 2022 FINCOM Budget Meeting (School Budget) Wednesday
March 9, 2022 FINCOM Budget Meeting (Town Budget) Wednesday
March 16, 2022  |FINCOM Budget Meeting (Warrant Articles) Wednesday

March 22,2022

Overview of Meeting Herrick 7:00
SB Liaison & Town Manager Reports Board 7:05
Public Comment Board 7:15
Approve Transfer of Liquor License - 530 Main
Public Hearing  [Street Maltez 7:30
Kraunelis &
Update on New Town Website Wellman
Discuss email policy for Volunteer
Board/Committee Members Kraunelis
Update on MBTA Communities Guidance Mercier
Report from PARC PARC
Discuss needs/priorities for land use Board
Discuss Future Agendas Board
Approve Meeting Minutes Board
March 23, 2022 |FINCOM Budget Meeting (Votes) Wednesday

April 5, 2022 Local Elections (Tuesday | |



2022 DRAFT - SELECT BOARD AGENDAS 2022

Staff Estimated
2/24/2022 Responsibility | start time
wapee £ . s !
Maltez, then
Select Board Vote to Reorganize New Chair 7:00
Town Board & Committee visits
Town Department visits
Liaison member visits
April 25, 2022 Annual Town Meeting 1 Monday
April 28, 2022 Annual Town Meeting 11 Thursday
May 2, 2022 Annual Town Meeting 111 Monday
o 5 . ey
May 5, 2022 Annual Town Meeting IV Thursday
Mopveon 0 ... .. @ ey
Discuss/Vote on FY23 Non-Union Classification
HEARING & Compensation Schedules Maltez
Vote to Approve Town Personnel Policy and SB
Policies: Article 6 Personnel Related Policies (if
HEARING ready) Donahue
Discuss/Vote on Regional Affordable Housing
Inter Municipal Agreement Mercier
Discuss and Plan Juneteenth Holiday Board

| [VASCmeetings TBA e
I I B
May 31,2022 Maesd. [
I I
e

I

I
June 14,2021

I
.0 . 22 s [
! 1 1
;e ... . 2 s !
! 1 1
wowews ¢ @ Wds .
! |
swoesr . > = s '
- 1 |
September 6, 2022 [State Primary Election (Tuesday /| =]
1

I

owowwec 2y B Tl |
- | |
ooy . s ]

Vote to Close Subsequent Town Meeting
Warrant




2022 DRAFT - SELECT BOARD AGENDAS 2022

Staff Estimated
2/24/2022 Responsibility | start time
g e L. W |

- T T
e EIE T

Santaniello &
Board of
HEARING Tax Classification Assessors

November 8, 2022 |State Election Tuesday

November 14, 2022 |Subsequent Town Meeting 1 Monday

November 15, 2022 Tuesday

November 17, 2022 (Subsequent Town Meeting II Thursday
November 21, 2022 (Subsequent Town Meeting II1 Monday

November22,2022 || =~ =~~~ =~ =~ =~~~ [Tuesday

November 28, 2022 |Subsequent Town Meeting IV Monday

December 6, 2022 Tuesday
Vote to Approve Licenses (delegated to Town

Manager's Office)
Vote to Approve Liquor Licenses

December 7, 2002 Wednesday
Town Department FY24 budgets

December 13, 2022 Tuesday
Town Department FY24 budgets

December 14,2022 | =~ [Wednesday

Town Department FY24 budgets (if needed)

Future Meetings - Agenda Items

Discuss Symonds Way property Board
Discuss Early Sunday Hours at Recreational
Fields & Parks Rec Comm

Discuss/Vote to adopt Birch Meadow Master
Plan (discuss with Town Counsel in advance) |Rec Comm

Landry/
Public Safety Quarterly updates Dockser
Air BnB update CPDC
Update on 186 Summer Ave / Review of Select
Board role (consult with Town Counsel) Town Counsel

Vote to Approve Resolution Clarifying Official
Town Website Haley/Bacci




2022 DRAFT - SELECT BOARD AGENDAS 2022
Staff Estimated
2/24/2022 Responsibility | start time
Landry/
Public Safety Badge Pinning Ceremony Dockser
Discuss Police Department Policies with respect
to Police Reform Legislation & Department Landry/
Accreditation Dockser
Discuss and Approve Flag Policy Board
Discuss Tree Lawn Pesticide Policy BOH
Recurring Agenda Items
Close Warrant: Annual Town Meeting March 3/1/2022
Close Warrant: Subsequent Town Meeting September 9/27/2022
Appoint Town Accountant March Annual
HEARING Approve Classification & Compensation May Annual
Appointments of Boards & Committees May/June Annual
HEARING Approve Tax Classification October Annual
HEARING Approve Licenses December Annual
Liaison: RCTV members Report Annual
Liaison: CAB (RMLD) member Report Annual
Liaison: MAPC member Report Annual
Liaison: Reading Housing Authority Report Annual
Liaison: Reading Ice Arena Report Annual
Town Accountant Report Qtrly
Economic Development Director Semi-ann

Parking/Traffic/Transportation Task Force

Town Board & Committee visits

Town Department visits

Review Select Board Goals

Review Town Manager Goals




Town of Reading

Engineering Division

Memo

To: Select Board
Fidel Maltez, Town Manager

Robert W. LeLacheur, Jr., Town Manager
From: Ryan Percival, P.E., Town Engineer

Date: February 16, 2022
Re: 34 Deborah Drive

An appeal request was made to the Parking Traffic Transportation Task Force (PTTTF) on
January 26, 2022, regarding a proposed second driveway curb cut located at 34 Deborah Drive.

On January 11, 2022 the Engineering Division denied the application for a second
driveway. The submitted plan revealed that the distance between the existing driveway and the
proposed was less than the minimum 125 foot separation, as set forth in the Driveway
Regulations. The applicant is requesting a variance from the Board to allow for two driveways
less than 125 feet apart.

PTTTF reviewed and discussed the request and determined that there was no concern in
regards to public safety or traffic on the roadway to prohibit the driveway. The second driveway
would allow for handicap access to a proposed addition that the current driveway does not
provide. Its important to note the addition is being constructed for the purposes of the care of
aging and disabled parents.



PLOT PLAN OF LAND | ASSESSOR INFORMATION: LEGEND.
MAP 38 LOT 97
#34 DEBORAH DR/ VE DEED REFERENCE: 8A O~ = WETLAND FLAG
READING, MA 0O186 77 |BOOK: 67769 PAGE: 239 BVW = BORDERING VEGETATED WETLAND
PREPARED BY: /N a5 = EX. SPOT GRADE
SULLIVAN ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC (TBR) = TO BE REMOVED
P.O BOX 2004
WOBURN, MA 01888 % BUILDING COVERAGE:
(781) 854—8644 s D 2,448 SF OR 6.5%
” ) 250 Oy
DATE: 1/5/22 SCALE: 1"=20 %556
~ ~ S‘Z\
~
~
2% -
) ?6 ~ /
/"]/ / 3 f
G
9)(9 /\.Q) e ~
$Q S ?§ IMPERVIOUS AREAS:
Q EX SHEDS: 200 S.F. ﬁ
N é&“ EX HOUSE: 1,544 S.F.
o .
A /{\&\e EX. DRIVEWAY: 1,228 S.F. |
P N/ Q EX. WALK: 214 S.F.
s/ "
60 QO A PROP. ADDITION: 702 S.F. |
RZ5)
9 / i PROP. 2ND DRIVEWAY: 600 S.F.
e
p; & LOT AREA PROP. WALKWAY: 40 SF. l
/ 37,321 S.F.+
< o TOTAL: 4,528 S.F (12.1%)
Note: Wetland Delineation performed by
Norse Environmental Services on 9/27/21 I
G .
Al 7A
G I
- 6A
N il
5 I
8A
0
S 85
S
9A =
e 10A
AN
3 < N /\ .
/
2A :
‘ EX. PLAYAREA
\ \ W/ TIMBER i —
EDGING —
SURROUNDING | _ -
\ 44’ (TBR) .
b ~
- ~ -
5 BYW BUFFER \ EATE) \ :
N0 DISTURB ‘ -
* gvw BUFFER VT < ; :
20 STRUCTURE \ g 7.0 -
. op. SPUT ~ EX. 1 STORY (SPLIT LEVEL) i
@ \wm 5 § Sy - WOOD FRAME STRUCTURE J o
2\% % ADDITION 1 car ] ‘I
2 0‘-\ \ FFE=95.5' [ FFE=100.0' GGASR' y i £x o
A P K - or. Slab ", HED,
=\, 27.0 Y < o .~ Elev=953" L 58
m \ rP e 5 3 | 1K} N d
0 N o
20 )(/ chehang ‘; Ex. Bumpout I s
9438\ Prop. 4' Wide” ~ DEeF 5 Ex..Bit: sk 7
Paver Walkway = Walkway | Cone,
= N Driveway.
2 - .
\ % / S~ 7/\
Nsgg 4~ ! / | T~
\ =
 —— =] )
100° BVWZ o : r;
BUFFER |z \1
875 \/ @
ZONING INFORMATION: o
ZONING DISTRICT: S—20 * 2
* AQUIFER PROTECTION DISTRICT r)sz
OWNER INFORMATION: p
PATRICK & VANESSA SILVA -
34 DEBORAH DRIVE
READING, MA 01867

-




Subcat

Reach

1P

Raingarden

Drainage Diagram for 34 Deborah
Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC 2/23/2022
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems




34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 2 Year Storm Rainfall=3.20"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 2
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Time span=5.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 381 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS
Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method - Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Subcatchment 1S_P: Runoff Area=576 sf Runoff Depth=2.91"
Tc=6.0 min CN=98 Runoff=0.04 cfs 0.003 af

Pond 1P: Raingarden Peak Elev=93.61" Storage=26 cf Inflow=0.04 cfs 0.003 af
Discarded=0.01 cfs 0.003 af Primary=0.00 cfs 0.000 af Outflow=0.01 cfs 0.003 af

Total Runoff Area = 0.013 ac Runoff Volume = 0.003 af Average Runoff Depth = 2.91"



34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 2 Year Storm Rainfall=3.20"
Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 3
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Subcatchment 1S_P:

Runoff = 004 cfs @ 12.09 hrs, Volume= 0.003 af, Depth= 2.91"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Time Span= 5.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type lll 24-hr 2 Year Storm Rainfall=3.20"

Area (sf) CN Description
576 98 Driveway

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft)  (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry,

Subcatchment 1S_P:

Hydrograph
0.044 [ &1 Runoff]
0.042 : 1 0.04 cfs | (S 2ot
oo e ; ~Type HI 24-hr 2 Year Storm
o:osei ) : Rainfall=3.20"
0030 REREEN S ‘ " Runoff Area=576 sf
ot R V ~ Runoff Volume=0.003 af
5 0025 | . Runoff Depth=2.91"
S 0024 @ Tc=6.0 mi
3 0022 ﬁ c=ob.umin
2 0024 R A . ; : : ; ; -
0.0184 S R SO B ﬁﬁ/ i ‘ V ‘ V CN—98
0.0164 |
0.014}; ?j
oo01- - o
0.008: %
0.006 : , "
0.0044
0.0024
0 T 1

5 6 7 8 9 10 M 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Time (hours)



34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 2 Year Storm Rainfall=3.20"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 4
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Pond 1P: Raingarden

Inflow Area = 0.013 ac, Inflow Depth = 2.91" for 2 Year Storm event

Inflow = 004 cfs @ 12.09 hrs, Volume= 0.003 af

Outflow = 001cfs @ 12.42 hrs, Volume= 0.003 af, Atten=71%, Lag= 19.8 min
Discarded = 001cfs @ 12.42 hrs, Volume= 0.003 af

Primary = 000cfs@ 5.00 hrs, Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Peak Elev=93.61' @ 12.42 hrs Surf.Area= 211 sf Storage= 26 cf
Plug-Flow detention time= 13.0 min calculated for 0.003 af (100% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 12.4 min ( 778.2 - 765.8 )

# Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
1 93.50' 282 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic)Listed below
Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)
93.50 192 0 0
94.00 278 118 118
94.50 378 164 282
# Routing Invert Outlet Devices
1 Discarded 0.00" 0.003300 fpm Exfiltration over entire Surface area
2 Primary 94.25" 4.5'long x 3.0' breadth Broad-Crested Rectangular Weir

Head (feet) 0.20 0.40 0.60 0.80 1.00 1.20 1.40 1.60 1.80 2.00 2.50
3.00 3.50 4.00 4.50

Coef. (English) 2.44 2.58 2.68 2.67 2.65 2.64 2.64 2.68 2.68 2.72
2.81 2.92 297 3.07 3.32

Discarded OutFlow Max=0.01 cfs @ 12.42 hrs HW=93.61" (Free Discharge)
1=Exfiltration (Exfiltration Controls 0.01 cfs)

Primary OutFlow Max=0.00 cfs @ 5.00 hrs HW=93.50" (Free Discharge)
T 2-Broad-Crested Rectangular Weir ( Controls 0.00 cfs)



34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 2 Year Storm Rainfall=3.20"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 5
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Pond 1P: Raingarden
Hydrograph

| 5 Qufow

‘ Inflow Area=0.013 ac | |Saimary
L ~ Peak Elev=93.61'
00361 Storage=26 cf

Flow {cfs)

0:016“5 oy 0.01 cfs

0.008] /;@WVVX / / /WFWM// T

0.00 cfs |

0 y 1) L) 1) 1) T T T T T

5 6 7 8 g 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Time (hours)




34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 10 Year Storm Rainfall=4.90"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 6
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Time span=5.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 381 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS
Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method - Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Subcatchment 1S_P: Runoff Area=576 sf Runoff Depth=4.54"
Tc=6.0 min CN=98 Runoff=0.06 cfs 0.005 af

Pond 1P: Raingarden Peak Elev=93.73' Storage=55 cf Inflow=0.06 cfs 0.005 af
Discarded=0.01 cfs 0.005 af Primary=0.00 cfs 0.000 af Outflow=0.01 cfs 0.005 af

Total Runoff Area = 0.013 ac Runoff Volume = 0.005 af Average Runoff Depth = 4.54"



34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 10 Year Storm Rainfall=4.90"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 7
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Subcatchment 1S_P:

Runoff = 006cfs @ 12.09 hrs, Volume= 0.005 af, Depth= 4.54"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Time Span= 5.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type lll 24-hr 10 Year Storm Rainfall=4.90"

Area (sf) CN Description
576 98 Driveway

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft)  (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry,

Subcatchment 1S_P:

Hydrograph
0.085- ! ! IMI
0.06- ' ' Type lll 24-hr 10 Year Storm
0055 Rainfall=4.90"
0,05 | Runoff Area=576 sf
0045- Runoff Volume=0.005 af
— ood] f Runoff Depth=4.54"
g o02s] Tc=6.0 min
£ 003 CN=98

0.025-
0.02]
0.015-

0.01]

0.005-

5 6 7 8 9 10 M 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Time (hours)



34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 10 Year Storm Rainfall=4.90"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 8
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Pond 1P: Raingarden

Inflow Area = 0.013 ac, Inflow Depth = 4.54" for 10 Year Storm event

Inflow = 006cfs @ 12.09 hrs, Volume= 0.005 af

Outflow = 001cfs @ 12.51 hrs, Volume= 0.005 af, Atten=79%, Lag= 25.2 min
Discarded = 001cfs @ 12.51 hrs, Volume= 0.005 af

Primary = 000cfs@ 5.00 hrs, Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Peak Elev=93.73' @ 12.51 hrs Surf.Area= 232 sf Storage= 55 cf
Plug-Flow detention time= 25.7 min calculated for 0.005 af (100% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 25.0 min ( 787.3 - 762.2 )

# Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
1 93.50' 282 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic)Listed below
Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)
93.50 192 0 0
94.00 278 118 118
94.50 378 164 282
# Routing Invert Outlet Devices
1 Discarded 0.00" 0.003300 fpm Exfiltration over entire Surface area
2 Primary 94.25" 4.5'long x 3.0' breadth Broad-Crested Rectangular Weir

Head (feet) 0.20 0.40 0.60 0.80 1.00 1.20 1.40 1.60 1.80 2.00 2.50
3.00 3.50 4.00 4.50

Coef. (English) 2.44 2.58 2.68 2.67 2.65 2.64 2.64 2.68 2.68 2.72
2.81 2.92 297 3.07 3.32

Discarded OutFlow Max=0.01 cfs @ 12.51 hrs HW=93.73" (Free Discharge)
1=Exfiltration (Exfiltration Controls 0.01 cfs)

Primary OutFlow Max=0.00 cfs @ 5.00 hrs HW=93.50" (Free Discharge)
T 2-Broad-Crested Rectangular Weir ( Controls 0.00 cfs)



Type Il 24-hr 10 Year Storm Rainfall=4.90"

34 Deborah
Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 9
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022
Pond 1P: Raingarden
Hydrograph
[0.06 cfs | Suinow
| Inflow Area=0.013 ac Discarded
Peak Elev=93.73'
Storage=55 cf
3 L

0.0
0.00 cfs

AT
il k““W

o
| ‘,wn‘!{\\\w\\\,mu}“w‘{mmM‘

4

Ly

17

0
5

) ) T
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Time (hours)



34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 100 Year Storm Rainfall=8.90"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 10
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Time span=5.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 381 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS
Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method - Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Subcatchment 1S_P: Runoff Area=576 sf Runoff Depth=8.35"
Tc=6.0 min CN=98 Runoff=0.11 cfs 0.009 af

Pond 1P: Raingarden Peak Elev=94.03' Storage=128 cf Inflow=0.11 cfs 0.009 af
Discarded=0.02 cfs 0.009 af Primary=0.00 cfs 0.000 af Outflow=0.02 cfs 0.009 af

Total Runoff Area = 0.013 ac Runoff Volume = 0.009 af Average Runoff Depth = 8.35"

20



34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 100 Year Storm Rainfall=8.90"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 11
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Subcatchment 1S_P:

Runoff = 011cfs @ 12.09 hrs, Volume= 0.009 af, Depth= 8.35"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Time Span= 5.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type Il 24-hr 100 Year Storm Rainfall=8.90"

Area (sf) CN Description
576 98 Driveway

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft)  (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry,

Subcatchment 1S_P:

Hydrograph

Type 1l 24-hr 100 Year Storm

| | Rainfall=8.90"

| Runoff Area=576 sf
| Runoff Volume=0.009 af
F Runoff Depth=8.35"
% Tc=6.0 min
l | | | CN=98

6 7 8 9 10 M 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Time (hours)

21



34 Deborah Type Il 24-hr 100 Year Storm Rainfall=8.90"

Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 12
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022

Pond 1P: Raingarden

Inflow Area = 0.013 ac, Inflow Depth = 8.35" for 100 Year Storm event

Inflow = 011cfs @ 12.09 hrs, Volume= 0.009 af

Outflow = 0.02cfs @ 12.60 hrs, Volume= 0.009 af, Atten=86%, Lag= 31.1 min
Discarded = 0.02cfs @ 12.60 hrs, Volume= 0.009 af

Primary = 000cfs@ 5.00 hrs, Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Peak Elev=94.03' @ 12.60 hrs Surf.Area= 284 sf Storage= 128 cf
Plug-Flow detention time= 58.4 min calculated for 0.009 af (100% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 57.7 min ( 817.3 - 759.5 )

# Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
1 93.50' 282 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic)Listed below
Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)
93.50 192 0 0
94.00 278 118 118
94.50 378 164 282
# Routing Invert Outlet Devices
1 Discarded 0.00" 0.003300 fpm Exfiltration over entire Surface area
2 Primary 94.25" 4.5'long x 3.0' breadth Broad-Crested Rectangular Weir

Head (feet) 0.20 0.40 0.60 0.80 1.00 1.20 1.40 1.60 1.80 2.00 2.50
3.00 3.50 4.00 4.50

Coef. (English) 2.44 2.58 2.68 2.67 2.65 2.64 2.64 2.68 2.68 2.72
2.81 2.92 297 3.07 3.32

Discarded OutFlow Max=0.02 cfs @ 12.60 hrs HW=94.03" (Free Discharge)
1=Exfiltration (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Primary OutFlow Max=0.00 cfs @ 5.00 hrs HW=93.50" (Free Discharge)
T 2-Broad-Crested Rectangular Weir ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

22



Type Il 24-hr 100 Year Storm Rainfall=8.90"

34 Deborah
Prepared by Sullivan Engineering Group, LLC Page 13
HydroCAD® 7.00 s/n 001433 © 1986-2003 Applied Microcomputer Systems 2/23/2022
Pond 1P: Raingarden
Hydrograph
[ 011 cfs | | Sutfow
' Inflow Area=0.013 ac | |Grmay "
0.12-
“ Peak Elev=94.03'
Storage=128 cf
F &
0.03“‘;
o.ozw}}: W@& / .
0.00 cfs ol
5 6 0 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

Time (hours)

23



PLOT PLAN OF LAND | ASSESsorR INFORMATION: PROP. BIORETENTION PLANTINGS:

MAP 38 LOT 97 € = PROP. LOWBUSH BLUEBERRY (VACCINIUM ANGUSTIFOLIUM) — 4
#34 DEBORAH DRIVE | peep rererence:
READ/NG MA O7 86 7 BOOK: 67769 PAGE- 239 #E = PROP. SUMMERSWEET (CLETHRA ALNIFOLIA) — 1
PREPARED B;" N 4F = PROP. SPICEBUSH (LINDERA BENZOIN) — 3
SULLIVAN ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC ZONING INFORMATION:
PO BOX 2004 ZONING DISTRICT: S=20 *
WOBURN, MA 01888 * AQUIFER PROTECTION DISTRICT
(787) 854—8644 > OWNER INFORMATION:

2 /

) . qr_on 90 O PATRICK & VANESSA SILVA
DATE: 1/5/22 SCALE: 1"=20 N o0, L DEBORAr DRIVE
REVISED: 2/22 2% ~ % READING, MA 01867

qi(v ?‘(ﬂ - \./_
| LE <
J S/ ~
'S A ?\é IMPERVIOUS AREAS:
I SRR & ]
ST O EX SHEDS: 200 S.F.
it "
N S EX HOUSE: 1,544 SF.
)
/ //o\eﬁ EX. DRIVEWAY: 1,228 S.F. |
o 1 3
y w'L(V / /QO\ EX. WALK: 214 SF.
060‘5 $ ® PROP. ADDITION: 702 S.F. |
P / & PROP. 2ND DRIVEWAY: 600 S.F.
: o ‘ m LOT AREA PROP. WALKWAY: 40 SF. l
/ () e 37,321 SF.+
Note: Wetland Delineation performed by TOTAL: 4,528 SF (12.1%)
Norse Environmental Services on 9/27/21 I
N\ e

>
2 d\ \ N
w \OL
S Y6
-\,  Prop. \Relocation
M of ex. \shed
. R\ — '
5 pvw BUFFER \ X
2 »NO DISTURB
+ pvw BUFFER F—=—=

"NO STRUCTURE

\
Prop. 12" Dia. \
Stoked Mulch \
Soxx (Typ)

Prop. Crushed Stone
Spillway 3’ x 4.5°
w/ depth of 8"

Set Spillway ot
Flev=94.25

Prop. Bioretention cell
planted with native
wildflower seed mix.

Prop. 4" Wide
Paver Walkway \ Prop.
\ Stone
% BUILDING COVERAGE: L\
oe
2,446 SF OR 6.5% ; \ \
00’ BVW '
. 1 —_—
LEGEND: BUFFER ZONE \
84 O = WETLAND FLAG o7
[}
BVW = BORDERING VEGETATED WEJLAND
93y = EX. SPOT GRADE \\
(TBR) = TO BE REMOVED \
(e5¢3) = PROP. SPOT GRADE \
—@5)— = PROP. CONTOUR Prop , Zoran
RD = PROP. ROOF DRAIN meet DPW stand

ally

EX. PLAYAREA
w/ TIMBER

EDGING
SURROUNDING
(TBR)

EX. 1 STORY (SPLIT LEVEL) !
1
o ,PROP. SPUT WOOD FRAME STRUCTURE
© 7 LEVEL LProp 2' Wide x ’
N ’ :
ADDITION 2’ Deep River 1 CAR .- ||
FFE=95.5 " Rock Drip Trench GAR. i e
=95, A s
Gar. Slab | H,
270 /L. 1, D
P r 5 \20.
Prop. 27 : Ex. Bumpout : >u‘m:a
Overhang & Ex. Bit. | 1457
/ F Cone, /’
/ = . - Driveway. /
2'x2" ~ J
?priader’ Prop. Trench Drain by /K .
Shea Conc. or equal / I \\
Grate=95.33 / N e

Inv. Qut=94.0 (6"HDPE)

Prop. Driveway Area to
be constructed as a

temporary construction
entrance with rip—rap
stone.

]

P

to
ords

-




Town of Reading

Engineering Division

Memo

To: Select Board

Fidel Maltez, Town Manager
From: Ryan Percival, P.E., Town Engineer

Date: February 22, 2022

Re: Water and Sewer Improvements Update

The intent of this memo is to provide an update on the upcoming Town-wide water and
sewer improvements, as listed below:

Project Status Cost

Sturges Sewer Pump Station

Replacement Awarded, Construction 2022 S 2,250,000.00

Downtown Water Main

Improvements Design Final/ Awaiting Bid S 4,300,000.00

Downtown Sewer Main Design Final/ Bid Opening March 3,

Improvements 2022 S 1,000,000.00

Gazebo Circle Water Booster

Station Design Final/ Awaiting Bid S 1,100,000.00

Auburn Street Water Tank

Replacement Awarded, under Construction S 7,000,000.00

Emerson Street Water Main

Replacement Under Design S 400,000.00

Walkers Brook Drive Water Main

Replacement Planning S 400,000.00

Lead Removal Program Planning S 1,500,000.00

Sewer I/I Removal program Design Final/ Awaiting Bid S 1,040,000.00
Total $ 18,990,000.00

The water and sewer improvements were based off the sewer station capital plan,
water and sewer capital plan, and any urgent needs that arise during the year.

25



Sewer Station Improvements

In 2010, The Town hired a consultant to assess the condition of and recommend repairs
and improvements to the Town’s 12 wastewater pump stations. From that assessment a multi-
year capital plan was developed. Sturges Park pump station was identified as the fourth station
for replacement. The failing station handles a large area of town and is being upgraded to
variable frequency drive (VFD) pumps. The project has been designed, awarded and is awaiting
the start of construction.

Water and Sewer Distribution Improvements

In 2019, the Town of Reading hired consultants to update both the water and sewer
master plans and hydraulic models, which was spurred by the recent economic development in
the Downtown area. The analysis focused on whether the Town had adequate capacity to
support the planned economic developments and identified any improvements necessary to
meet the needs of the proposed development.

It was determined that areas of the water system in the Downtown area showed lower
than desired fire flows. Proposed water improvements seek to drastically improve flow rates in
the Downtown area. The sewer system in the Downtown area had ample capacity, however
when modeled during very large rain events that capacity decreased. The proposed sewer
improvements in the Downtown area will address issues as they relate to inflow and infiltration.

Additionally, the water model, along with anecdotal evidence, presented a need for a
water booster station off of Hopkins Street. The water booster station will improve low
pressures and flow to the surrounding area as well as address inadequate fire flows to the
residences in Gazebo Circle area.

The above projects are currently under design and are soon to be bid. Construction is
anticipated this summer.

The Auburn Street water tank replacement project is underway. Soils have been
sampled and removed to clear an area for the temporary cell tower. The tower is expected to
be erected within the next month. Dismantling of the existing tank will follow soon after the cell
equipment has been transferred. The overall completion date is anticipated to be April 2023.

Unplanned Improvements

The Town does an excellent job trying to anticipate and plan its capital improvements,
however circumstances arrive that do not follow that plan. Two such issues have recently come
to light, Emerson Street and Walkers Brook watermains.

Emerson Street over the past couple years has experienced discoloration as a result of
rust from the unlined main. The Town has performed uni-directional flushing in and around the

26



street with minimal improvement. As a result, the unlined cast iron water main on Emerson
needs to be replaced with a new cement lined ductile iron pipe.

Conversely, Walkers Brook Drive water main has experienced a number of water main
breaks this fall and winter that resulted in a catastrophic failure of the pipe. The Town had to
put out an emergency contract to replace the main so businesses and residents were not
without water. During the replacement it was determined that the water main was corroding
from the outside in, due to corrosive soils. The Town seeks to replace the remaining portions of
the water main on Walkers Brook Drive to prevent another failure.

Both projects are currently under planning and design.

27



K

WATER AND SEWER IMPROVEMENTS

.
Z
=3

£

£
7 S,
Y
2 vl
%

STURGES PARK
SEWER PUMP STATION

§

UNTRYSIDE
O o

gpEat Y

3
& " S
& o)
oMK ST P < 2 N
5
&% Ko &
SN @ <&
o WP AN (&)
9 CHERR R@ & oo FP
f X Wi
% ﬁgew‘ %‘%g SO
2 % INDIAN, GALIFORNIARD, X
W Z %
NG g "
E-E 2 3 RGINARD
’% bl 3, % 9
23 2 EE A
>
3 > S G
29 z
q 2
% 2
(% < > %fr
v o /\55 Y TARPINTER
5 5
olug 3 &
L
by I
ot BB 2 8
2 9 &
% s -
) i
@

S —_

BROOK ST

Y.

Legend

Sewer Improvements

GAZEBO CIRCLE
 WATER BOOSTER STATION

ES
2
£
WUAHLN ¢
& é/ g
3 s
o
Eg’ FARC 5
ADERS,
P, 9
LN,
SANBORN LN, = ¢
LYNN VKLq = &
SE way o4 g
o
5 % %%, N ¥
Y o g
3 RV z H
3 3 z
22 4
SHRY, & E 3 . % R’L”P/
el & & BIGRSON STREETl % 5
© P s 37
. v E) o Z
OMBENCE RO // £ 3 gz N
Wit g g £ z
- Z £ I
a / % % NELSON AVE &
2 P 2 K w
o z
3. 3 W
2 % % 3 F
: oz % &
oy < VETERaNS 5
OSeenway. B o Z Way F
2 2 Zz e, &
z z Z ENT, ©
z 2 1y DAY
g g Z o ‘\ea@ &e“\
R s 2 BRENTWOD e eRe S
‘” z B v £
. 3 z <& o
Uiy 4,8 ES oo
ol 3 «f
5 3
Z <
2 D% O 3 o®
IS 2 shRHL, 17 &
3 A ) Y B RusTe
i TIRERD, 9 = Lt B &, S
=z EX i COAM‘E,
z =
- =1
2 "0 z SEAQRE
z VANNORDEN 4. = 2 LAFAYEITERD z
e 2 © E z & N
ot E 2 z 5 o LT &
2 > CRES 2 o 2
z o <3 z ERLN
2 Sy g & & g are? o g
s & L og Corup, 3 N g 3 il
% ) H L WELARD RO 2 z P
2 z z Z g
* =0 EA, WA RD Z e
% c o2 ANETTE g oF runest: WG g oA & 9.
0 a B ] gz3 g 5 F ~ &
; e % 3 z5 T 2 BOSWEL A 3
% Ay % g 5 Forecd] % A ) z & o
B g 2 g T i T : M %igod
235 spuEm® 3 @ 8 3 = Z 93 @ 2
2% 2 R§ < 2 & = E
YRR Y WRESAE BREWNG TR H S %, %,
E % S El o & S, 2, 2
S g5 g E e,
T e F & & & 4 8
o £ ond 9 BAKERRD | &
SOV E 8
g K o "
& 08 2
%
" %,
7 &
SR, )
'
i ®
& <8
o
W
Tk e
2 € o
Sauessnt 7R Gp8
S %, IS 3 N
o & pRSCILLARD % 4 X 0903\
> e} & % sT
& % . o & EET . 5 95t
e ¥ & % 5 ORANGES
% b
% % 3 = <
2 N % %, 2 = 5
o} e B8l m Z 3 S
N % FET | %, > B £l 2 &
% L) R " 20 0 3% % P& &
) W & s 2 z g g5 &
g™l o B o ” % E o 4 &8 graw
8 2, Lo g 2. B A z &
MR g o % GeoNy Dehien 5 5
¥, ) B e i 2 e zz
e N i H *5% &
R o 2. 2 % T3 8.
S v, g B 2 2 R 28
) EA AN Golsr T
‘x\\“?"k ) HUDLEY o ) g, o A AR
%, . W ® NON ST, b3 c o -
© % i VER) G, "
e DOWNTOWN l B ¥ % ' Y
iid IMPROVEMENTS i, k) " A
- 0 %, ]
= £
X o DS
aae rtes %
g 9
9 % ot
9 1 6N
[2)
T BN AVE
& "
R0, e .
L P L y
Z i 0q;., - BOLTON ST P & WALKERS BROOK DRIVE
e ERAE Ao s, &y
T
A
R,
S,

%
Y
%5
)
o)
B @
3
o
52
6\*&'

e \Ngiter [Mprovements

,
s,
3




29



o¢e

{18/ s1sanbal [eydes feuio; ou) siosfold Ayunwiwio) gl

(pabueys adoos) spuswancudun Bpig MdQ '8

WG« 11930 PAPNRX3 YL Jatusy Aunwuwoy |

(100foud wrey 4o} GIOH d06s$) Buinedal ‘sBeuresp 'suswancidull plalg welliy; -

199Q papn|ox3 gl 1osloud Buping wepy 9,

H00t-062$ SiuawaAoIdul} SAUG MOPES YoIIg ‘g

%054-004$ Baly Al2su0D uues sulbbiy ‘g

[ 001528 pilg aupseD g

086-009% SUaWSACIAWI PISI4 UOHOW ‘g

(1§ wioy Jour) 'IIw §'Z-g'2$ 3t plal4 8Bpicod 0

_ 1089-00G$ SHNOD |[eqiaysed g

£

9'6-Z €5 PIRY #n mau asodind RINW/IBCHOS O

110" $-4008$ Bunited ‘puncibheld 'S0 IlEgepold ‘g

v 95BY 10j GZAS Ui Buipuny 1gap se pasodoid mou (g z$

[L52-0-vau s

- idncs
I o agiives HEfROHGT 8% ¥

_ [E303 ut "iwigL$ 03 dn ueid Jeyse g 's|

13U00s papsau oq Aeul /ZA4 PSpPPE - S|0CYS SU OF anss| Alajes e se patiodal useq sey S 000°00L'} _
2uay; papun; aq Aew 31 0s 'oeloud | uny 3w jo ued sjewalie-ppe SIS 00052 _

{Busgeayy umo 3se| wols abueys e sajesipui Jnossoloplog Buipeys) ueid [epides oug ui 3ok Buipun) pesodouid ou si a1ou3 Jng paiiuep| syoefoid fexiden

anbi 408§ plo Woy paseaiow alewis? | 000000
BZAL U1 dIO Sy} Of pauInjel mou s131 ‘pauue|d sem soeds [00ys ABJUSWSIS |[UN POACWR] SEM  BHBISZE—

_ S JeuedDHnL EREMY Y|
S1840B3|0/J00; 38N0UPI4 SHNY 'Z
354N mwaom SHIAY |

o0g'sBi'ol | 985S B - - - - - - (}1oy500) snyding sagejnWIRD|

se5'see's a65'284'7 z sa5'ass so5'sT - - - - - - (310100) sniding [enuuy|

%167 %86’y %167 %167 %96’y %¥6'y %06’y %¥6'y [ %8Y's %809 %ty fotjod 3900 3 1e3ide))

00§°G96°0¢ 000°202°2 0062022 000908 0000822 000°086°¢ 000°686° 000°G92°€ | 008°62E'S 006°€.5°Z 000969 897 000°005°y 0067082 SLS3INDIY TVLIAYD VL0
- 200Ss WL ludy Buipun feuonippy|

- 00872 L Ao Butpun jeuoippy|

- W1 1dag Bupund feuonippy|

- sino AousBlewig|
000°220°L D00 883 2% Buipuny dwe} [euonIppY|
0007500 000°000°S 000°007°% 000°009°¢ 000°000°% 000°004°¢ 000'552°¢ 000°00L°Z 000°002°2 000°2£8°2 pasodoid Jo pejop Buipund jeuibo)
8112990y LEY'y10%s sis'sr'y 69.°ev9'e 999Z10°y 601'982°¢ £06°Ze8e | L82°LGY'S 906°29L°Z 990°09L°Z 996°9/2°¢ 108°998°C Buipung jeyde) jobieL NOONIH]

91¥'e88'67 036'06¢ b 00€'k¥1'T 05.'895'C 052'261'¢ 052'095'C §16'559C 098'1687 | GLL'1BST 86E'PGL'E ¥8L'eer'e [ 78’696’} 9.9'0eL'z 199 papniouj 1oN -

yES‘9ps0L £022Er’L be1'0ITL 690000/ 640°008°9 94r'c09°9 y80°L4r'9 £8E'V229 | 290°CK0°9 090°€08°g 004009 098°G0Y°s 00y°0¥Z's £86°200°G fesidea +3q0p %g :Aofjod WOONIS
PrO'ghL SiEPHL LLLOFL 0£0°9€4 890264 [474:143 18¥'¥24 19802} 190'0L} 7I0CH) 21180} 80810} Aolod INODNIA o) suijeseg]

- - - - - - - - (082'1) (9892) (ee22) (2622) 199p papn|oxa ssa|

P9'BYL SIEPPL LLLOFL 0£0°9€4 89074 [424:43 18¥'¥2) 19802} WE'LLL 0021} 05804} 0090} (s000) senuenay JoN

00§°G96°0¢ 000°202°2 0062022 000908 0000822 000°086°¢ 000°686° 000°G92°€ | 008°62E'S 006°€.5°Z 000969 000489 000°005°y 0067082 S183NOIN WLIdVD 1ol
000°622°6 000'056 000'056 000'056 000'056 000628 000'008 000622 000059 000'629 000'629 000'5Z}'} 000°088 000'009 SPEOY - SHIOM lidnd
00000V 000'002 000'002 000'002 000'002 000'002 000'002 000'002 000'002 000'00% 000'002 000'002 00000} 00062 Kisjowe) ® syied - SHOM dland
000°G98°g 000Z1€ 000019 000'9€9 000’652 000'Ge€ 00095} 000'0f2 000'26}'} 00007 000'000'} 000'+85 000508 005’ L6¥ juowdinb3 - syiopm dljand
000°06¢ 000'0¢ 0052y 00062} - 0006y - 00062 00522 - 00007 - 000°0L1 - yojedsia/esiiod - Ajses dliand
000°686°C 000'02¢ - - 000'000'} 000'62€ 000'96% 000612 0006} 000’006 000'€0} 000'GeY 000°008°L 00022¢ SRl - Koges snand
000°0%2°L 00062 00062 00062 00062 000'05¢ 000’662 000092 000'022 00062 00062 00062 000628 000'06 SD[AIOS Dlj4Nd|
000°0L1 0000} 0000} 0000} 0000} 0000} 0000} 0000} 0000} 0000} 0000} 0000} 00001 - Kieiqiy angnd
000°001 - - - - - - - - 00000} - - - - soueuL|
000°628°L 00005} 00005} 00005} 00062} 00062} 00062} 00062} 00062} 00000} 00000} 00000} 000661 000'002 S9D|AI0S BARASIUIPY|
006°295°1 00009} 00009} 00009} 00066} 00066} 00066} 00066} 00066} 00528} 0000} 00004} 000698 000612 [e10U90 - S|00YDS liand
000901 - - - - - - 000G} - 000902 - 000G} - 000G} sBulpiing umoy - senjjioe
000680 - - - - 000'026 000’262 000'66 000'0¢ 00005 000862 000G} - 00005 sBulpiing |00yos - senjioeS
000°€20°2 00005 00005 00005 00005 000019 000'66 000042 000'96S 000'66 000612 00029 000°069 000'05¢ FYOO/IeIouUSD - SopIIe]

£E-6CAd £60C-Ad | 2E0TAd 1E0Z-Ad | 0S0C-Ad | 6C0C-Ad | B8Z0C-Ad | JTOT-Ad | 920C-Ad | G20C-Ad | ¥20Z-Ad £202-Ad ¢202-Ad 1202-Ad_|1€-0} ceociveic

(d1D) ueld Juswoanoidwy [eyde)



2%

000'6Z

00062

{£102) mojdmous - Ann 1eagog

000'9¢

000'98

(800z) moidmous - pis 1eogog

snyding /m

13315 piys 183 dog]

000'sy

000's

(9002) suliouoo3 06€3 UeA|

000'sy

000's

(9102) aHO0SZ AnauQ Yoru L dnoig

000'sy

000's

(£102) ueA heme-1nD sloquinid

000'sy

000's

{2102) uep Aeme-ing stajadie))|

000'sy

000's

{£102) 0ce-4 pio4 dnoig s,ejusdeg)

000'sy

000's

(#10z) auiouco3 0g€3 P40 UEA UBIOUIO9IT

agL weloid Bpig mdd|

luGS< 1 I9e0X YL Jeuag Aunwiio)

1A} 1o anow

00008

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

000'0SY
euqeg

euigaq

snyding /m

gzz$ waloid Bugooy BIS 2l 1S uieyy

M0at$ 108fo1d Buiyooy JleH umoj|

euj9aq

euiqeq

oy g g 1oefod vig 2afjog|

M00r$+SUAG 10 snow

NOr$+8uAg 1o srow

gsQx

gsQx

1q90x

gsQx

gsQx

1a2p jtw y'g14 yoslosd Butpyng Areig

B

B

B

B

000061

000'06}

eg

01/ 6} $ 10sloud Bugooy mopesyy youig

uBisap 198foud joos §3 mopeapy uoulg

1aeg

eg

eg

1q0p syoefosd Bpig puz nsmsotmm—

gsQx

1q90x

gsQx

gsQx

jwg-0$ syoefosd Bpig puz uzﬁseam_

1990x @l Psloid Buping wey| x—

%008$+SUAG 10 anow
%0Z4$+8UAG 10 anow

eg

1aeg

eg

eg

190p wz'L$ swoossser) repnpop]

B

B

B

B

000°0L€

000'0L8

eujgaq

eujgaq

eujgaq

euigaq

euigaq

euigaq

euigaq

euigaq

euigaq

140 1/1wi2 63 108loud Buyooy s sbpioog

ubisap 193foud joou gy ab6picoD)|

euqeq

Hoy/nwyzs yeelord Bugooy s sexied

000'052

uBisapNdO 10alold jool gy Jayied)

000'0Z}

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

euj9aq

00074
euqeq

(10ofosd g’ § 1uBIsap G2L$) 199p QGL W £ 1§ SIAYIERIQUOOL 9SNOUPI4 SHINY

Isjuowanosdwi punocsbieid ISISHINY]
ubisop punosbfeid ISRYSHINY|

HRoL/wW €4 ¥OBILHNL WIRIPERIS SHINY|

000'052

uBIsa@/WdO WnIpels SHINY

eg

eg

eg

eg

eg

eg

eg

1aeg

eg

eg

J90p [IW 6ZT'Z$ - T HNL SHIY

eg

199p I1UIG 08 - 11 Burureroy SHIRY|

eg

eg

eg

eg

1aeg

eg

eg

op swos “Bi3i 1w 94 - foxd Bpig SHIY

gsQx

1q90x

gsQx

gsQx

3Jq0p pwiges~ 3oefod Bupiing SHINY

000088

00008

00008

00008

00008

00008

00008

00008

00008

00008

00008

000°08

00008

00008

QORIWWIOD Pig JusUeWIOd]

000°0%}

{sooyos) wiy mopuim - 935 Bpig

eg

eg

eg

eg

eg

eg

eg

1aeg

eg

eg

199p W0y - Ainosg mu_m_

eg

eg

1G9p IugQ' 1§ (sireday ussun) >m_mcw—

eugeq

eugeq

eugeq

eugeq

eugeq

eugeq

eugeq

eugeq

eugeq

eugeq

ewigeg

HRgL/wo gs it syuswaAcdwy >m‘_mcm—

000'008

ubissQ/NdO 1] stustusaciduy >m_mcw—

eg

eg

1aeg

eg

eg

wge v$ (1oriU0D soueWIOpa) >m‘_mcm—

000'€20'2

000°08

000°08

000°08

000°08

000049

000'e6

000042

000'9¢S

000'e6

000'612

00029

000069

000°05€

THO0D - m.w_::uwm—

£6-6CAd

£€0C-Ad

2E0C-Ad

1802-Ad

0€02-Ad

6¢0¢-Ad

820¢-Ad

120C-Ad

920¢-Ad

G20T-Ad

¥202-Ad

£¢0C-Ad

220C-Ad

1202-Ad

1€:01 ¢coe/ve/e —

(d1D) ueld Juswoanoidwy [eyde)



- 7 sabunig MPN g Xd Wey 7L pu3 poom
0006/ 7 000'6C 000'6C 000'6C 000'6C 000'6C 000'6C 000'6C 000'6C 000'6C 00062 000'6C 000'SH wesbo.g spunoibiield qeuay
- 7 00062 Apnis soeds spjal4 B sied
) 7 000'0F Buuued Jojueg Aunwwoig
- 7 00008 {spuowis 1 90) Buruueid asn puey
3y 7 000°011 (z)sestnop proupuey (p)syson :ouvd|
- 7 00008 sjoafosd jusroiya KBroug umojumog|
- 7 g puog IWQ'SS 1 stustancidul umorumod
- 7 eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq SIAQL/IIO 28 1 Stustancidul umolumo(
- 7 eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeq eugeg euqeq sIAQL/MID 1§ AHliqeurelsng Aunwwio))
000°0¥L°L 7 00062 00062 00062 00062 000°06€ 000°6E2 00009, 000022 00062 00062 00062 000°6L8 00006 SIABS I J]
000041 7 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 0000 00000 juswdinbz]
000041 7 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 Axeaquy
mau 000001 7 000004 wajsks 1w Lages anqng|
SUAZ 1o anoul | 000009 7 000'009 walsk§ jerouen |
000'001 7 - - - - - - - - 000'001 - - - - uent)
000628, 7 000054 000054 000054 000'52H 000'52H 000'52H 000'52H 000'52H 000004 000004 000001 000004 000004 sjosfosd ABojouyss
) 7 00008 soawueld - 13A0AE §19
e 7 00061 [lemau) uonejuawBas [eusou|
mou 7 000°02 UOREORUOUINE 10}08) BINW SSOI08 Sj0WRY|
) 7 000'001 ojalfaneldal dinbs oojel umoy yuei Jatep)|
000628, 7 000061 000061 000061 000621 000621 000621 000621 000621 000001 000001 000001 000661 000002 SIIAIS PAN BYSTHIWIPY|
000628, 7 000054 000054 000054 000'52H 000'52H 000'52H 000'52H 000'52H 000004 000004 000001 000004 000004 sjasfosd ABojouyas) spm-jatasiql
- 7 000002 swafoud Bunipp ABojouyoa] spim-1oLsiq
’ 7 00008 s10afoud Bunm ABojouyoa 1 Joj ubisag|
000041 7 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 0000 000'69 000'69 swajshs suoydaja) spm-jatasiql
) 7 {£002) 2pW3A J2UR0Y
000°0¢ 7 000'0€ {#102) 2p1aA UoREoNp3 S1eAUQ|
0052y 7 0082y (§102) 052-3 ueA 201neg ooy
005288, 7 000091 000091 000091 000°GEL 000°GEL 000°GEL 000°GEL 000°GEL 008261 00007 000041 00069 000612 (212U - S[OOTIS]
i 7 000'6) 19189 WIBA\ TOHRLS 0104
mou | 0006 7 000°¢L SMOPHIA, % S100(]]
mau | 00061 7 000's) Suzooyg/1adie))
mau | 00092 7 000'0L Apmig plezel yse|4 oyl
000901 7 - - - - - - 00061 - 0009, - 00061 - 00061 (teyo1) umoy - sSmppngl
00061 7 0001 Bunooldfiadie) sosled|
’ 7 000'Se IsjesH Jakep Jayied|
| 7 000'Se J1e1eaH Jare abpijoo
WZi§- parowal) - 7 JsyeaH Jsiep) pug poop
SW/ST/SH Mau | 00008 7 000'0€ 000'0€ 00002 SMOPWA % $100(]
SHI/SWEST Mau | 000°501 7 00008 000'SS Suzooyg/1adie))
mau 7 000'026 0008 <- pu3 poo (zik)waford (11K)uSisop
mau | 000°0L, 7 000'6v9 000's9 <- smoleg SJ00U2S ATRIURTRH - DV AH]
mau | 00091 7 000'€94 Apmig plezel yse|4 oyl
0006802 7 - - - - 000026 000°28L 00066 000°0¢ 00008 000862 00061 - 00008 (1eyo) sjoouds - mmic::m—
6E6ZAd | | €E0Z-Ad | €E0Z'Ad | VEOZAJ | 0S02-Ad | 620Z°Ad | 8Z0Z-Ad | J2OZ'Ad | 920ZAd | G20ZAd | veozAd | eeozAd | zeoz-Ad | iz0e-Ad [1e01 coozivere l

(d1D) ueld Juswoanoidwy [eyde)



000°06 00005 00007 000'06 (8142 - 61,02) JorelIuqlRq STV
- (81A0Z - ¥B61) YonuL wely
00068 000'6S (s14z1 - 2402) Z# onuL dnvold
0009 000'98 (s1hQ}, - 810Z) SteD Jobussseq
000°S 000'€S (sahg1 - £002) gi#teD 1ebusssed
00008 00005 (s1401 - 00Z) bisteD sabusssed
0006 000'0F 000'ce juswdinbe souejnquiy]|
HG$+ pauIguIcd 000°00 000°00¢ dinbe 9 (sif01 - 0102) Z# eouLINGUY|
000688 000'68¢ (14 01 -2402) 1# SoUEINqUIY]
- (0vAd xau 4008$ 0202) t# Bu3 seduing
- (9eAd xau M0E9$ 9402) €# Bu3 seduing
000006 000'008 (54 xau M0 L$-2002) 2# Bug Jeduing)
000000 000°000'} (064 xau 14GZ6$-0102) L# Bug Jedung)
ey i gL papund pawess uewdinb3  oniL feoppeT
. 000°00¢'} (2zAd I¥ou 4008 :8002) L ML toppey
000°686°¢ 000°02¢ . . 000°000°% 000628 000°96% 000612 0001 000°006 000201 000°GEY 000°008°L 000228 S/ - K)o3es dqnd]
000°0% 00008 sipedal dojsyoeg g sefinig
00068 000'¢8 sipedal Unos [[eqieyseg g sefinig
0006 00062 sipedal UNos siuua ] g safinig
1Ay dn enowf 000°5ZL 00062} dojsyoeq soeidayid UK,
1Ay dn enowf 000051 000'084 dojsyoeq 208|day SpUOWAS,
1Ay dn enow] 00002 00002 202453l IN0DNd Lo
1Ay dn enow] 000‘08 00008 puels pueg s0e|day Hid WalNy
000°001 00000} suied Buiiemold usems
000°051 00005} pIaY 1iys % dojsyoeq 80e|dayNd USEM,|
i TW076q PoUTIIGP] HG08S) VG L SHEIoP [11q PUGY GIE1S Ul J0G68 SBIEaIPUl MOfBq 1)
000°62¢ 000'62e sieday plal4 pu3g poo|
- 1o} pey (pses) Buineda 'sBeurelp ‘ancudu piaig weiiyy
000621 00062} prayul Jiedau g dojsyoeq soejdey smoueg)
00068 000'¢8 suredal Pnos |[egiayseg smoleg)
000°6Z1 000'6z1 suredal PNos sluUa} smolleg|
- QgL 01 4008% panow (eoeidal) Siy Jenied@yng [BIoIMY|
. _ W ¢'2-2 2§ Hni preld 9bpiiood
- lwig-Z'€$ PIok 1ni mou asodind BnICHOS
’ v_oo?o_mmﬁ spIawisaclduw sALQ MOpeapy Youig
- %054-001$ Bady AlasuoD uues suibbipy
- H00L-G2§$ PIdI4 dunse
. %066-009% SiuawaA0Idu p|3l4 UOHOW
- H069-006$ SUNCO Ifecpovseg
- 1IwQ 1 $-%008% Buniied ‘puncibheld ‘10 I/egeald
- H054-0048 HEm oss0.0E]
: H055-05¥$ Buniied vongis uoneuibei)
. JUZ LS50 $ UoReInaD jeious g oddng
M3y - ewqeg ewqeg ewqeg ewqeg ewqeg ewqeg ewqeg ewqeg ewqeg
) 7 000'084 ubisaq ueld Jaisepy mopeayy youig|
- | TEIq 515871 FOPE3 (oI
£E-6CAd | £60z-Ad | 2e0Z-Ad 1E0Z-Ad | 0S0C-Ad | 6C0C-Ad | B8Z0C-Ad | JTOT-Ad | 920C-Ad | G20C-Ad | ¥20Z-Ad £202-Ad ¢202-Ad 1202-Ad_|1€-0} ceociveic

(d1D) ueld Juswoanoidwy [eyde)



ye

00029 00029 (210z) adeas3 pio4 10-04d
. (0z02) 1# dnyoid 20N
00029 00029 (7102) 11# Aumn prod dnyold 40-H|
000°0L 00002 (0202) ¥# dn¥oid £0-H
00009 000'09 (900z) 81# dold Z0-H
00029 00029 (5102) gh# dnold LO-H
00009 000'09 (1102) swed 6# Arau0 dnyld 20-4|
. (102) ossene1L Arayd 10-3
~hieneq | 000'ss 000'6S (8002) QI4GAH odeas3 piod £# 120 2 HvO|
00009 000'09 (910¢) odeas3 piod | My
suky dn enow | 000°0y 00007 (900¢) uepas piod p# WeY 90-0
14} 100 enow | 000°09 000'09 (#102) 1O# Aumn piog dnold 20-0|
000104 - - 000°051 . . 00029 000°011 000681 000°0y 000°041 . . . sueA/sied/sdn-yoid
00009 000'09 (5102) swied z1# ¥onu dwng $0-d
00029 00029 (£102) swed pz# yoni dwng £0-d|
sifg wno anow | 000°002 000002 (900¢) Jopues - 8L# YonuL GL-Hj
000°002 000'002 (£002) Jopues - 61# Yol gL-Hi
suAz dn anow | 000°00Z 000'002 (8002) 1 #¥onuL 2|
000°002 000'002 (8002) £ #MonIL 9i-H
000°002 000'002 (8002) G#YonuL Gi-H
000612 000612 (0402) 4opues - €4 YL yi-H
000°022 000022 (1402) JopuEs - 9L# oL Zi-H
000662 000’662 (7102) 4opuES - p# YonIL L1-H
000°072 00002 (5102) 4opues- Zz# YonIL 0b-H
000672 000642 (9402) 4123uM 01 - 8# YonIL 60-H
000°052 000052 (£102) 43puEs - 6# YonIL 80-H
000°062 000'0€2 (8102) O1# YonuL L0-H|
. (£102) ¥1# yonuL dnxold [eusy 90-H
00069 000'69 (z102) L# YoruL duing WS GO-H
000°0L 00002 (2102) 20 oruL dwing $0-9
0002 00062 (9102) €0 YoruL dwing £0-9
000°296 000718 000°02¢ 000°008 000662 000°062 000°0L 000°022 000°088 . 000°00¢ . . . syoniy obieq
000°G98°g 000718 000°0L9 000989 000662 000°GE€ 00091 000°072 000°261°1 000°0y 000°000°% 00085 000508 00528 ymmdmb - 104 JNqnd]
00068 000'0¢ 00062 5Q3Y|
. (s14Z1 - 010z 9414 % 80lI0d) sIpEY
0006 000'ce uolreiBatu) 0apIA 3[oIueA|
mau - ag.L papund pawiein selouwe) Apog
mau 000°6Z1 000'sgh 0000k (s1ssey) uawdinbs solpog|
000621 0052y 0006y 0052y 00007 SPIYBA paEWN B3llod
000°06¢ 00008 0082 000621 . 000y . 00062 0082 . 000°0y . 000054 - wyedsiapoNod - ges dand|
000°06¢ 000'002 000084 00002} (s4h9 - 71.02) 4899 Jnouin
0002 00007 00068 9SOH 2l
00009 000'09 (sahg1 - 81.0z) BuiBew jeunay 1|
00002 00002 8018 Uossa.duIod YD
00008 00008 sapiog Uiy Bunpeaig
- 000'28 Jossaudwiod 1y Buiyreaug|
000's62 000622 00002 (s1/z1-2102) snjeseddy Buiyjeaig
00068 000'0¢ 00062 (s14g-0202) sQ3v $78
£E-6CAd £60C-Ad | 2E0TAd 1E0Z-Ad | 0S0C-Ad | 6C0C-Ad | B8Z0C-Ad | JTOT-Ad | 920C-Ad | G20C-Ad | ¥20Z-Ad £202-Ad ¢202-Ad 1202-Ad_|1€-0} ceociveic

(d1D) ueld Juswoanoidwy [eyde)




Ge

00061 00061 (gg61) lomopiomoig/iodesms ¢i-d
000°0y 00007 (9102) Jodaomg Hn1 0g COUIWS Z}-d
000°0¢ 000'0¢ (9102) serguadng coYWS | 1-d
. 000'6E (9661) z# Joltea) sanesq 1aBe3 pp-H|
. (8661) 43110y U3IIEIL £F-H
. (z102) anreIL ZH-H
. (0202) (2) Jossaudwiod alIgoN Op-H
. 00062 (102) (1) Jossaudwio algon 6-H
. (5002) puIaE MO L JaXIpy JuBUIS) ge-H|
- 006'28 (0202) Buined Joj XogioH 2¢-H
. (0102) Buined 4o} Joping-aIng ge-H
. (¥002) Buined 1o} aulyoe Yol Ge-H
00002 00002 (5102) 1eBo0g Jokeids unop yonIL 04-d
00008 00005 (510¢) Jared L duing Jajied L 60-4
- 00008 soe(dal) (120g) mau Jepuud dunis go-4
mau 000622 000'622 (810z) 4oddyD JeswoA 90-4
00001 0000} (€102) JanreiL X0 Big 21-0
00002 00002 (6102) 4alked L 3BULED 9§-O)
00062 00062 (5102) (waQ) veA 187 DYNS G1-O)
00008 000'0¢ (z10z) sodoams gy COUNWS H4-O)
000°0yS . 000°082 00066 00002 000°04 - 000°08 - - 00094 000'6€ 000'se 008291 King 3B - yuswdinbg Ajeroeds
M3 400G . (6651) Jemolamous OH pIEdlS £2-M|
mau 000°691 000'sg4 JapeoT 4o} Hun Jamo|g
. (8102) 18usa105 | p-H
. (8661 llewS us|joy AoqesT e-H
00008 00005 (9102) Ilews "s3jj0y WwieH ¢¢-H
. (r102) obire ssjioy WwieH z¢-H
. (#102) padg Juswared A0goa je-H|
. 00068} (€102) 08¢0 Z# 43PIOH MOUS 6Z-H
6§+ suhz dn enow | 000681 000's81 (5102) 2669 L# 19PIOH MOUS 8Z-H|
14y 1o anou | oo‘ss 000084 (5102) ssapoeIL MOUS L2-Hi
sifz 1o anow [ 000414 000461 (9102) SYMS tHowd MOUS 9Z-H
. (€00¢) JezoQ Jo|MeID GZ-H
. (9402) MO ¥2-H
000°042 000042 (8002) £2# yoni Liopeoiaddiyd §o-4
. 000622 (600 Ansauod Lz# YonuL 19¥oNg 04
000106 . . 000411 . 000°08 - 000081 - - 000's91 000's6¢ 000°09% - Ring AaeoH - juswdinb3 Ayeioads|
mau 000°08 00008 (z102) (s3ed) 0z8rar Joweil 0-d
- 000'68 (0202) Jor0e 0BAUBA GO-d]
. (510¢) Jopeo 10908 €2-H)
. 000'06} (0202) AMH 7012 QF souoeg Zz-H
mau 000622 000622 puealg 2oeidal 0} JapeoT
. (£102) ¥29 Qr JopE0T 1ZH
. (0202) ¥29 Qr JepecT 0Z-H
. (0z0z) 4epec souyoeg L0-0|
000508 - - . . . . . 000°08 . 000622 . . 000622 inb3 AresHjsiopeojseouyoeg|
00068 000'6S Josinadng 0/4/d 40} dnyol
00008 00005 (5102) wed z# prod dnyold Z0-d
£E-6CAd £60C-Ad | 2E0TAd 1E0Z-Ad | 0S0C-Ad | 6C0C-Ad | B8Z0C-Ad | JTOT-Ad | 920C-Ad | G20C-Ad | ¥20Z-Ad £202-Ad ¢202-Ad 1202-Ad_|1€-0} ceociveic

(d1D) ueld Juswoanoidwy [eyde)




9¢

7 uejd Wwol panowai (£ZA4 U001 $) sluawanoidwi| anuaay Jnong
i OEAH/6TAL U HUTLO 1S PUT POOM
i | ezAdiszad wioiLs smosea
G PUOG 9)B)S U HWGE ‘PIUIILSP] it /$) 1994S UdARH/SIuauIACId Ul UMOJUMOD T ueid 0} %9Bq POPPE Pug POOA) B SMmoiieg o) (jiui’L§) oM DYAH
i i _ Aufiqeuresns Aunuwwod, i 1§ 'y _ OfzeL$) yeieTAd pappe edeuns punoibheid 391y
i UOISSNosIp oignd pesU FZA 104 pauurid sjosfoid JgeQ (Kemsapun siom uBISep) GZA- Ul 1gep S pappe (iwzg) | eseyd joefoid pjei4 mopespy yoig
7 U00S A1BA PBUIUSD! 9G PINOUS JGOp POPNIOXT JOU S)S00 AUR - §3F wiefry WG L § WOl w6 L § 0] PSB! JOOs ST MOPBIIN Uydig
i i _ HWE TS WO i) €S O} POSERIOL JOOI SN 9Bp00D
i onssi Aj9Jes - JZAd Popuny jwy 1§ Joop/sieydeslq esnoypleld SHINY 0£/6TAd 0 GT/PTA Woi) siesk G no parow (3gep) spoefoid Joos mopesiy youg g ebplieod
7 Sul32UocH Bunasy uMo] LZ0oZ 13qWISACN aduis jeyded ui sabueyy 1sabbig
]
000°628G1 i 000'085'§ 000'085'§ 000'085'§ 000'085'§ 000'SLK'b 00000 b 000'6Z8's | 000'082'4 000'522 b 000'522 b 000°622°4 000°05t'} 000°002' b TYLidyD avoy TVLOL
000°009°9 i 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 000009 SPEO SROLIBA - SJUBID)
0006226 7 000056 000056 000056 000056 000°sL8 000008 0006z 000059 000629 000629 0006214 000058 000009 SQVO¥ - G3LOA ONN4 N3O Tv10d]
000'62y's 7 000058 000058 000058 000058 000928 000008 0008y 000057 00052y 00052y 000'szy 000058 00000 SPEOL SROLIBA - PR [BIOUSD)
000008 7 000008 %008% 39945 (MO
- 7 1000 1000 1980 1000 1000 (nwgi8) us 18001 - 30045 sopm
000°059°% 7 000002 000002 000002 000002 00062} 000054 000524 000004 000004 000004 000001 000004 000004 u2jed [B9S %281 8 BuReoD WS
000°059% 7 000002 000002 000002 000002 000621 000054 000524 000004 000004 000004 000001 000002 000004 fyoges “pad/ainopEMmepIS|
- 7 ag1 papuny juesh 7# 9Bpug peoy yoely
- 7 1# 9Bpug peoy yoely
- | POy 1 Md(l
000058 i 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 spuawaAcidwl jo Bubied |ueo)
- 7 uole3 enysor - m‘__mam‘_ [FeAA Ho0Y
- 7 IIH 12ane - saredal [lem o0y
¥6Z$+ 000°000°% 7 000004 000004 000004 000004 000004 000004 000004 000004 000004 000004 uriBoig Jeday I Y00y
000001 7 000001 %ied [BLOWSY] - SHEdS IBM %20
- 7 MOpeSH § (shemyjem ‘syremapis ‘sjpof mc.ctmoq_
44 1o anouwl] goo‘eoz 7 000002 susuIenoudul] SUS 100405
3001$- srowal| - 7 sjuswaAcIdu 3huaAY INCAS
- 7 spiawsacldw pIeA AMdd
000058 i 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00005 00052 juswosedoy 22ua4 |,ueD)
0000052 7 000002 000002 000002 000002 000002 000002 000002 000002 00000 000002 000002 000001 00062 ABpPUL) P sNied ‘Mddq
000051 7 000051 (£00z) Bueo QUOL - 1omoOp 0i-d|
000°051 7 00005} (7102) NOIBS OHOL (4d) IMAL 80~
mau 00002 7 00002 OYNS M 80
00042 7 00012 (2102) 5% 11 DWIS MM L0-d]
14 300 2noul 00042 7 00012 00006 (1102) €% .19 LL DVHS IMA €1-0
00524 7 00576 (2102 .98 DS M Z1-0
000°04 7 0000} (1202) Jopuers ,zg Beog (‘We) IMA 1 4-0)
00042 7 00012 (3002) .19 DYXS LMoy 01-0
00§21 7 0052t (9102) 8% DWHS (WLD) M 60-O)
00042 7 00012 (2102) 7# L1 DWIS M 80-O)
000°18% i - 00004 - - 000'sy 00042 000051 000'sy - 00042 000051 00004 - SISMOWLME]
. 7 (£002) pasojouz JojreiL gi-d
0002 7 00072 {1opunb dwns) sopiRiL L1-d|
00091 7 0000} (€102) JanRIL i~
00001 7 0000} (9102) JanrRIL Gi-df
00062 7 00052 (9102) DWHS %BA 82T pi-d]
£E-EZAd | £602-Ad | 20Z-Ad | 1£0Z-Ad | 0S0Z-Ad | 6202-Ad | 820Z-Ad | [20z-Ad | 920z-Ad | S20Z-Ad | ¥e0z-Ad £202°Ad 2202°Ad 1202-Ad _|1€:04 Teoevee

(d1D) ueld Juswoanoidwy [eyde)



SB Town Mgr April

member FY23 Town
Addtions Total Average Budget Meeting

1 Ad Svc OoPS Town Clerk support (PT) S 23,500 S§ 4,700 partial

2 Ad Svc OPS Town Mgr Reserves S 10,000 no

3 Ad Svc OPS Legal - Other settlements S 10,000 no

4 Ad Svc OPS Legal - general S 10,000 S 930 partial

5 Ad Svc HR Asst HR Director S 80,750 no

6 Ad Svc Tech Outsourced/Fiber Network S 15,000 yes

7 Ad Svc Tech Office 365 license S 50,000 partial

8 PubSvc  Admin Outsourced/ HPP S 45,000 S 8,855 yes

9 Pub Svc Planning Ec Dev Action Plan ($50k tot) S 30,000 no
10 Pub Svc Recreation Increase PT hours S 20,000 partial
11 Pub Saf  Health Support staff S 49,133 S 5,000 yes
12 Pub Saf Health Outsourced records mgmt S 30,000 S 7,406 yes
13 PubSvc  Conservation Bare Meadow baseline study S 7,800 S 725 partial* if needed
14 Pub Svc  Conservation Invasive Management S 1000 S 540  partial*  if needed
15 Pub Svc  Conservation Trail Management S 1,200 S 648  partial*  if needed
16 Pub Svc Planning? Sustainability Director S 90,000 S 17,306 partial
17 PubSvc  Admin PT ZBA clerk S 20,600 S 3,056 no
18 Pub Saf Police Increase PEO hrs S 18,100 S 10,715 partial

Mentioned 1/3/22
19 Pub Svc  Historical Photo/map digitization S 7500 S 698  partial*  if needed
20 Pub Svc  Historical Temp archivist S 5000 S 465  partial*  if needed
21 Pub Svc  Historical Collection Mgt Software S 1000 S 93  partial*  if needed
added 1/10/22

22 Pub Svc Recreation Community Garden S 10,000 S 930 partial* if needed

Requested $ 535,583
ToSpend § 62,083 $ 62,066

KEY: Fully funded yes
Partially funded partial
Could be funded by SB Reserves partial*
Not funded no
KEY: Requested in draft form yes
If not funded by SB could go to 4/22 or 11/22 Town Meeting if needed

37



December 23, 2021

LOCAL BOARDS

Franklin; Haverhill;, Leominster; Manstfield; Marlborough; Millbury; North Attleborough;
Reading; Saugus; Seekonk; Pembroke; Tewksbury; Raynham; Wareham; West
Springfield

The Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission (“Commission”) has received an
application from Rare Hospitality International, Inc. for a Change of Officers/Directors in
the above-noted cities and towns. Relative to the Officer Change, Lindsay L. Koren has
replaced Joseph G. Kern as Vice President and Secretary and Angela Simmons has
replaced William R. White as Director, President and Treasurer.

Due to the magnitude of these transactions, the Commission has received the information
and documents provided by the licensee. The review was to determine whether the
contemplated transaction is consistent with the provisions of M.G.L. ¢. 138. Based upon
our review, we are satisfied that the transaction is consistent with the purposes of the law
and would not result in the individual corporate licenses being deemed to be out of
compliance with the applicable statute. Accordingly, this letter sets forth our
recommended procedure for the processing of these applications.

Arrangements have been made for the Corporation to pay the $200 application fees

directly to the Commission. Therefore, no fee needs to be collected by the Local
Board(s).

The Commission has reviewed and accepted copies of the following documents and
instruments:

1) Application for a Change of Officers/Directors
2) CORI Request Forms

3) Vote of the Board of Directors

4) Updated Articles of Organization

38



Where there will be no change of existing managers, the Commission will not require
that a Manager Form be completed, nor will the Commission require background
information on the managers as such information should already be on file.

The applicant will contact you directly for processing the application. Please forward to
the Commission the Local Licensing Authority Record. The Commission will require no
other forms, documents, or information in connection with these applications.

Should you or your town counsel/city solicitor have any questions or require information
or assistance, please contact Investigator Caroline L Guarino at (617) 727-3040,
extension 735.

Sincerely,

Ralph Sacramone
Executive Director

cc: Frederick G. Mahony, Chief Investigator
Ryan Melville, Licensing Coordinator
Joseph H. Devlin, Esq.

39



Upton Conneli& Devlin, LLP

Contact for Joseph H. Devlin, Esq. Main Office:

171 High Street 112 Water Street, Suite 201
Newburyport, MA 01950 Boston, Massachusetts 02109
617-514-2837 617-227-3277 (Tel)
617-514-2825 617-227-3222 (Fax)

January 19, 2022
Via Fed Ex

Select Board Town Hall
16 Lowell Street
Reading, MA 01876

Dear License Administrator:
I am writing on behalf of Rare Hospitality International, Inc. d/b/a Long Horn
Steakhouse, which is a licensed entity in your community.

Per the letter you received from the Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverage Control
Commission (the “ABCC”), a copy of which is also enclosed, the Licensee has been granted
preliminary approval fora Change of Officerrelative toall 15 of their Massachusetts locations
using the “inverted approval process”.

The Officer Change involves the appointment of Lindsey Koren and removal of Joseph
Kern as Vice President and Secretary of GMRI, Inc., and the appointment of Angela Simmons
and removal of William White as Director, President and Treasurer.

Due to the size of the transactions, the ABCC has reviewed and investigated the
applications and found that the transaction is in compliance withM.G.L. Chapter 138. In
addition to the LLA Form, please send the Application package and all other relative forms and
documents back to the ABCC. If you have any questions, you can call Investigator Caroline

Wilichoski at 617-908-8562.
Enclosed please find the following documents relative to the transaction for your records:

1. Letter from Ralph Sacramone, Executive Director of the Alcohol Beverage Control
Commission (the “ABCC”).
2. DOR and DUA Certificates.

3. Monetary Transmittal Form.

40



8.
9.

Also enclosed, please find a check made payable to the Town of Reading in the amount of

Retail alcoholic beverages application — change of officers.

CORI Request Forms for the new ofﬁcers./
Proof of US Citizenship for the new officers.
Exhibits.

Certificate of Authorization.

Certificate of Organization.

$50.00 for the filing fee.

We would appreciate you putting this on your next available meeting schedule. We will call

shortly hereafter to see if you need us to attend the meeting, though we are anticipating from past
experiences that many communities will not require it.

We look forward to speaking and working with you again. If you should have any questions
with regard to this Application, please feel free to call my associate, Elizabeth Pisano, at 860-

712-2799, or email her at gpisano(@ucdlaw.com.

; ‘g\limgt}y yours,

[\ Nt

Joseph H. Devlin

41



Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Department of the State Treasurer
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
239 Causeway Street
Boston, MA 02114
Telephone 617-727-3040
Facsimile: 617-727-1510

Jean M. Lorizio, Esq.
Chairman

December 23, 2021

LOCAL BOARDS

Franklin; Haverhill; Leominster; Mansfield; Marlborough; Millbury; North Attleborough;
Reading; Saugus; Seekonk; Pembroke; Tewksbury; Raynham; Wareham; West
Springfield

The Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission (“Commission”) has received an
application from Rare Hospitality International, Inc. for a Change of Officers/Directors in
the above-noted cities and towns. Relative to the Officer Change, Lindsay L. Koren has
replaced Joseph G. Kern as Vice President and Secretary and Angela Simmons has
replaced William R. White as Director, President and Treasurer.

Due to the magnitude of these transactions, the Commission has received the information
and documents provided by the licensee. The review was to determine whether the
contemplated transaction is consistent with the provisions of M.G.L. c. 138. Based upon
our review, we are satisfied that the transaction is consistent with the purposes of the law
and would not result in the individual corporate licenses being deemed to be out of
compliance with the applicable statute. Accordingly, this letter sets forth our
recommended procedure for the processing of these applications.

Arrangements have been made for the Corporation to pay the $200 application fees
directly to the Commission. Therefore, no fee needs to be collected by the Local
Board(s).

The Commission has reviewed and accepted copies of the following documents and
instruments:

1) Application for a Change of Officers/Directors
2) CORI Request Forms

3) Vote of the Board of Directors

4) Updated Articles of Organization



Where there will be no change of existing managers, the Commission will not require
that a Manager Form be completed, nor will the Commission require background
information on the managers as such information should already be on file.

The applicant will contact you directly for processing the application. Please forward to
the Commission the Local Licensing Authority Record. The Commission will require no
other forms, documents, or information in connection with these applications.

Should you or your town counsel/city solicitor have any questions or require information
or assistance, please contact Investigator Caroline L Guarino at (617) 727-3040,
extension 735.

Sincerely,

Ralph Sacramone
Executive Director

cer Frederick G. Mahony, Chief Investigator
Ryan Melville, Licensing Coordinator
Joseph H. Devlin, Esq.

43



1/19/22, 11:40 AM

Payment Confirmation

Print Receipt

YOUR PAYMENT HAS PROCESSED AND THIS IS YOUR RECEIPT

Your account has been billed for the following transaction. You will receive a receipt via email.

Transaction Processed Successfiuliy.
INVOICE #: 7e26192¢-5fce-4831-8b1a-41dS5e7cafbad

Description Applicant, License or Registration Number Amount
SPECIAL PERMIT Long Horn Steakhouse $3,000.00
$3,000.00

Date Paid: 1/19/2022 11:40:01 AM EDT

Total Convenience Fee: $70.50
Total Amount Paid: $3,070.50

Payment On Behalf Of

License Number or Business Name:
Long Horn Steakhouse

License Type:
SPECIAL PERMIT

https://www.ncourt.com/x-press/PrintReceipt.aspx

Billing Information

First Name:
John

Last Name:
Connell

Address:
112 Water Street

City:
Boston

State:
MA

Zip Code:
02109

Email Address:
episano@ucdiaw.com

44

17



DOR COGS

and
DUA COC

45



Commonwealth of Massachusetts Lelter ID: L1871452864
Department of Revenue Notice Date: January 4, 2022
Geoffrey E. Snyder, Commissioner Case ID: 0-001-392-101

mass.gov/dor

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING AND/OR TAX COMPLIANCE

QU TR R [ ITH R TTUTR | UL S U R R T)
RARE HOSPITALITY INTL INC

401 PARK DR

BOSTON MA 02215-3325

INTL INC is in compliance with its tax obligations under Chapter 62C of the Massachusetts General
Laws.

This certificate doesn't certify that the taxpayer is compliant in taxes such as unemployment insurance
administered by agencies other than the Department of Revenue, or taxes under any other provisions of
law.

This is not a waiver of lien issued under Chapter 62C, section 52 of the Massachusetts General
Laws.

If you have questions, call us at (617) 887-6400 or toll-free in Massachusetts at (800) 392-6089, Monday
through Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m..

Visit mass.gov/dor to learn more about Massachusetts tax laws and DOR policies and procedures,
including your Taxpayer Bill of Rights, and MassTaxConnect for easy access to your account:

= Review or update your account

*  Contact us using e-message

»  Sign up for e-billing to save paper
*  Make payments or set up autopay

el O Q/gj”

Edward W. Coyle, Jr., Chief
Collections Bureau

46

g



THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT OF UNEMPLOYMENT ASSISTANCE

Ea [T T,

Richard A. Jeffers

LT. GOVERNOR 3r7e01667 DIRECTOR
GMRI INC -
P.O. BOX 695011
ORLANDO, FL 32869 EAN: 60069730

November 16, 2021

Certificate 1d:53352

The Department of Unemployment Assistance certifies that as of 11/16/2021 ,GMRI INC is current in all
its obligations relating to contributions, payments in lieu of contributions, and the employer medical
assistance contribution established in G.L.c.149,§189.

This certificate expires in 30 days from the date of issuance.

Richard A. Jeffers, Director

Department of Unemployment Assistance

a1/

Page 1 of 1

CHARLES F. HURLEY BUILDING e 19 STANIFORD STREET « BOSTON, MA 02114
WWW mMase aov/uima



APPLICATION AND FORMS

48



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150-2358
www.mass.gov/abcc

RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE APPLICATION
MONETARY TRANSMITTAL FORM

APPLICATION FOR AMENDMENT-Change of Officers, Stock or Ownership Interest

APPLICATION SHOULD BE COMPLETED ON-LINE, PRINTED, SIGNED, AND SUBMITTED TO THE LOCAL
LICENSING AUTHORITY.

ECRT CODE: RETA

Please make $200.00 payment here: ABCC PAYMENT WEBSITE

PAYMENT MUST DENOTE THE NAME OF THE LICENSEE CORPORATION, LLC, PARTNERSHIP, OR INDIVIDUAL AND INCLUDE THE
PAYMENT RECEIPT

ABCC LICENSE NUMBER (IF AN EXISTING LICENSEE, CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE CITY}) DO’ZB—RS-lOlG ]

ENTITY/ LICENSEE NAME [Rare Hospitality International, Inc. d/b/a "LongHorn Steakhouse" J

ADDRESS ‘39 Walker's Brook Drive ‘

CITY/TOWN MReading ] STATE KMA ZIP CODE 01867 l
For the following transactions (Check all that apply):
[] New License [] Change of Location [] Change of Class (ic Annual/Seasonal ] Change Corporate Structure Gie. Corp/LLC)
[] Transfer of License [] Alteration of Licensed Premises [ Change of License Type (ie. club/ restaurant [[] Pledge of Collateral e License/stock
[] Change of Manager [[] Change Corporate Name D Change of Category fie. All Akohol/Wine, Malt) [__—] Management/Operating Agreement
([;hange of Officers/ Change of Ownership Interest D Issuance/Transfer of Stock/New Stockholder D Change of Hours
irectors/LLC Managers [:] (LLC Members/ LLP Partners,

Trustees) [J Other F I [] Change of DBA

THE LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY MUST MAIL THIS
TRANSMITTAL FORM ALONG WITH
COMPLETED APPLICATION, AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS TO:

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3
Chelsea, MA 02150-2358

49



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150-2358
www.mass.gov/abcc

APPLICATION FOR AMENDMENT

-Change of Officers, Stock or Ownership Interest

Change of Officers/ Directors/LLC Managers [1Change of Stock Interest

e DOR Certificate of Good Standing

e DUA Certificate of Compliance

e Change of Officer/Directors Application

e CORI Authorization

e Vote of the Entity

e Payment Receipt

» Business Structure Documents
o If Sole Proprietor, Business Certificate
o |f partnership, Partnership Agreement

o If corporation or LLC, Articles of Organization

from the Secretary of the Commonweaith

[IChange of Ownership interest

(e.g. LLC Members, LLP Partners, Trustees etc.)

¢ DOR Certificate of Good Standing

e DUA Certificate of Compliance

e Change of Stock Application

e CORI Authorization

¢ Financial Statement

e Vote of the Entity

e Purchase & Sale Agreement

s Supporting Financial Records

* Advertisement

e Payment Receipt

» Business Structure Documents
» If Sole Proprictor, Business Certificate
e [f partnership, Partnership Agreement

(e.g. New Stockholders or Transfer or Issuance of Stock)

¢ DOR Certificate of Good Standing
e DUA Certificate of Compliance
e Change of Stock Application
e CORI Authorization
* Financial Statement
e Vote of the Entity
» Purchase & Sale Agreement
e Supporting Financial Records
e Advertisement
e Payment Receipt
e Business Structure Documents
e |f Sole Proprietor, Business Certificate
e |f partnership, Partnership Agreement
e If corporation or LLC, Articles of Organization
from the Secretary of the Commonwealth

Non-Profit Club Change of Officers/ Directors

0 e DOR Certificate of Good Standing
e DUA Certificate of Compliance
e Change of Officer/Directors Application
e Vote of the club signed by an approved officer
o Payment Receipt
e Business Structure Documents -Articles of
Organization from the Secretary of the Commonwealth

Management Agreement
----- e DOR Certificate of Good Standing
e DUA Certificate of Compliance

e If corporation or LLC, Articles of Organization e Management Agreement

from the Secretary of the Commonwealth

* Vote of Entity
* Payment Receipt

*|f abutter notification and advertisement are required for transaction, please see the local licensing authority.

1. BUSINESS ENTITY INFORMATION

Entity Name

Municipality ABCC License Number

Rare Hospitality International, Inc. Reading

0028-RS-1016

Please provide a narrative overview of the transaction(s) being applied for. Attach additional pages, if necessary.

Lindsay L. Koren has replaced Joseph G. Kern as Vice President and Secretary. Angela Simmons has replaced William R. White as Director, President and
Treasurer.

APPLICATION COMTACT

The application contact is the person who should be contacted with any questions regarding this application.

Mame

Title

Email Phone

Joseph H. Devlin Attorney

jdevlin@ucdlaw.com 617-514-2828

50




APPLICATION FOR AMENDMENT-Change of Officers, Stock or Ownership Interest
2. PROPOSED OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST

List all individuals or entities that will have a direct or indirect, beqeﬁcial or financial interest in this license (E.g. Stockholders, Officers,
Directors, LLC Managers, LLP Partners, Trustees etc.). Attach additional page(s) provided, if necessary, utilizing Addendum A.

e The individuals and titles listed in this section must be identical to those filed with the Massachusetts Secretary of State.
e The individuals identified in this section, as well as the proposed Manager of Record, must complete a CORI Release Form.

» Please note the following statutory requirements for Directors and LLC Managers:
On Premises (E.g.Restaurant/ Club/Hotel) Directors or LLC Managers - At least 50% must be US citizens;
Off Premises(Liquor Store) Directors or LLC Managers - All must be US citizens and a majority must be
Massachusetts residents.

o Ifyou are a Multi-Tiered Organization, please attach a flow chartid
each entity as well as the Articles of Organization for each corporat

entifying each corporate interest and the individual owners of
e entity. Every individual must be identified in Addendum A.

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Lindsay Koren
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Vice President & Secretary 0% | (CYes @®No @Yes (:No OYes @:No
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
r
Colleen Lyons .
Title and or Position pPercentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Assistant Secretary ‘ﬂ% CYes @ No @®Yes (ONo CYes (@No
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Angela Simmons ( |
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Director, President & Treasurer 0% @®Yes (ONo @Yes ONo CYes @No
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
GMR], Inc. 100 Darden Center Drive, Orlando, FL
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Dlrector/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
Member - see next page. 100% CiYes (No @Yes CNo || CYes @No
Name of Principal Residential Address 55N DOB
Title and or Position pPercentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
OYes (No CiYes (CNo (C:Yes (CNo |
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Title and or Position percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen MA Resident
(Yes (:No C:Yes (No OYes CNo —-I
Additional pages attached? @:Yes (No
CRIMINAL HISTORY
Has any individual listed in question 2, and applicable attachments, ever been convicted of a (C:Yes (2:No
state, Federal or Military Crime? If yes, attach an affidavit providing the details of anyand all convictions.
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT )
Are you requesting approval to utilize a management company through a management agreement?
Please provide a copy of the management agreement. (Yes @ Ng, 2




2. PROPOSED OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST(Continued...)

List all proposed individuals or entities that will have a direct or indirect, beneficial or financial interest in t

Officers, Directors, LLC Managers, LLP Partners, Trustees etc.).

Entity Name

GMRI, Inc.

Percentage of Ownershlp in Entity being Licensed

(Write "NA" if this is the entity being licensed)

100%

his license (E.g. Stockholders,

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Angela Simmons ( |
Title and or Posltion Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Resident
President, Treasurer and Director 0% @Yes CNo || @Yes (CNo CiYes (@®No
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Lindsay Koren : |\
Title and or Position ' Percentage of Ownership Director Us Citizen MA Resident
Secretary and Vice President 0% (Yes (& No @ Yes ONo CYes @No
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Colleen Lyons | : | l[
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director Us Citizen MA Resldent
Assistant Secretary (1% | C:Yes (@:No @ Yes (ONo (:Yes (@:No
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Darden Restaurants, Inc. | [100 Darden Center Drive, Orlando, FL
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Resldent
100% owner of GMRI, Inc. C:Yes (ONo CYes (C:No CYes (C:No
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Resident
C:Yes ()No CYes (CiNo OYes (:No
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Reslident
| i‘ | OYes ONo CiYes C:No | | OYes (CNo
Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB
| |
Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Resident
(:Yes (CNo C:Yes (CiNo CYes No—]‘

CRIMINAL HISTORY

Has any individual identified above ever been convicted of a State, Federal or Military Crime?

If yes, attach an affidavit providing the details of any and all convictions.

C-Yes (& Nc;_.ﬂ

52




2. PROPOSED OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST(Continued...)

List all proposed individuals or entities that will have a direct or indirect, beneficial orfinancial interest in this license (E.g. Stockholders,

Officers, Directors, LLC Managers, LLP Partners, Trustees etc.).

Entity Name Percentage of Ownership In Entity being Licensed

(Write "NA" if this is the entity being licensed)

Darden Restaurants, Inc.

100% owner of GMRI, Inc.

Name of Principal Restdential Address SSN DOB

Publicly Traded Company

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director Us Citizen . MAResident
CYes (No CYes (No CYes (CNo

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director Us Citizen MA Resident
CiYes (ONo (:Yes (C:No (CYes (:No

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN 0OB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Resident
C:Yes (:No C:Yes (No C:Yes (CNo

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director Us Citizen MA Resident
CyYes ('No CYes (CiNo CYes (:No

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Resident
(CYes (C:No C:Yes (:No (OQVYes (:No |

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Resident
(Yes (No C:Yes (:No (CiYes (CNo

Name of Principal Residential Address SSN DOB

Title and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director US Citizen MA Resident
CiYes (O'No C:Yes (:No CYes (C:No

CRIMINAL HISTORY

Has any individual identified above ever been convicted of a State, Federal or Military Crime? (Yes (:No —W

If yes, attach an affidavit providing the details of any and all convictions.

53




APPLICATION FOR AMENDMENT-Change of Officers, Stock or Ownership Interest

3. CURRENT OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST

List the individuals and entities of the current ownership. Attach additional pages if necessary utilizing the format below.

Name of Principal

Title/Position

Percentage of Ownership

Juseph George Kern

Vice President & Secretary

0%

Name of Principal

Title/Position

Percentage of Ownership

Cwlleen Lyons

Assistant Secretary

0%

Name of Principal

Title/Position

Percentage of Ownership

william Roland White lll

Lirector, President & Treasurer

0%

Name of Principal

Title/Position

Perceritage of Ownership

GMRI, Inc.

Stockholder

100%

Name of Principal

Title/Position

Percentage of Ownership

Name of Principal

Title/Position

Percentage of Ownership

4. INTEREST IN AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

Does any individual or entity identified in question 2, and applicable attachments, have any direct or indirect, beneficial or financial

interest in any other license to sell alcoholic beverages?  Yes [{] No [ ] If yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if
necessary, utilizing the table format below.
Name License Type License Name Municipality
See Exhibit A

5. PREVIOUSLY HELD INTEREST IN AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE

Has any individual or entity identified identified in question 2, and applicable attachments, ever held a direct or indirect, beneficial or

financial interest in a license to sell alcoholic beverages, which is not presently held?

Yes

If yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below.

No []

Name License Type License Name Municipality
See Exhibit B
6. DISCLOSURE OF LICENSE DISCIPLINARY ACTION
Have any of the disclosed licenses listed in question 4 or 5 ever been suspended, revoked or cancelled?
Yes No [] If yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below.
Date of Action Name of License City Reason for suspension, revocation or cancellation

See Exhibit C

54




7. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Associated Cost(s): (E.g. Costs associated with License Transaction including but not limited to: Property price,
Business Assets, Renovations costs, Construction costs, Initial Start-up costs, Inventory costs, or specify other

costs):”

Associated Cost(s):

0.00

SOURCE OF CASH CONTRIBUTION

Please provide documentation of available funds. (E.g. Bank or other Financial institution Statements, Bank Letter, etc))

Name of Contributor

Amount of Contribution

Total

SOURCE OF FINANCING
Please provide signed financing documentation.

Name of Lender Amount

Type of Financing

Is the lender a licensee pursuant
to M.G.L. Ch. 138.

C Yes (" No
C Yes ( No
(Yes ( No
CYes ( No

FIMANCIAL INFORMATICHN

Provide a detailed explanation of the form(s) and source(s) of funding for the cost identified above.

55




APPLICANT'S STATEMENT

' | = o
1,1‘30"86" M. Lyons } the: l:]sole proprietor; O partner; il corporate principal; O LLC/LLP manager
Authorized Signatory
0fﬁlare Hospitality International, Inc. L

Name of the Entity/Corporation

hereby submit this application (hereinafter the “Application”), to the local licensing authority (the “L.A”) and the Alcoholic
Beverages Control Commission (the “ABCC” and together with the LLA collectively the “Licensing Authorities”) for approval.

| do hereby declare under the pains and penalties of perjury that have personal knowledge of the information submitted in the
Application, and as such affirm that all statements and representations therein are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.
| further submit the following to be true and accurate:

(1) | understand that each representation in this Application is material to the Licensing Authorities' decision on the
Application and that the Licensing Authorities will rely on each and every answer in the Application and accompanying
documents in reaching its decision; ’

(2) | state that the location and description of the proposed licensed premises are in compliance with state
and local laws and reguiations;

(3) | understand that while the Application is pending, | must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the
information submitted therein. | understand that failure to give such notice to the Licensing Authorities may result in
disapproval of the Application;

(4) 1 understand that upon ap’)prcﬂwal of the Application, | must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the
ownership as approved by the Licensing Authorities. | understand that failure to give such notice to the
Licensing Authorities may result in sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted;

(5) | understand that the licensee will be bound by the statements and representations made in the Application, including,
but not limited to the identity of persons with an ownership or financial interest in the license;

(6) | understand that all statements and representations made become conditions of the license;

(7) | understand that any physical alterations to or changes to the size of the area used for the sale, delivery, storage, or
consumption of alcoholic beverages, must be reported to the Licensing Authorities and may require the prior approval
of the Licensing Authorities;

(8) | understand that the licensee's failure to operate the licensed premises in accordance with the statements and
representations made in 1’h‘e Application may result in sanctions, inciuding the revocation of any license for which the
Application was submitted; and

(9) | understand that any false statement or misrepresentatim’sWili constitute cause for disapproval of the Application or
sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted.

(10) 1 confirm that the applicant corporation and each individuai listed in the ownership section of the application isin
good standing with the Mas: thusetts Department of Revenue and has complied with all laws of the Commonwealth
relating to taxes, reporting M’émployees and contractors, and withholding and remitting of child support,

/s ,
Signature: pd {M ﬁrf/ﬂi e - Date: | {p %1“ 2 \Wﬁ«h

P

Title: ﬁmmsm rt Secretary

56




Commonwealth of Massacimsetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
. 95 Fourth Streei, St :
Chelsea, MA (2150

Suite 3

CORIREQUEST FORM

JEAN M. LORIZiO, ESQ.
CHAIRMAN

The Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission { TABCC™) has

been certified by the Criminal History Systems Board to access

conviction and pending Criminal Offender Record Information ("CORI"). For the purpose of approving each shareholder, owner,

licensee or applicant for an alcoholic beverages

license, | understand that 2 criminal record check will

to the above, The information below is correct o ihe best of mv knowledge.

ABCC LICENSE INFORMATION

ke conducted on me, pursuant

ABCC NUMBER: LICENSEE NAME: | Rare Hospitality International, inc. CITY/TOWN:
(IF EXISTING LICENSEE) , e —_— :

APPLICANT INFORMATION

LAST NAME: [Lyons 1 FiRST NAME: | Coliean MIDDLE NAME: |M

v

MAIDEN NAME OR ALIAS (IF APPLICABLE): |

PLACE OF BIRTH:

NOTARY INFORMATION

DATE OF BIRTH: SSN; I THEFT INDEX PIN (iF APPLICABLE):
MOTHER'S MAIDEN NAME: DRIVER'S LICENSE #: | STATE LIC. ISSUED:
GENDER: AFEMALE HEIGHT: 15 ’ A WEIGHT: L 155 EYE COLOR:  |Blue
CURRENT ADDRESS: ;
CITY/TOWN; STATE: ] 2IP:
FORMER ADDRESS:
. : ]
CITY/TOWN: STATE: 7ip: Bl
M
VXJ
PRINT AND SIGN N
PRINTED NAME: Colleen M, Lyons APPLICANT/EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE: ¥ W,M P J
. v i
N /
o s

On this

VAR

(name of document signer),

its stated purpose.

| befére me, the undersigned riotary publit, personally appeared

proved to me through satisfactory svidence of identification, which were

to be the pérson whose narie is signed on the preceding or attached document, and mci«:?wwlédged to me

fo\\eec

g

v L oas)

R T r I eV AL SV

¥
+*

hmt {(he) (she) saigmd““h-l.rmluntarily fow

P
T VN A
AT m -

MOTARY

CHVISION LISE DMLY

REQUESTED BY: f

i 7 I
. W U vevioest Rl Shit incud

L EEANNE K. CALDERON
MY COMMISSION # GG 320803
EXPIRES: July 17, 2023 A
Bonded Theu Nola.ry Public Underwrilwemrs_“ |

57




Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
65 Fourth Street, Suite 3
Chelsea, MA (2150

CORIREQUEST FORM

JEAN M. LORIZ10, ESQ.
CHAIRMAN

The Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission (
conviction and pending Criminal Offender Rec
licensee or applicant for an aleoholic beverages license,
1o the ahove. The information below is correct 1o

ABCC LICENSE INFORMATION

ord Information ('

“ABCC") has been certified by the Criminal History Systems Board to access
'CORI"). For the purpose of approving each shareholder, owner,
1 understand that a criminal record check will be conducted on me, pursuant
the best of my knowledge.

ABCC NUMBER: LICENSEE NAME: | Rare Hospitality international, Inc. CITY/TOWN:
(IF EXISTING LICENSEE)
APPLICANT INFORMATION
LAST NAME: [Sirmmans FIRST NAME: | el MIDDLE NAME: |M
MAIDEN NAME OR ALIAS (IF APPLICABLE}: 1 PLACE OF BIRTH: |t
f |
DATE OF BIRTH: | _ﬂ S5M: ID THEFT INDEX PIN {IF APPLICABLE):
I | :
MOTHER'3 MAIDEN NAMIE: DRIVER'S LICENSE #: STATE LIC. ISSUED: |
5

———
GENDER: | FERIALE HEIGHT: - 15 4 WEIGHT: |24C- EYE COLOR:  {Browrn
CURRENT ADDRESS:
CITY/TOWN: i | STATE: zp: |
FORMER ADDRESS: |

{
CJTY/TOWN: % STATE: ZIP:
k]
PRINT AND SIGN
PRINTED NAME: A laM Si APPLICANT/EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE: / o
; ngela M. immons : : é_{;: L SR ANTIRD |

NOTARY INFORMATION

Onthis }

| R
LeAZv2n

its stated purpose.

| before mig, the undersigned notaly pubic, personally appeared

(name of document signer}, proved 1o me through satistactory avidence of identification, which were

to be the person whose name 15 signed on the preceding-or attached document, and ac\(nowledged to me that {he) (she) sigred it voluntarily for

T
Qorwoadts

N "
%%ngﬁhﬁ
T%?W%Mmﬂkkm‘%hmwmwwq

{

b, 5. P 1

R 77 T ‘
TM foa e hatd— |
~ wNOTARY [

[HVISHON LISE COIE Y

REQUESTED BY:
e U T A AU ERAT e ———

‘fhe DCI1 identify Theft Index PIN Number is 1 be compl
PIN Number by the DC), Certified agencies it requl
information to ensure the accuracy of the CORI request process,
rivepairrsd to be submitted fm the DI via mail ar by [ax to {617} 660-4614.

eted by those applicants that have been issued an ideatity Thats [
ired to provide aii applicants the opportunily to sl Lt
ALL £t request forms that include this field wve

|

LEEANNEK. CALDERON
MY COMMISSION # GG 320803
EXPIRES: July 17, 2023 i
Bonded TMQ%MMeMﬁIe »

58



JEAN M. LORIZIO, ESQ.
CHAIRMAN )

The Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission "ARCC") has been certified
Criminal Offender Record Information (

conviction and pending

licensee or applicant for an alcoholic beverages

to the abeve. The information be

ABCC LICENSE INFORMATION

Commontealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3

© Chelsea, MA 02150

CORI REQUEST FORM

license, I understand thar a

low is correct o the best of my knowledge.

+(RI™. For the purpose of approving cach sl
criminal record check will be condocted on me, pursuant

by the Criminal History Systems Board 1© access
hareholder, owner,

ABCC NUMBER: ﬁ LICENSEE NAME: |Rare-Hospitality internstional, 4nc. CITY/TOWN:
[iF EXISTING LICENSEE) T ————— L
APPLICANT INFORMATION

LAST NAME: !ﬁmm

1 FIRSTNAME,  |Lindsay

MAIDEN NAME OR ALIAS (IF APPLICABLE):

MIDDLE NAME: jL

PLACE OF BIRTH:

DATE OF BIRTH: l

MOTHER S MAIDEN NANE:

DRIVER’'S LICENSE #:

iD THEFT INDEX PIN (IF APPLICABLE}):

STATE LIC. ISSU£0:

GENDER:EFEMALE % HEIGHT: |5 ‘ WEIGHT: v!iss EYE COLOR:  [Blue
CURRENT ADDRESS: %

L . I r
CITY/TOWN. l E STATE: il

4

FORMER ADDRESS: ]_
CITY/TOWN: 1"" STATE: ay “ Z|P: q\ I‘i
PRINT AND SIGN

s e - ) ‘ i

. T OyEE URE- ) P
PRINTED NAME:  {Lindsay Lt Koren | ApPuCHI/ENPLOYES SIGNATURE 47 i/ vy ;/’ ﬁy/"/ﬁﬁ”rr?/,»&"‘”‘
v i
v

NOTARY INFORMATION

On this

{(name of document signer), proved

its stated purpose.

ta be the person whose name is signed on the preceding

o me through satisfacrory eviderice ot identification, which were

L

before rae, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared

(\“ DNosO ‘1; MW" Comy 5

iy
ey Ad by onOwy

or artached doecument, and acknowledged to fre that {he) (she) s’|@‘m‘mj it voluntarily for

i

o
P

. / ‘
LK M;éf“(f ¢

NOTARY ,j

=

DHVESION USE CINEY

REQUESTED BY:

G TR A T e

The DI sertity TheR iedis PIN Number if b e completed by these Lpplicants that n

fité Number by the DO Certified mgeesing e required i ‘provide
s i to emew the acouracy of the CORI 1equest process. ALL

Jegicd t be submitted to the DTl via mall or by fax w0 1617) 660-4614.

ave Lagw issued i
the appertunity tc
CORI requast forms that inchede o

all appiicants

Bonded Thr Notary Public Underwrters ||

LEEANNE K. CALDERON
MY COMMISSION # GG 320803
EXPIRES: July 17,2023

59




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION

60



CORPORATE VOTE

Rare Hospitality International, inc.

The Board of Directors or LLC Managers of

Entity Mame

duly voted to apply to the Licensing Authority of ﬂ(»ﬂ@ Ww and the
Lity/Towr
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission on 06/17/21

Date of Meeting
For the following transactions (Check all that apply):

Change of Officers/Directors/LLC Manager
D Change of Ownership Interest (LLC Members, LLP Partners, Trustees)

[ tssuance/Transfer of Stock/New Stockholder

D Management/Operating Agreement

Ej Other 1

“\JOTED: To authorize [Colleen M.Lyons

Name of Person

to sign the application submitted and to execute on the Entity's behalf, any necessary papers and
do all things required to have the application granted.”

For Corporations OMLY

A true copy attest, A true copy,attest,
Y
;/;x

s

Ak g

#,‘

Corporate Officer /LLC Manager Signature CO!"W&ﬁm @érk's Signature
Cowneen (w%‘*«-‘ S
(Print Name) (Print Name) v

61



ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

62



RARE Hospitality International, Inc. d/b/a/Longhorn Steakhouse
Ownership Chart

100%

Officers & Directors

100%

Officers & Directors

63



MA Corporations Search Entity Summary https://corp.sec.state.ma.us/CorpWeb/CorpSearch/CorpSummary.aspx?s..‘

Corporations Division
Business Entity Summary

ID Number: 000608167 Request certificate|  New search|

Summary for: RARE HOSPITALITY INTERNATIONAL, INC.

The exact name of the Foreign Corporation: RARE HOSPITALITY INTERNATIONAL, INC,

Entity type: Foreign Corporation
Identification Number: 000608167 Old ID Number: 000000000

Date of Registration in Massachusetts:
03-02-1998

Last date certain:

Organized under the laws of: State: GA Country: USA on: 12-29-1982

Current Fiscal Month/Day: 05/31 Previous Fiscal Month/Day: 05/31

The location of the Principal Office:

Address: 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE

City or town, State, Zip code, ORLANDO, FL 32837 USA
Country:

The location of the Massachusetts office, if any:

Address:

City or town, State, Zip code,
Country:

The name and address of the Registered Agent:

Name: CORPORATE CREATIONS NETWORK INC.

Address: 225 Cedar Hill Street #200

City or town, State, Zip code, MARLBOROUGH, MA 01752 USA
Country:

The Officers and Directors of the Corporation:

64

1 of2 5/21/2021, 12:18 PM



MA Corporations Search Entity Summary https://corp.sec.state.ma.us/CorpWeb/Cor] Search/CorpSummary.aspx?s...
p Y 1Y

Title Individual Name Address

PRESIDENT ANGELA M. SIMMMONS 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,
FL 32837 USA

TREASURER ANGELA M. SIMMMONS 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,
FL 32837 USA

SECRETARY LINDSAY L. KOREN 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,
FL 32837 USA

ASSISTANT COLLEEN H LYONS 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,

SECRETARY FL 32837 USA

VICE LINDSAY L. KOREN 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,

PRESIDENT FL 32837 USA

DIRECTOR ANGELA M. SIMMMONS 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,
FL 32837 USA

Business entity stock is publicly traded:

The total number of shares and the par value, if any, of each class of stock which
this business entity is authorized to issue:

Total Authorized Total issued and
outstanding

Class of Stock Par value per share
No. of shares Total par No. of shares
value
CNP $ 0.00 100 $ 0.00 100
: . Confidential Merger
Consent Data Allowed Manufacturing

View filings for this business entity:

ALL FILINGS

Amended Foreign Corporations Certificate
Annual Report

Annual Report - Professional

P o L o b gy Famoe U¥ e emmb s st

Comments or notes associated with this business entity:

[New search

65

20f2 5/21/2021,12:18 PM



A Corporations Search Entity Summary

iof2

Corporations Division

Business Entity Summary

ID Number: 591219168 [Request certificate|  [New search|

Summary for: GMRI, INC.

The exact name of the Foreign Corporation: GMRI, INC.

The name was changed from: GENERAL MILLS RESTAURANTS, INC on 04-07-1995
The name was changed from: GENERAL MILLS RESTAURANT GROUP on 06-15-1987

Entity type: Foreign Corporation

Identification Number: 591219168 Old ID Number:

Date of Registration in Massachusetts:
04-06-1976

Last date certain:

Organized under the laws of: State: FL Country: USA on: 03-27-1968

Current Fiscal Month/Day: 05/31 Previous Fiscal Month/Day: 05/31

The location of the Principal Office:

Address: 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE

City or town, State, Zip code, ORLANDO, FL 32837 USA
Country:

The location of the Massachusetts office, if any:

Address:

City or town, State, Zip code,
Country:

The name and address of the Registered Agent:

Name: CORPORATE CREATIONS NETWORK INC.
Address: 225 Cedar Hill Street #200

City or town, State, Zip code, MARLBOROUGH, MA 01752 USA
Country:

The Officers and Directors of the Carporation:

Title Individual Name Address

PRESIDENT ANGELA M. SIMMONS 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,
FL 32837 USA

TREASURER ANGELA M. SIMMONS 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,
FL 32837 USA

SECRETARY LINDSAY L. KOREN 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,
FL 32837 USA

ASSISTANT COLLEEN H LYONS 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,

SECRETARY FL 32837 USA

VICE LINDSAY L. KOREN 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,

PRESIDENT FL 32837 USA

66
5/19/2021, 2:19 PM

https://corp.scc.state.ma.us/CorpWeb/CorpSearch/CorpSummary.aspx?s..4




A Corporations Search Entity Summary https://corp.sec.state.ma.us/CorpWeb/CorpSearch/CorpSummaIy.aspx?s...

DIRECTOR ANGELA M. SIMMONS 1000 DARDEN CENTER DRIVE ORLANDO,
FL 32837 USA

Business entity stock is publicly traded: [

The total number of shares and the par value, if any, of each class of stock which
this business entity is authorized to issue:

Total Authorized Total issued and
outstanding
Class of Stock Par value per share
No. of shares Total par No. of shares
value
CwWP $ 1.00 50,000 $ 50000.00 23,970
] (J confidential (JMerger O
Consent Data Allowed Manufacturing

View filings for this business entity:

ALL FILINGS

Amended Foreign Corporations Certificate
Annual Report

Annual Report - Professional

P Ty T O L i e W el atl e F el s W K

Comments or notes associated with this business entity:

67
Lof2 5/19/2021,2:19 PM



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549
| FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from __ to _
Commission File Number: 1-13666

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Florida 59-3305930
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)
1000 Darden Center Drive, Orlando, ¥lorida 32837
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (407) 245-4000

Securities registered pursunant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Trading Symbol Mame of each sxohange on which pegl
Common Stock, without par value DRI New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Secusties Act. Yes X No [J
Indicate by check mark if Regjistrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Act. Yes (1 No

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant (1) has filed all reposts required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 moniths (or for such
shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes IXI No Oa

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant
to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes IXI No O

Indicate by check mark wiisther the Registrant is a large accelurnied filer, an acoelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company, See definition of “large accelerated filer,”
“accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 173 of the Exchange Act. (Cheek one):

Large accelerated filer X Accelerated filer Od
Nop-accelerated filer O (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company O
Emerging growth company O

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not fo use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting
standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its intemal control over financial reporting under
Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (15 U.S.C. 7262(b)) by the registered public accounting firm that prepared or issued its audit report.
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act): Yes (1 No
The aggregate market value of Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant based on the closing price of $114.67 per share as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on
November 22, 2019, was approximately: $13,915,679,000.
Number of shares of Common Stock outstanding as of May 31, 2020: 129,893,801.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of Shareholders on September 23, 2020, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days
after May 31, 2020, are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Report.

68



DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC
FORM 10-K
FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART]I Page
Item 1. Buginess 1
Item 1A. Rigk Factorg 16
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Coment 26
Ttem 2. Broperties 26
Ttem 3 Leeal Prog 26
Ttem 4. Wine Safery Diselpsures 26
PARTII
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Comman Equity, I elated Stockhelder Matters god lssugr Purchases of Equity Securitics 27
Item 6. Selected Financial Uit 29
Item 7. Manasement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and | Leaults of Operations 31
Item 7A. Chuantitative g d Oualitative Disclosures About Market Risk . 43
Ttem 8. Finanginl Staternents and Supplementary Data 45
Ttem 9. Chanees in agd Disagresments with Acpountants on Accounting and Finangisl Disclosure 89
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 89
Item 9B. Other Information 8
PARTIII
Item 10. Dircctors, Executive Officers gyl Corporate Governance 89
Ttem 11. Executive Compensation 89
Ttem 12. Soeurity Ownership of Cortain Peneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockhelder Matters 90
Ttem 13. Certain Relatipnships and Related Transgetions. and Director Independence 90
Ttem 14. Principal Aceouptant Fees and Services 90
PART IV
Item 15. hibits and Finangial Statnent Schedules 20

Signatures A

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

ig report regarding the expected increase in the number of our restaurants and capital expenditures in fiscal

all other statements that are not hisios cts, ncluding witheut limitation statements with respect to the financial condition, results of operations,
tives, futmre performmee and busmess of Darden Festaurants, I, ad its subsiciarios that are preceded by, followed by er that inchude words such as
may,” Pl “expect,” Umtend,” “anticipate,” “epntinue,” “estimate,” “project,” believe,” “plan,” “outlowl or similar expressions, are forward-lonking
slatements within the meaning of the Private Seourities Litipation Reform Act of 1995 and are inciuded, along with this statement, for purposes of cornplying with
the safe harbor provisions of that Act. Any forerd-looking statements gpeak only as of the date on which such statements are made, and we undertake oo

ation to update such statements for any reason to reflect events or civoumstances arising after such date, By their natwee, forward-looking stateroents invulve
indies that could cause actual results to differ materially from those set forth in ar implied by such forward-looking statements. In addition to the

risks and uneertamnties of ordinary business obligations, and those desoribed i information incorporated inte thus report, the forward-looking statements contamed
ine s raport are sulject w the risks md uneeriainties des

s 4

Statements sel forth in or corporated i
2021, and

oy

hed in Tem 1A below under the beading “Risk Factors.”

69



PROOF OF US CITIZENSHIP

70



M U

7 FIRMA BEL TITULAR

71



UNITED STAT

- Dite of Bt/ Date de f

=

72



LIST OF EXHIBITS

Change of Officer Application — Rare Hospitality International, Inc.

Exhibit A LICENSES IN WHICH APPLICANT HAS AN INTEREST

Exhibit B- LICENSES IN WHICH THE APPLICANT PREVIOUSLY HAD AN

INTEREST

Exhibit C - SUSPENSIONS, REVOCATIONS OR CANCELLATIONS

73



EXHIBIT A

74



EXHIBIT A

LICENSES IN WHICH THE APPLICANT HAS OR HAD AN INTEREST

The ultimate 100% owner of the Licensee, Darden Restaurants, Inc., a publicly traded
company, is a large, multi-national company with over 1500 restaurants across the United States,
under several concept names, including Longhorn Steakhouse, Capital Grille, Capital Burger,
Bahama Breeze, Season’s 52, Olive Garden, Eddie V’s, and Yard House. The company also
divested itself of over 500 Red Lobster restaurants through sale, and has closed or sold other
restaurants in multiple states, including Massachusetts.

Attached please find a list of Massachusetts restaurants ultimately owned by Darden. A complete
list of licenses is not available.

75



Restaurant
Olive Garden #1419
Olive Garden #1436
Olive Garden #1511
Olive Garden #1523
Olive Garden #1626
Olive Garden #1639
Olive Garden #1659
Olive Garden #1674
Olive Garden #1686
Olive Garden #1730
Olive Garden #1804
Olive Garden #1808
Olive Garden #1825
Olive Garden #1868
Olive Garden #1874
Bahama Breeze #3048
Seasons 52 #4530
Seasons 52 #4538
Yard House #8326
Yard House #8336
Yard House #8348
Yard House #8381
LongHorn Steakhouse #5140
LongHorn Steakhouse #5145
LongHorn Steakhouse #5156
LtongHorn Steakhouse #5158
LongHorn Steakhouse #5181
LongHorn Steakhouse #5196
LongHorn Steakhouse #5226
LongHorn Steakhouse #5233
LongHorn Steakhouse #5284
LongHorn Steakhouse #5296
LongHorn Steakhouse #5310
LongHorn Steakhouse #5323
LongHorn Steakhouse #5325
LongHorn Steakhouse #5518
LongHorn Steakhouse #5595
Capital Burger #3202
Capital Grille #8004
Capital Grille #8028
Capital Grille #8047
Eddie V's #8523
Eddie V's #8524

List of MA Restaurants

Address
80 North Dartmouth Mall
1240 Newport Ave.
1 Worcester Rd
1095 lyanough Rd
728 Donald Lynch Blvd
422 Middlesex Road
401 Technology Center Drive
11 B Allstate Rd
3 Orchard Hill Park Drive
102 Colony Place Rd
919 Riverdale Street
392 Patriot Place South TS Building
90 Pleasant Valley Ave
7 Tobias Boland Way
153 Andover St
413 Middlesex Road
6 Wayside Road
220 Boylston St. Chestnut Hills Mall
200 Legacy Place
126 Brookline Avenue
340 Market Street
108 Middlesex Turnpike
250 Franklin Village Drive
227 N Main St
191 Boston Post Road W
1250 S Washington St Fashion Crossing Mall
59 Plaistow Rd
1105 Riverdale St
70 Worcester Providence Drive Suite 635
800 Route 44
1910 Andover St
390 West St
125 Church Street
2421 Cranberry Highway
39 Walker'S Brook Drive
80 Highland Avenue
1325 Broadway
159 Newbury Street
250 Boylston Street
10 Wayside Road
900 Boylston St.
800 Boylston Street Suite 185
50 South Avenue

Pagel1of 1

City
North Dartmouth
South Attleboro
Framingham
Hyannis
Marlborough
Tyngsborough
Stoughton
Dorchester
Leominster
Plymouth
West Springfield
Foxborough
Methuen
Worcester
Danvers
Tyngsborough
Burlington
Newton
Dedham
Boston
Lynnfield
Burlington
Franklin
Leominster
Marlborough
North Attleboro
Haverhill
West Springfield
Millbury
Raynham
Tewksbury
Mansfieid
Pembroke
Wareham
Reading
Seekonk
Saugus
Boston
Chestnut Hill
Burlington
Boston
Boston
Burlington

State
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA

Zip Code
027474314
027038004
01701
026011830
01752
018791021
020724720
021251606
014537019
02360
01089
02035
01844
01607
01923
01879
01803
02467
02026
02215
01940
01803
02038
014532219
017521840
02760
01830
010894615
01527
02767
01876
02048
02359
02571
01867
02771
01906
02116
024672001
01803
02115
01299
01803

76



EXHIBIT B

77



EXHIBIT B

LICENSES IN WHICH THE APPLICANT HAS OR HAD AN INTEREST

The ultimate 100% owner of the Licensee, Darden Restaurants, Inc., a publicly traded
company, is a large, multi-national company with over 1500 restaurants across the United States,
under several concept names, including Longhom Steakhouse, Capital Grille, Bahama Breeze,
Season’s 52, Olive Garden, Eddie V’s, and Yard House. The company also recently divested itself
of over 500 Red Lobster restaurants through sale, and has closed or sold other restaurants in

multiple states.

A complete list of previously-held licenses is not available.

78



EXHIBIT C

79



EXHIBIT C

SUSPENSIONS, REVOCATIONS, OR CANCELLATIONS

Darden Restaurants, Inc., a publicly traded company, owns over 1,500 affiliated restaurant locations
across the United States under several different concepts, several of which operate in Massachusetts
(Olive Garden, LongHorn Steakhouse, Capital Grill, Capital Burger, Yard House, Seasons 52). A
Jist of suspensions for licenses held across the country by Darden Restaurants, Inc. and its affiliates

is attached.

80



GMRY, INC.
RECORD OF LICENSE SUSPENSIONS
[updated 1/30/19]

GMR], Inc. and its affiliates own and operate over 1,600 restaurants in 50 states.

GMRYI, Inc. d/b/a The Olive Garden Italian Restaurant

Rest. #
#1096
#1156
#1200

#1096
#1411
#1289
#1056
#1388
#1306
#1411
#1444
#1399
#1104
#1249
#1536
#1289
#1593
#1511
#1154
#1729
#1729
#1609
#1121
#1847
#1534
#1881
#1686
#1411

#1727

hltps://dcv]in]awoﬂices-my.sharcpoint.com/persona]/jdevlin_ucdlaw_com/Documcnts/A - Upton, Connell, Devlin/THD - Clients/Darden - Officer Change Lig¢say Koren

City, State

Downers Grove, IL
West Dundee, IL
Maplewood, MN

Downers Grove, IL
Boulder, CO
Johnson City, TN
Independence, MO
Orange, CT

Salt Lake City, UT
Boulder, CO
Concord, NH

Salt Lake City, UT
Chattanooga, TN
Chino, CA
Gurnee, IL
Johnson City, TN
Thomton, CO
Framingham, MA
Arlington Heights, IL
Rome, GA

Rome, GA

Santa Fe, NM
Albuquerque, NM
Farmington, NM
Maple Grove, MN
Gainesville, GA
Leominster, MA
Boulder, CO
Denver, CO

Occurrence
License suspended for 1 day (6/26/89) for sale to minor.
Suspended for 1 day (8/27/90) for sale to minor.

2 day suspension (9/2-3/92) - failure to register the new general manager (also the local license

holder)

License suspended for 1 day (7/13/95) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 1 day (1/28/96) for sale to minor.

City beer permit suspended for 6 days (3/8 —3/13/99) for sale to minor.
License suspended for 1 day (8/4/99) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 3 days (6/5, 6 & 7/00) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 5 days 1/28 - 2/1/01 for sale to minor.

License suspended for 4 days 2/1-2/4/02 for sale to minor.

License suspended for 3 days beginning 10/21/02 for sale to minor.
License suspended for 5 days beginning 11/25/02 for improper dispensing.
City beer permit suspended for sale to minor (1/16-1/20/03).

License suspended for 25 days beginning 5/13/04 for sale to minor.
License suspended for 1 day (7/26/04) for sale to minor.

City beer permit suspended for 5 days (11/2/04 — 11/7/04) for sale to minor.
License suspended for 1 day (3/22/05) for sale to minor.

License suspended 9/28/05 for non-sale to minor violations.

License suspended for one day 1/3/06 for sale to minor.

City license suspended for four days 12/5/07 — 12/8/07 for sale to minor.
City license suspended for six days 8/5/08 — 8/10/08 for sale to minor violation.
License suspended for 1 day (07/02/10) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 1 day (09/12/10) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 1 day (11/12/10) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 2 days (08/01/2011-08/02/2011) for sale to minor.
License suspended for 3 days (10/31/2011-11/02/2011) for sale to minor.
License suspended for 1 day (12/21/2011) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 2 days (06/03/2012-06/04/2012) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 25 days; actively served 8 days (2/24/2013-3/3/2013) 17 days in abeyance for

1 year; sale to minor {3); Failure to provide documents.

from Joe Kem 3-2021/SUSPENSION LIST - GMRI Only.doc



#1644
#1436
#1815
#1206
#1801
#1840
#1794
#1523
#1794
#1893
#1721
#1794
#1847
#1206
#1523
#1593
#1534

Taunton, MA
Attleboro, MA
South Jordan, UT
Layton, UT

West Valley, UT
Las Cruces, NM
Spring Hill, TN
Hyannis, MA
Spring Hill, TN
Cleveland, TN
Memphis, TN
Spring Hill, TN
Farmington, NM
Layton, UT
Hyannis, MA
Thomton, CO
Maple Grove, MN

GMRYI, Inc. d/b/a Seasons 52

Rest. # City, State
#4530 Burlington, MA
#4544 Lone Tree, CO

GMR], Inc. d/b/a Red Lobster

Rest. # City, State

#612 Gainesville, GA
#285 Chattanooga, TN
#60 Independence, MO
#273 Rome, GA

#285 Chattanooga, TN
#36 Athens, GA
#235 Alexandria, VA
#641 Grand Forks, ND
#6215 Lone Tree, CO
#0328 Northglenn, CO
#6215 Lone Tree, CO

https://devlinIawofﬁces-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jdevlin_ucdIaw_com/Documents/A - Upton, Connell, Deviin/JHD - Clients/Darden - Officer Change Lindsay Koren from

License suspended for 1 day (09/25/2013) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 1 day (11/18/2013) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 10 days (10) for sale to minor (11/24/14 - 12/4/14).
License suspended for 10 days (10) for sale to minor (7/29/15 — 8/8/15).
License suspended for 10 days (10) for sale to minor (8/10/15 — 8/20/15).
License suspended for one (1) day for sale to minor (3/25/16).

Beer license suspended for 18 days for sale to minor (5/11/16-5/28/16).
License suspended for (1) day for sale to minor (2/6/16)

License suspended for seven (7) days for sale to minor (12/7/16 — 12/16/16).
License suspended for four (4) days for sale to minor (12/11/16 — 12/14/16).
License suspended for five (5) days for sale to minor (12/11/16 — 12/15/16).
License suspended for forty (40) days for sale to minor (01/02/17 - 02/10/17).
License suspended for one (1) day (2/22/17) for sale to minor.

License suspended for eighteen (18) days for sale to minor (4/24/17 — 5/12/17).
License suspended for two (2) days for sale to minor (1/23/18 -1/24/18)
License suspended for 1 day (10/31/18) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 2 days (1/15/19-1/16/19) for sale to minor.

Occurrence

License suspended for 1 day (11/3/14) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 1 day (1/1/15) & 2 days in abeyance for 1 year for sale to minor.

Occurrence

License suspended for 4 days for a sale to minor (11/2, 3, 4, & 5/97).
Suspension of city beer license for 30 days beginning 12/26/00 for sale to minor.
License suspended for 1 day 3/26/01 for sale to a minor.

License suspended for 4 days 11/07 -11/10/01 for sale to minor.

City beer permit suspended for 30 days beginning 6/24/02 for sale to minor.
Suspended for 10 days beginning 11/5/02 for sale to minor.

License suspended for 5 days (3/26 - 3/30/03) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 1 day (6/9/03) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 3 days (1/23-25, 2006) for sale to minor.

License suspended for 3 days (4/28, 29 & 30, 2006) for sale to minor.
License suspended for 6 days (8/27-9/1, 2006) for sale to minor.

Joe Kem 3-2021/SUSPENSION LIST - GMRI Only.doc 2



#0157 Golden Valley, MN License suspended for 1 day (11/20/06) for sale to minor.

#6244 Orem, UT License suspended for 6 days (1/8/07-1/13/07) for allowing guest to leave premises with an
alcoholic beverage.

#0433 Kennesaw, GA License suspended for 14 days (3/14/07-3/28/07) for sale to minor.

#0211 Richmond, VA License suspended for 3 days (9/28/08 — 10/1/08) for sale to ninor.

#6215 Lone Tree, CO License suspended for 1 day (11/28/08) for sale to minor.

#6251 Maple Grove, MN License suspended for 2 days (1/26 - 1/27/09) for sale to minor.

#0224 Blaine, MN License suspended for 2 days (1/26-27/09) for sale to minor.

#0392 Smyrna, GA License suspended for 1 day (11/23/09) for sale to minor.

#0749 Clovis, NM License suspended for 1 day (5/20/11) for sale to minor.

#0600 Farmington, NM License suspended for 1 day (7/4/14) for sale to minor.

GMR], Inc. d/b/a Smokey Bones Barbeque and Grill
Rest. # City, State Occurrence

#7544 Gainesville, GA License suspended for 7 days (4/15/04) for sale to minor.

htlps://devlinlawotﬁc&c—my.sharepoint.com/personal/jdevlin_uodlaw_com/Documents/A - Upton, Connell, Devlin/JHD - Clients/Darden - Officer Change Lindsay Koren from

Joe Kem 3-2021/SUSPENSION LIST - GMRI Only.doc 3
83



.
0

0
v

i

o

15100
sse

v

Presented By
reation

Rec
Readmyg Youth Lacro

Readmo United Soccer Club

50
=
©

%
i

L
<
b
A
;‘4—(
L
L
<
|
.
@®
@




Background

Stadium Turf will be under construction

i

April 15

startmg

20 hours of

mng over

tons will be los
e each week.

nizatt

Organt
turf

ttm

tice

Morte than half of those hours are prac
hours under the lights on weekdays.

used in the past to accommodate more field

Portable light poles have been approved and
space.




i }
|l

JSSOIORT PUL FIID0Y
‘UoNEIOY Boamioq Ids oq [ SIYSI JO 1S0))

JJO PUE TO UIN] 0} STOJDIII(] NFBI | 0} UIAIS 9(
[[4 PUE YD0] OQUIOD & (I PIIO[ 3 [[IM $IYST ]

AJuo soonoerd
J0J pasn o [\ pue widg [AUN BOo 9 [ SIYST

@G 1 Aun| — ;,G1 Edy
wo1J 93pIo0") e sorod 1ysIy oqesrod 4 20¥[J

iy

SRS




Placement

. |
A
i

i

AL
i)




SUIIDUOD
90T0A 0} SUTIOITN ONTWWO ) TONELIIIN] 9} 18 dn pamoys sTI0qUSIou moJ

98S0I0E[
70 19200s Ut 9)edonred oym USIP[IYD PEY OYA SII[FWE] 9T SISPO ‘SIIN(E
orom owos ‘(3oxoed ot ur Juasard sprewo) sprewo 330ddns aantsod poaredIy

3umooTy
99JTWIIO ) VOTIEIIOIY 93 0} WA 9JTAUT pue 109loxd o3 wo Wy WIoJur
0} 791397 ® ouT] L339doxd 93p1r007) JO SNIPET )G & UIPIA STONNJE JUIS

iy

oeqpas,] POOYFOqUSIN




wd((): 1sed vo 1doy
9q Aewr SIYSY O JeY) POUIIOVOD ST OYM JNINGe Aut 01 souoyd [[90 J1OY) 1IN0 2AIS 0 SUIA dFT ST0IDFN(] INOX Y
¢uo 1doy] axe sIg3n Jriegp .

"SOOULISWINDIID SUNENUIIXD TT Pasn Ao oFe SIYSH 9[qerod 1Bl s30qUSoU PaInssy iy

JUIPIDAIJ € SUmMIS .

"pooed ore Lot} wondOTIp

O} UT 3] ()S INOQE JUIYS A[UO SIYSF] "paisnipe oq osfe ued ojod o) BO SOFNIXTY JYSI [eNIdE O I, "0sTF 0) oFom wofqord
© JT GOTED0[ YA J[qIXO[J 9q OS[e UED OM PUE P[OFJ O} O SUIYs 01 APoorp pauonisod ore sjydr| ‘pooyroqusou

o) U $701INE O} SUIPUNOIINS SOTY] 997} JUIIIND UL} JOMO] A[SUToos “Ysn] 1J()¢ A[uo oxe sojod ysry 1y

sowioy ojur SururyS IYsry .

10edwr 0SI0U SUTWIIOIOP OS[E O JOPUIA [EIUDT 0] TMOP JUIM JOJEFISIUTWPY TOREIIIY

"SP[OY 91 BO s3osN 10271p 1sed 01 Surpr0o0E 10edWT OSTOU MO A30A oARY pUe 1sed oY) UT PIsN U9 OABY STOILIOUIL) Iy
SI01EIOUQS WIOIJ ISTON]

PoNUNUOT) YOBeqPad,] POOYIOqUIIIN




yuounreda(J [00YDS F0F OMF(O) [EFIT)

UONEAIISUO )

SONTT,]

MAdA

L]

iy

UOTIEDTUNWWO,) [BUFNU] FOYI()




MO Jjuey,

JSuonsanQ)




Fiorente, Genevieve

From: Gil Moreira <mrrainmker@aol.com>

Sent: Thursday, February 10, 2022 12:38 PM

To: Fiorente, Genevieve

Cc: mrrainmker@aol.com

Subject: Requesting auth for portable lighting at Coolidge lacrosse fields
Hi Jenna,

It’s been forever! | hope you're doing well.

As the stadium turf is being replaced, | am requesting that you please authorize the use of temporary lighting at
Coolidge Middle School for lacrosse practices this year.

Thank you very much :)

Greg Moreira
978-580-0443

This office absolutely does not send or receive wired funds, and we do not participate in the wiring
process. This email and any documents attached to it are subject to attorney-client

privilege and contain confidential information intended only for the
person(s) to whom this email is addressed. If you have received this email
in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone or email and
destroy this email and any documents attached to it without making a copy.
Please excuse any typographical errors. Thank you.

Sent from my iPhone. Please excuse any typographical errors.

92



Fiorente, Genevieve

M

From: Pete Torell <petetorell@yahoo.com>
Sent: Friday, February 11, 2022 3:48 PM
To: Fiorente, Genevieve

Subject: Portable Lights

Jenna,

I wanted to reach out to you to express my support of the portable lights at Coolidge for the upcoming season.

Itis truly disappointing that the project at the Stadium did not start right when the football season ended or was pushed to
summer.

Spring is really a tough season because of the early darkness and the loss of the facility for the youth and the RMHS
Track Program.

Regards,

Pete

93



Fiorente, Genevieve

'mm

From: ANGELA MCCOLGAN <ajsorge@comcast.net>
Sent: Sunday, February 13, 2022 6:07 PM

To: Fiorente, Genevieve

Subject: Coolidge Temporary lights

Hil

My name is Angela McColgan. My husband Eddie and | live at 78 Whittier Road. We have been living
here since 2007 and have enjoyed being close in proximity to all the fields ect. We have 3 children.
Tim-13, Ali-10 and Katie-7. All three children will be playing Reading lacrosse this spring and | am
writing in support of the temporary lighting at Coolidge Middle School. We realize the building of the
new high school turf will be a great addition down the road and support the rebuild but at the same
time we realize this will displace much needed space for these youth athletes. Athletics the past two
years have been so broken up due to Covid and these kids should be given the chance to practice,
play and be with teammates as much as they can!

I am asking as a parent, neighbor and Reading resident to support this temporary lighting at the
Coolidge Middle School.

Thank you and feel free to reach out with any questions ect!

The McColgan Family
78 Whittier Road

94



Fiorente, Genevieve
M

From: Christopher Haley <chris@intellibeam.com>
Sent: Friday, February 11, 2022 11:04 AM

To: Fiorente, Genevieve

Subject: Portable lights @Cooledge

Good morning Jenna,

As an abutter (71 Tennyson Rd) to Cooledge Middle School, I am in full support of portable temporary lights being added
for the turf there.

Thank you much,

Christopher Haley

Solutions Architect | Intellibeam

Technology of tomorrow, today! ®

Office: 617.657.9434 x201 | Cell: 617.701.7569
chris@intellibeam.com | www.intellibeam.com
2 Haven Street Suite #301 Reading, MA 01867

%W(% i WWWWWM%

Wi g ol 0§D

93



Fiorente, Genevieve

M

From: Michael Connelly <maconnelly10@yahoo.com>
Sent: Friday, February 11, 2022 12:16 PM

To: Fiorente, Genevieve

Subject: Reading Lacrosse Lighting Proposal

Good Afternoon Jenna,

I hope all is well with you. It has come to my attention that members of the Reading Youth Lacrosse Association will be
presenting a proposal next week to include temporary lights at Coolidge Middle School this spring, while the stadium turf
field is being replaced.

| am writing to express my strong support of this project. | live at 9 Tennyson Road and would be considered an abutter to
Coolidge Middle School and such a project. | am confident that most residents in the neighborhood would be in full
support of this project as well. Like me, many families in the neighborhood have young children participating in various
sports and recreational programs in Town, and would not want to see practice times and activities which are much
needed, especially during these times, impacted this spring season.

If this project helps young athletes not only involved in Youth Lacrosse but other programs in Town this spring continue to
have the same opportunities and access to team sports, | am 100% in support of such a proposal and commend those
involved for thinking creatively to come with a plan that works while the Turf field is being replaced.

Thank you for all that you do for the Town of Reading's recreational programs, and if | can be of any further assistance
with support of this project, please let me know.

Thanks again,
Michael Connelly

9 Tennyson Road
Reading, MA

Michael Anthony Connelly maconnelly10@yahoo.com

96



Fiorente, Genevieve
M

From: Charlie Hardy <charliehardy20@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, February 10, 2022 2:13 PM

To: Fiorente, Genevieve

Subject: lights for Coolidge

Jenna

I am in favor of having lights on coolidge for the Spring season

We need the space to replace the football as a practice and game facility
charlie Hardy

97



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

Middlesex, ss. Officer's Return, Town of Reading:

By virtue of this Warrant, | on

2022

notified and warned the inhabitants of the Town of Reading, quallfled to vote on Town affalrs to
meet at the place and at the time specified by posting attested copies of this Town Meeting
Warrant, in the following public places within the Town of Reading:

Precinct 1

Precinct 2

Precinct 3

Precinct 4

Precinct 5

Precinct 6

Precinct 7

Precinct 8

J. Warren Killam School, 333 Charles Street
Reading Police Station, 15 Union Street

Reading Municipal Light Department, 230 Ash Street
Joshua Eaton School, 365 Summer Avenue
Reading Public Library, 64 Middlesex Avenue
Barrows School, 16 Edgemont Avenue

Birch Meadow School, 27 Arthur B Lord Drive

Wood End School, 85 Sunset Rock Lane

Town Hall, 16 Lowell Street

The date of posting being not less than fourteen (14) days prior to April 5, 2022, the date set for
Town Meeting in this Warrant.

Constable

A true copy Attest:

Laura Gemme, Town Clerk

98



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

Middlesex, ss.

To any of the Constables of the Town of Reading, Greetings:

In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, you are hereby required to notify and
warn the inhabitants of the Town of Reading, qualified to vote in the Local Elections and Town
affairs, to meet in the following place designated for the eight precincts in said Town, namely:

Precincts 1,2, 3,4,5,6,7 and 8

Reading Memorial High School, Hawkes Field House, Oakland Road

TUESDAY, the FIFTH DAY OF APRIL, A.D., 2022

from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. to act on the following Articles, viz:

ARTICLE 1 To elect by ballot the following Town Officers:

A Moderator for one year,

Two members of the Select Board for three years;

Two members of the Board of Library Trustees for three years;
Two members of the Municipal Light Board for three years;
Two members of the School Committee for three years;

One hundred and ninety-two Town Meeting Members shall be elected to represent
each of the following precincts:

Precinct 1

Precinct 2

Precinct 3

Precinct 4

Precinct 5

Precinct 6

Precinct 7

Eight members for three years; eight members for two years; and eight
members for one year;
Eight members for three years; eight members for two years; and eight
members for one year;
Eight members for three years; eight members for two years; and eight
members for one year;
Eight members for three years; eight members for two years; and eight
members for one year;
Eight members for three years; eight members for two years; and eight
members for one year;
Eight members for three years; eight members for two years; and eight
members for one year;
Eight members for three years; eight members for two years; and eight
members for one year;

99



Precinct 8 Eight members for three years; eight members for two years; and eight
members for one year;

and to meet at the Reading Memorial High School, 62 Oakland Road, in said Reading on
MONDAY, the TWENTY-FIFTH DAY of APRIL A.D., 2022

at seven-thirty o’clock in the evening, at which time and place the following Articles are to be acted
upon and determined exclusively by Town Meeting Members in accordance with the provisions
of the Reading Home Rule Charter.

ARTICLE 2 To hear and act on the reports of the Select Board, School Committee,
Library Trustees, Municipal Light Board, Finance Committee, Bylaw Committee, Town Manager,
Town Accountant and any other Town Official, Board or Committee.

Select Board

ARTICLE 3 To choose all other necessary Town Officers and Boards or Committees
and determine what instructions shall be given to Town Officers and Boards or Committees, and
to see what sum the Town will vote to appropriate by borrowing or transfer from available funds,
or otherwise, for the purpose of funding Town Officers and Boards or Committees to carry out the
instructions given to them, or take any other action with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 4 To see if the Town will vote to amend the FY 2022-32 Capital
Improvements Program as provided for in Section 7-7 of the Reading Home Rule Charter and as
previously amended, or take any other action with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE § To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town’s Operating Budget for the
Fiscal Year commencing July 1, 2021, as adopted under Article 16 of the Annual Town Meeting
of April 26, 2021 and amended under Article 4 of the Special Town Meeting of October 18, 2021
and further amended under Article 4 of the Subsequent Town Meeting of November 8, 2021; and
to see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, borrow or transfer from available funds, or
otherwise provide a sum or sums of money to be added to the amounts appropriated under said
Article, as amended, for the operation of the Town and its government, or take any other action
with respect thereto.

Finance Committee

ARTICLE 6 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available
funds, borrow or otherwise provide a sum or sums of money to pay bills remaining unpaid from
prior fiscal years for goods and services actually rendered to the Town, or take any other action
with respect thereto.

Select Board

100



ARTICLE 7 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available
funds, borrow or otherwise provide a sum or sums of money for the purpose of funding the
irrevocable trust for “Other Post-Employment Benefits Liabilities” or take any other action with
respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 8 To see if the Town will vote to transfer funds received from the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts in payment for development within the Town’s 40R Smart
Growth Zoning Districts from Free Cash into the Smart Growth Stabilization Fund; or take any
other action with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 9 To see if the Town will vote to (1) establish the limit on the total amount
that may be expended from each revolving fund established by Article 9 of the Town of Reading
General Bylaw pursuant to Section 53E%2 of Chapter 44 of the Massachusetts General Laws for
the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021; and (2) amend Section 6.5.2 of the General Bylaw,
establishing the Inspection Revolving Fund, as shown below, with the additions being shown in
bold and deletions being struck through:

6.5.2 Inspection Revolving Fund

Funds held in the Inspection Revolving Fund shall be used for legal costs, oversight
and inspection, plan review, property appraisals and appeals, public services general
management, pedestrian safety improvements, records archiving, and other costs
related to building, plumbing, wiring, gas and other permits required for large
construction projects and shall be expended by the Town Manager. Receipts credited
to this fund shall include building, plumbing, wiring, gas and other permit fees for

the Schoolhouse Commons, The Metropolitan at Reading Station, Postmark Square,
20-24 Gould Street, 467 Main Street, Oaktree, Addison-Wesley/Pearson, Johnson
Woods, Eaton Lakeview (23-25 Lakeview Avenue and 128 Eaton Street), 258 Main
Street, 267 Main Street, 531 Main Street, 25 Haven Street, 18-20 Woburn Street, 6-16
Chute Street (Green Tomato), 25 Haven Street (Rite Aid) and 459 Main Street (128
Tire) developments.

Or take any other action with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 10 To see if the Town will vote to approve an Affordable Housing Trust Fund
Allocation Plan pursuant to Chapter 140 of the Acts of 2001 entitled “AN ACT AUTHORIZING
THE TOWN OF READING TO ESTABLISH AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND,” or
take any other action with respect thereto.

Select Board

101



ARTICLE 11 To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 6.5.2 of the General Bylaws
by inserting a new revolving fund into the chart as follows:

Revolving Spending Revenue Allowed Expenditure | Year End
Account Authority Source Expenses Limits Balance
Community Conservation | Rental and Utilities and Available for
Gardens at Administrator | user fees all other expenditure
Mattera maintenance next year
Cabin and

operating

expenses,

and project

supplies and

equipment

And to set the limit on the total amount that may be expended from the Community Gardens at
Mattera Cabin revolving fund pursuant to Section 53E"2 of Chapter 44 of the Massachusetts
General Laws for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022; or take any other action with respect
thereto.

ARTICLE 12 To seeifthe Town will vote to hear the report of the Director of Public Works
that certain easements for drainage be abandoned and a new easement accepted, and authorize
the Select Board to relocate a drainage easement at 104 Lilah Lane, Reading, Massachusetts by
abandoning an existing drainage easement and accepting a new, equivalent drainage easement
on the same property, and as further as “Existing Easement Line To Be Removed” and “Easement
Area to be Removed 757 S.F.” on a plan entitled “Revised Easement Plan 104 Lilah Lane
Assessors Map 55 Parcel 30 Reading, MA, Prepared for Margaret & Chris Calvani 104 Lilah Lane,
Reading MA,” dated September 27, 2021, on file with the Town Clerk, or take any other action
with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 13 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to acquire by
purchase, gift, or eminent domain, on such terms and conditions as the Select Board shall
determine, an easement over a portion of Gazebo Circle and abutting land held by the Summit
Village Condominium Trust for the purpose of installing, maintaining, and operating a water
connection and related utilities from 0 Bear Hill (Assessor’s Parcel 8-58), to raise and
appropriate or transfer from available funds a sum or sum of monies necessary for the
acquisition, and to authorize the Select Board to enter into all agreements and take all related
actions necessary or appropriate to carry out said acquisition and other acts authorized herein;
or take any other action with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 14 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to acquire by
purchase, gift, or eminent domain, on such terms and conditions as the Select Board shall

102



determine, an easement over a portion of 369 Main Street, Reading (Assessor's Parcel 17-25) for
the purpose of installing, maintaining, and operating water utilities, to raise and appropriate or
transfer from available funds a sum or sum of monies necessary for the acquisition, and to
authorize the Select Board to enter into all agreements and take all related actions necessary or
appropriate to carry out said acquisition and other acts authorized herein; or take any other action
with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 15 To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 10.5 of the Zoning Bylaw,
Downtown Smart Growth District, with the additions being shown in bold and italics and deletions
being struck through, as follows:

10.5 Downtown Smart Growth District (DSGD)

10.5.1 Purposes

The purposes of the Downtown Smart Growth District are:

1 To provide an opportunity for residential development and to
especially encourage mixed-use development, including both new
construction and renovation of existing buildings, within a
distinctive, attractive and livable environment that supports the
commercial revitalization of Downtown Reading.

2 To promote continuing development and redevelopment in
Downtown Reading that is pedestrian friendly and consistent with
Reading history and architecture.

3 To ensure high quality site planning, architecture and landscape
design that enhances the distinct visual character and identity of
Downtown Reading and provides an environment with safety,
convenience and amenity.

4 To provide for a diversified housing stock at a variety of costs
within walking distance of services and public transportation,
including affordable housing and other housing types that meet
the needs of the Town’s population.

5 To generate positive tax revenue for the Town, and to benefit from
the financial incentives provided by Massachusetts General Law
Chapter 40R, while providing the opportunity for new business
growth and additional local jobs.

6 To encourage preservation and rehabilitation of historic structures and
buildings.

7 To promote efficient use of land and existing parking supply and
limit expansion within the district by encouraging shared parking.

8 To encourage adoption of energy efficient building practices and
sustainable construction methods.

9 To ensure compliance with the Massachusetts Department of
Environmental Protection storm water management policies and
practices.

10 To ensure that the physical character of projects within the
DSGD will be compatible with nearby buildings, particularly
existing residential uses.

103



10.5.2

Definitions

As used in this Article, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth

below:

Accessory Building: A detached building the use of which is
customarily incidental and subordinate to that of the principal
building or buildings and which is located on the same lot. An
Accessory Building shall not be used to house people, domestic
animals or livestock, nor shall it be used as an independent
commercial enterprise. An Accessory Building located within 10
feet of a principal building shall be subject to the dimensional
requirements applicable to the principal building.

Affordable Homeownership Unit: A dwelling unit required to be
sold to an Eligible Household per the requirements of this Section
10.4.

Affordable Housing Restriction: A deed restriction of an Affordable
Unit meeting statutory requirements in Massachusetts General
Law Chapter 184 Section 31 and the requirements of Section
10.5.10 of this Article.

Affordable Rental Unit: A dwelling unit required to be rented to an
Eligible Household per the requirements of Section 10.5.10.

Affordable Unit: The collective reference to Affordable
Homeownership Units and Affordable Rental Units

Annual Update: A list of all approved and currently proposed Smart
Growth Districts within the Town of Reading, to be filed on or
before July 31st of each year with the Massachusetts Department
of Housing and Community Development pursuant to
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40R and applicable
regulations.

Applicant: A landowner or other petitioner who files a plan for a
Development Project subject to the provisions of this Section 10.5.

Approving Authority (AA): The Community Planning and
Development Commission (CPDC) of the Town of Reading acting
as the authority designated to review projects and issue approvals
under this Section 10.5.

AA Regulations: The administrative rules and regulations adopted
by the AA pursuant to Section 10.5.11.

As-Of-Right Development: A Development Project allowable under this

Section
10.5 without recourse to a special permit, variance, zoning
amendment, or other form of zoning relief. A Development Project
that is subject to the Plan Review requirement of this Section 10.5
shall be considered an As-of-right Development.

Consumer Services: A barber shop, dry cleaning or laundry

104



establishment, photographer’s shop or studio or similar business
where service is provided directly on the premises.

Design Standards: The document entitled Downtown Smart Growth
District Design Standards and Guidelines, originally dated
October 2, 2009 and approved by the Massachusetts Department
of Housing and Community Development on October 31, 2009,
most recentlyas amended and approved by DHCD on March
3, 2020, pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40R
Section 10 and applicable regulations. Said Design Standards shall
be applicable to all Development Projects within the DSGD that
are subject to Plan Review by the Approving Authority.

Development Project Or Project: A residential or mixed use
development undertaken under this Section 10.5. A Development
Project shall be identified as such on the Plan which is submitted
to the Approving Authority for Plan Review.

District Edge: The outermost edge of the Downtown Smart
Growth District, where it is directly abutting another
building lot and not bounded by a significant man-made
(i.e. railroad, major street) or natural (i.e. river, wetland
resource) feature.

Dwelling Unit: A structure or a portion of a structure containing in a
self-sufficient and exclusive manner facilities for sleeping, bathing,
and cooking, including one full kitchen and full bathroom facilities
as defined by the Massachusetts State Building Code.

Eligible Household: An individual or household whose annual
income is below eighty percent (80%) of the area-wide median
income as determined by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), adjusted for household
size, with income computed using HUD's rules for attribution of
income to assets.

Family: One (1) or more persons occupying a dwelling unit as a single
house- keeping unit. Domestic employees may be housed on the
premises without being counted as a family or families.

Floor Area Net: The actual occupied area of a building or buildings
not including hallways, stairs, mechanical spaces and other non-
habitable spaces, and not including thickness of exterior or interior
walls.

Floor Area Gross: The sum of the gross areas of all floors of a
building, measured from the exterior faces of the exterior walls or
from the centerline of walls separating two buildings. Gross floor
area does not include the following:

1 Basement space having at least one-half the floor-to-ceiling
height below grade, rated as non-habitable by applicable
building code.

2 Accessory parking (i.e., parking that is available on or off-site
that is not part of the use’s minimum parking standard).

105



3 Attic space having a floor-to-ceiling height less than seven
feet, rated as non- habitable by applicable building code.

4 Exterior balconies.

5 Uncovered steps, landings, and ramps.

6 Inner courts open to the sky.

Household Income Median: The median income, adjusted for
household size, as reported by the most recent information from,
or calculated from regulations promulgated by, the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

Institutional Use: A non-profit or quasi-public use or institution,
such as a church, library, public or private school, municipally
owned or operated building, structure or land, used for public
purpose.

Lot Coverage: The portion of a lot, expressed as a percent of
the total lIot area, that is covered by principal and accessory
buildings and structures.

Mixed-Use Development Project: A Development Project
containing a residential Principal Use and one or more Non-
Residential, Secondary Uses as specified in Section 10.5.5.1,
provided that, in newly constructed buildings, separate and
distinct building entrances are provided for residential and non-
residential uses.

Monitoring Agent: An entity designated by the Reading Board of
Selectmen, which may be the Reading Housing Authority or other
qualified housing entity, with the power to monitor and to enforce
compliance with the provisions of this Bylaw related to Affordable
Units, including but not limited to computation of rental and sales
prices; income eligibility of households applying for Affordable
Units; administration of an approved housing marketing and
resident selection plan; and recording and enforcement of an
Affordable Housing Restriction for each Affordable Unit in the
DSGD (See Section 10.5.10.6).

Multi-Family Residential: A building containing feurthree or more
residential dwelling units designed for occupancy by the same
number of families as the number of dwelling units.

Non-Residential Use: Office, Retail, Restaurant, Service or
Institutional Use, inclusive, or some combination of the same.

Office: A place for the regular performance of business transactions
and services, generally intended for administrative, professional
and clerical activities, including a medical or dental office or health
clinic.

Open Space: Civic Space, Green Space, and/or Private Amenity
Space as defined below:

Civic Space: Portions of a private lot or building that are
dedicated to civic use including but not limited to:

106



sidewalks, pathways, alleyways, seating areas, benches,
places to gather, etc. which may include streetscape
features, water features, decorative surface treatments
(i.e., pavers, cobblestone, etc.) and public art, and which
could include Green Space as defined below, if open to the
public.

Green Space: Portions of a private lot or building including
but not limited to: landscaping, plantings, natural features,
parks, gardens, living walls, green roofs, trails, pathways,
recreational uses, etc. whether connected to or visible from
the sidewalk, accessible to the public, provided as private,
or provided as a Private Amenity Space to building
occupants.

Private Amenity Space: Green Space, balconies, terraces,
courtyards, and other open-air spaces that are available as
private amenities only to the residential or commercial
tenants within the development.

Plan: A plan depicting a proposed Development Project for all or a
portion of the Downtown Smart Growth District and which is
submitted to the Approving Authority for its review and approval
in accordance with the provisions of this Section 10.5.

Plan Approval: The Approving Authority’s authorization for a
proposed Development Project based on a finding of compliance
with this Section 10.5 and Design Standards after the conduct of
a Plan Review.

Plan Review: The review procedure established by this Article and
administered by the Community Planning and Development
Commission of the Town of Reading as the Approving Authority.

Restaurant: Any business establishment principally engaged in
serving food, drink, or refreshments, whether prepared on or off
the premises provided, however, that drive through windows are
not allowed.

Residential Use: A building or part of a building containing Dwelling
Units as defined herein above and parking that is accessory to the
Dwelling Units.

Retail Use: Business establishments selling goods and/or services to
customers on- site, generally for end use personal, business or
household consumption. A reasonable amount of storage
consistent with Massachusetts Building Codes of said goods shall
also be assumed to be an incidental part of Retail Use.

Smart Growth District: An Overlay Zoning District adopted
pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40R, in
accordance with the procedures for zoning adoption and
amendment as set forth in Massachusetts General Law Chapter
40A and approved by the Department of Housing and Community

107



10.5.3

Development pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter
40R and applicable regulations.

Transitional Area: A site proposed for development or
redevelopment under Chapter 40R that meets any of the
following criteria: (1) is located at the District Edge, (2) is
directly abutting a lot containing a historic or cultural
resource listed on the Town of Reading’s Historical and
Architectural Inventory, or (3) is directly abutting a lot
containing a single-family, 2-family or 3-family dwelling,
either within or outside of the District. Underlying Zoning:
The zoning requirements adopted pursuant to Massachusetts
General Law Chapter 40A that are otherwise applicable to the
geographic area in which the DSGD is located, as said
requirements may be amended from time to time.

YUndwly Unreasonably Restrietivve-Impair: A provision of a-Srart
Growth—DBistrict40R Zoning or a Design Standard that adds
unreasonable costs or unreasonably diminishesimpaits the
economic feasibility of proposed Development Projects in a Smart
Growth District.

Unrestricted Unit: A Dwelling Unit that is not restricted as to rent,
price or eligibility of occupants.

Use Accessory: A use subordinate to the Principal Use on the same
lot or in the same structure and serving a purpose customarily
incidental to the Principal Use, and which does not, in effect,
constitute conversion of the Principal Use of the lot, site or
structure to a use not otherwise permitted in the Smart Growth
District.

Use Principal: The main or primary purpose for which a structure,
building, or lot is designed, arranged, licensed, or intended, or for
which it may be used, occupied, or maintained under this Section
10.5.

Use Secondary: A use located on the same lot as a Principal Use but
which is of equal or lesser scale, impact, and visibility than the
Principal Use. A Secondary Use is not an Accessory Use, as it is
largely independent from the Principal Use.

Scope and Authority

The Downtown Smart Growth District is established pursuant to the
authority of Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40R and applicable
regulations, and shall be deemed to overlay the parcels as shown on
the Zoning Map of the Town of Reading, as amended. The Applicant
shall have the option of applying for Plan Approval pursuant to the
zoning controls set forth in this Article or complying with all applicable
zoning controls set forth in the Zoning Bylaw of the Town of Reading
for the underlying district(s) or for other overlay zoning that may be
therein defined. Development Projects proceeding under this Article
shall be governed solely by the provisions of this Article and shall be
deemed exempt from the standards and/or procedures of the

108



10.5.4

Underlying Zoning and other overlay provisions.

Establishment and Delineation of the DSGD

The Downtown Smart Growth District is an overlay district that is
superimposed over the Underlying District. The boundaries are
delineated as the “"Downtown Smart Growth District” on the Official

Zoning Map of the Town of Reading on file in the office of the Town

Clerk, said map hereby made a part of the Reading Zoning Bylaw.

10.5.5 Allowed and Prohibited Uses

Any use not listed herein as an Allowed Use is deemed prohibited.
Allowed Uses
The following uses shall be permitted as-of-right in the
DSGD upon Plan Approval pursuant to the provisions of this
article:

10.5.5.1

10.5.5.2

10.5.6

OUNThWNR

Multi-family Residential

Office *

Retail *

Restaurant *

Institutional *

Consumer Service *
* Only as part of a Mixed-Use Development; see Section 10.5.7
below

In addition to the allowed uses listed above, the following uses
are permitted as-of-right for Development Projects within the
DSGD subject to the requirements of this Article.

7

Open Space

8% Parking accessory to any of the above permitted uses,
including surface, garage-under, and structured parking
98 Accessory uses customarily incidental to any of the
above permitted principal uses

Prohibited Uses
The following uses are prohibited in the DSGD:

1

2

3

Any use which regularly emits strong odors, or dust
particles, or smoke, or poses danger, such as manufacture
of acids, gases, fertilizers and glue, petroleum refining,
reduction of animal matter, and manufacture of cement,
gypsum, or explosives.

Any other use dangerous to persons within or outside the
District by reason of emission of odor, fumes, gases,
particulate matter, smoke, noise, vibration, glare,
radiation, electrical interference, threat of fire or explosion,
or any other reason.

Any use that degrades water quality, reduces groundwater
recharge, or increases flooding are prohibited.

Dimensional and Other Requirements

Applications for Plan Approval shall be governed by this Section 10.5 and the

Design Standards for the Downtown Smart Growth District.

109



Building Type

Mixed-Use with
Commercial 1st

Other Mixed-Use
or Residential

Floor Only
Maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) (Gross Floor Area / Lot Size) 2.8 2.4
Minimum Lot Frontage 50 feet
Maximum Lot Coverage N/A
Minimum Lot Area 6,000

SFNAA

Number of Buildings per lot N/A
Maximum Building Frontage 300 feet
Minimum Front Setback! 0 feet
Maximum Front Setback! 10 feet
Minimum Side / Rear Setback? abutting a Residential Zone 15 feet
Minimum Side / Rear Setback? in DSGD or abutting Business- 0 feet
B
Total minimum setback from one or more lot lines (any 30 feet
combination of front, rear, or sides)
Interior Setback (between buildings on same lot) 15 feet

1See 7.1.1 of the Design Standards for front facade setback requirements

2See 7.1.2 of the Design Standards for building step-back requirements
Setbacks: Where projects are within a Transitional Area (as defined in
this Bylaw and in the Design Guidelines), setbacks may be further
increased by the AA to no greater than 30 feet upon a finding based
on the project’s massing, scale, or architectural design, that the
project fails to be compatible with the character of nearby residential

buildings.

Step-backs: Where projects are within a Transitional Area (as defined
in this Bylaw and in the Design Guidelines), step-back requirements
may be further increased by the AA to no greater than 25 feet upon a
finding based on the project’s massing, scale, or architectural design,
that the project fails to be compatible with the character of nearby

residential buildings.

10.5.6.1

Residential Density Allowances

The following residential densities shall be allowed on all lots
and within all buildings within the DSGD pursuant to the

requirements of this Section 10.5:

Multifamily Residential 20 Units per acre
a The Approving Authority may provide a waiver as specified in
Section10.5.12 to allow a density in excess of that stated above.
b The Approving Authority may provide a waiver as
specified in Section 10.5.12 to promote the renovation
or adaptive reuse of existing buildings.

10.5.6.2

Dimensional Standards and Requirements

The following building heights shall be allowed on all lots
within the DSGD, pursuant to the requirements of this

Section 10.5:

Multifamily Residential Buildings....33 Feet

110




Multifamily Residential Buildings with
45+Feet Commercial Uses on the Ground Floor....45 Feet

10.5.6.3 Contiguous Lots
In the DSGD, where two or more lots under common
ownership are contiguous or are separated by a right-of-way,
such lots may be considered as one lot for the purpose of
calculating maximum lot coverage; parking requirements;
minimum useable open space; and dwelling units per acre.

10.5.6.4 Age-Restricted Housing Units

An Applicant may propose a Residential or Mixed-Use
Development Project in which all dwelling units are designed
for or are accessible to the elderly or the handicapped under
all applicable laws and regulations, provided that not less than
twenty-five percent (25%) of the housing units in any such
Development Project shall be Affordable Units. All such
Development Projects shall be governed by the requirements
of this Section 10.5 and the Design Standards.

10.5.7 Mixed-Use Development
Development Projects may include a portion not to exceed 50% of the
total gGross fFloor aArea to be used for non-residential uses including
Office, Retail, Restaurant, Service or Institutional Uses; provided that
eOffice or iInstitutional uses erthe-ground-fleermay not utilize more
than 33% of the total commercial gresssquarefoetageGross Floor
Area-of-thotfleor.

A minimum of 10% of the Development Project’s total Gross
Floor Area shall be dedicated to commercial use, the
calculation for which may include any private outdoor space
that is also dedicated to commercial use.

10.5.8 Off-Street Parking and Loading
10.5.8.1 Off-Street Parking
Retail stores, offices and consumer service establishments
located within three hundred (300) feet of a public off-street
parking facility shall be exempt from off-street parking
requirements. In all other cases, off-street parking shall be
provided to meet the following minimum requirements:

Retail or Restaurant. s rsesssrsrsmssssssnsnssrsnsnsnssnssnnssnsnssnnssnsnssnn 0 spaces
Office and InStitutioNalis e ssersrsmsrsmssrsmsmrmrsrnnrsnnes 2 spaces per 1,000 square
feet

Residential Units (studio, 1 and 2 bedroom)............. 1.25 spaces per unit
Residential Units (greater than 2 bedroom).............. 2 spaces per unit
Other Non-Residential, less than 2,000 square feet s 0 spaces

Other Non-Residential, 2,000 square feet or more 1-spaceper
2-:000-sguarefeet leasable space in excess of 2,000 square

(=1 o 1 space per 2,000 square feet

111



As indicated above, off-street parking is not required for Other
Non- Residential uses in the district unless such use exceeds
2,000 square feet of net floor area.

10.5.8.2 Off-Street Loading & Delivery
Front door and on-street deliveries are not allowed for non-
residential establishments on Main and Haven Streets. Off-
street loading spaces shall be provided to meet or exceed the
following minimum requirements:
Restaurant 1-spaceper 2000
leasable space in excess of 2,000 square feet...courrvrrmrmresas 1 space per
2,000 square feet
Other allowed Secondary Use 1-space-per
5-000-squarefeet leasable space in excess of 2,000 square
feetimrrrrarsmnrnnrsnns 1 space per

5,000 square feet

10.5.8.3

10.5.8.4

10.5.8.5

The Approving Authority may waive the loading space
requirement if the Applicant provides a plan proving that the
loading space is not needed or can be shared.

Location of Parking

Any surface parking lot shall, to the maximum extent feasible,
be located at the side or rear of a building, relative to any
public right-of-way, public open space, or pedestrian way. In
no case shall surface parking for new construction be
permitted within the required front yard setbacks.

Waiver of Parking Requirements

The Approving Authority may grant a Plan Approval making
such modifications in the standards or prescribe safeguards
and conditions as it shall warrant appropriate, provided that it
finds that it is impractical to meet the standards and that such
modifications are appropriate by reason of the proposed use
and will not result in or worsen parking or traffic problems in
the DSGD. The Approving Authority may impose conditions of
use or occupancy appropriate to such modifications.

Shared Use of Required Parking

Shared use may be made of required parking spaces by
intermittent use establishments, for example, churches,
assembly halls or theaters, whose peak parking demand is
only at night or on specific days of the week; by other uses
whose peak demand is only during the day; or in public parking
lots. At the time of application, a formal agreement shall be
made in writing by the owners of the uses involved concerning
the number of spaces involved, substantiation of the fact that
such shared use is not overlapping or in conflict, and the
duration of the agreement.

The applicant shall demonstrate that shared spaces will meet
parking demands by using accepted methodologies (e.g., the

112



10.5.8.6

10.5.8.7

10.5.8.8

10.5.9

Urban Land Institute Shared Parking Report, ITE Shared
Parking Guidelines, or other industry established studies on
shared parking).

Cooperative Establishment and Operation of Parking Areas

Required spaces for any number of uses may be provided in a
combined lot or lots (public or private), provided that the
number of spaces in the combined facility shall not be less than
the sum of those required of the individual uses, with
allowances made, upon formal designation, for night use or for
separate and distinct working shifts, and provided also that
such lot or lots shall be within 600 feet of the principal
buildings served.

Visitor Parking

The Approving Authority may allow for additional visitor
parking beyond the minimum required spaces per unit if
deemed appropriate given the design, layout and density of
the proposed Development Project.

Parking Design

Parking shall be designed and constructed to comply with all
applicable disability access requirements including but not
limited to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and 521
CMR.

Parking spaces within a garage, podium or other
structure shall be not less than eight (8) feet, six (6)
inches in width, and seventeen (17) feet in length.
CPDC may allow up to 25% of required parking spaces
be provided as compact spaces at a dimension not less
than eight (8) feet in width and sixteen (16) feet in
length. Drive aisle width requirements shall comply
with standards outlined in the most current edition of
the "Transportation and Traffic Engineering Handbook”
put forth by the Institute of Transportation Engineers,
and will depend on the angle of the proposed parking
and whether the aisle is one-way or two-way; rows of
compact spaces may necessitate greater aisle widths
to ensure turning movements can be made.

Open Space and-Reereational-AreasDesign

The site design for Development Projects may include eemmen-Ospen
Sspace—andfacitities. Where proposed, the plans and any necessary
supporting documents submitted with an application for Plan Approval
within the DSGD shall show the general location, size, character, and
general area within which eemmen-0Oepen Sspace erfaeHities will be
located. The plans and documentation submitted to the Approving
Authority shall include a description of proposed ownership and
maintenance provisions of all eemmern—Oepen Sspace anrdfaciities
and, if requested by the Approving Authority, any necessary
restrictions or easements designed to preserve the Oepen Sspace and
recreationalareasfrom future development and, when applicable,

113



10.5.10

to ensure they are available for public use.

Civic Space, if within a private lot or building, shall be
demarcated in such a way (i.e., through signage, continuity of
pavement markings, etc.) that the general public will know the
space is for public use. When possible, Civic Space shall be
provided at street level, shall be visible from the street, and
shall relate to the streetscape in a manner that enlivens the
area and encourages a community experience.

To the extent possible, Civic Space shall be planned as single
contiguous areas and aligned with abutting Open Space areas.
Buildings adjacent to usable Civic Space should generally be
oriented to that space, with access to the building opening
onto the Civic Space. The Approving Authority may require a
project to provide public access to the Civic Space from one or
more streets, ways, or publicly accessed trails. In addition,
there shall be a clear arrangement in place regarding
responsibility for ongoing maintenance and management of
any Civic Space located within a private lot or building.

Upon consideration of the above information, the Approving Authority
may approve a waiver as provided for in Section 10.5.12 for a front
setback to allow for common open space or facilities.

Affordable Housing

Affordable Units shall comply with the following requirements:

1 The monthly rent payment for an Affordable Rental Unit, including
utilities and parking, shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the
maximum monthly income permissible for an Eligible Household,
assuming a Family size equal to the number of bedrooms in the
unit plus one, except in the event of an Eligible Household with a
Section 8 voucher in which case program rent limits shall apply.

2 For an Affordable Homeownership Unit the monthly housing
payment, including mortgage principal and interest, private
mortgage insurance, property taxes, condominium and/or
homeowner's association fees, insurance, and parking, shall not
exceed thirty percent (30%) of the maximum monthly income
permissible for an Eligible Household, assuming a Family size
equal to the number of bedrooms in the unit plus one.

3 Affordable Units required to be offered for rent or sale shall be
rented or sold to and occupied only by Eligible Households.

10.5.10.1 Number of Affordable Units

Affordable units shall be provided in projects of more than

twelve-eight (8+2) units, as follows:

e Except as otherwise provided by this section, twenty
percent (20%) of all dwelling units constructed in an
ownership Development Project shall be Affordable Units.

e Except as otherwise provided by this section, twenty-five
percent (25%) of all dwelling units constructed in a rental
Development Project shall be Affordable Units.

o For Development Projects in which all of the dwelling units

114



10.5.10.2

10.5.10.3

10.5.104

10.5.10.5

are limited to occupancy by elderly persons and/or by
persons with disabilities, twenty- five percent (25%) of the
dwelling units shall be Affordable Units, whether the
dwelling units are Rental Units or Ownership Units.

o For projects consisting of fewer than twelve (12)
units, upon request of the Applicant, the Approving
Authority may waive the requirements of this section
as provided in Section 10.5.12.

Fractional Units

When the application of the percentages specified above
results in a number that includes a fraction, the fraction shall
always be rounded up to the next whole number—nf—t—he—FFaet-reﬁ

Design and Construction

Affordable Units must be dispersed throughout a Development
Project and be comparable in initial construction quality and
exterior design to the Unrestricted Units. However, nothing in
this Section is intended to limit a homebuyer’s rights to
renovate a Dwelling Unit under applicable law. The Affordable
Units must have access to all on-site amenities. Affordable
Units shall be finished housing units. All Affordable Units must
be constructed and occupied not later than concurrently with
construction and occupancy of Unrestricted Units. In
Development Projects that are constructed in phases,
Affordable Units must be constructed and occupied in
proportion to the number of units in each phase of the
Development Project.

Unit Mix

The total number of bedrooms in the Affordable Units shall be
at least proportionate to the total number of bedrooms in all
units of the Project of which the Affordable Units is part.

Affordable Housing Restriction

Each Affordable Unit shall be subject to an Affordable Housing

Restriction which is recorded with the County Registry of

Deeds or Land Court Registry District of the County. All

Affordable Housing Restrictions must include, at minimum, the

following:

a Adescription of the Affordable Homeownership Unit, if any,
by address and number of bedrooms; and a description of
the overall quantity and number of bedrooms and number
of bedroom types of Affordable Rental Units in a
Development or portion of a Development which are rental.
Such restriction shall apply individually to the specifically
identified Affordable Homeownership Unit and shall apply
to a percentage of rental units of a rental Development or
the rental portion of a Development without specific unit
identification.

b The term of the Affordable Housing Restriction which shall
be in perpetuity or for the longest period customarily

115



10.5.10.6

10.5.10

allowed by law but shall be no less than thirty (30) years.
The name and address of the Monitoring Agent with a
designation of its power to monitor and enforce the
Affordable Housing Restriction.

Reference to a housing marketing and resident selection
plan, to which the Affordable Unit is subject, and which
includes an affirmative fair housing marketing program,
including public notice and a fair resident selection process.
If approved by DHCD, the housing marketing and selection
plan may provide for local preferences in resident
selection. The plan shall designate the household size
appropriate for a unit with respect to bedroom size and
provide that preference for such unit shall be given to a
household of the appropriate size.

A requirement that buyers or tenants will be selected at
the initial sale or initial rental and upon all subsequent
sales and rentals from a list of Eligible Households compiled
in accordance with the housing marketing and selection
plan.

Reference to the formula pursuant to which rent of a rental
unit or the maximum resale price of a homeownership unit
will be set.

A requirement that only an Eligible Household may reside
in an Affordable Unit and that notice of any lease or
sublease of any Affordable Unit shall be given to the
Monitoring Agent.

Provision for effective monitoring and enforcement of the
terms and provisions of the Affordable Housing Restriction
by the Monitoring Agent.

Provision that the restriction on an Affordable
Homeownership Unit shall run in favor of the Monitoring
Agent and the Town of Reading, in a form approved by
municipal counsel, and shall limit initial sale and re-sale to
and occupancy by an Eligible Household.

Provision that the owner(s) or manager(s) of Affordable
Rental Unit(s) shall file an annual report to the Monitoring
Agent, in a form specified by that agent certifying
compliance with the provisions of this Section

and containing such other information as may be
reasonably requested in order to ensure affordability.
Provision that the restriction on Affordable Rental Units in
a rental Project or rental portion of a Project shall run with
the rental Project or rental portion of a Project and shall
run in favor of the Monitoring Agent and the Town of
Reading, in a form approved by municipal counsel, and
shall limit rental and occupancy to an Eligible Household.
A requirement that residents in Affordable Units provide
such information as the Monitoring Agent may reasonably
request in order to ensure affordability.

Designation of the priority of the Affordable Housing
Restriction over other mortgages and restrictions.

Administration

116



10.5.10.7

The Monitoring Agent shall ensure the following (See Section

10.5.2 Definitions):

a Prices of Affordable Homeownership-Units are properly
computed; rental amounts of Affordable Rental Units are
properly computed.

b Income eligibility of households applying for Affordable
Units is properly and reliably determined.

¢ The housing marketing and resident selection plan
conforms to all requirements and is properly administered.

d Sales and rentals are made to Eligible Households chosen
in accordance with the housing marketing and resident
selection plan with appropriate unit size for each household
being properly determined and proper preference being
given.

e Affordable Housing Restrictions meeting the requirements
of this Section are recorded with the Middlesex County
Registry of Deeds or Land Court Registry District of
Middlesex County. In the case where the Monitoring Agent
cannot adequately carry out its administrative duties, upon
certification of this fact by the Approving Authority or by
the Department of Housing and Community Development,
the administrative duties shall devolve to and thereafter be
administered by a qualified housing entity designated by
the Reading Board of Selectmen.

Costs of Housing Marketing and Selection Plan

The housing marketing and selection plan shall make provision
for payment by the owner of reasonable costs to the
Monitoring Agent and the owner shall pay reasonable costs to
the Monitoring Agent to develop, advertise, and maintain the
list of Eligible Households and to monitor and enforce
compliance with affordability requirements.

10.5.11 Plan Approval Procedures
The Approving Authority (AA) shall adopt and file with the Town Clerk
Administrative Regulations relative to the application requirements
and contents for Plan Review, subject to approval by the
Massachusetts Department of Housing and Community Development.
Plan approval procedures shall be as follows:

10.5.11.1

Pre-Application Requirements

Prior to the submittal of a Plan for Plan Approval, a "Concept

Plan” may be submitted to help guide the development of the

definitive submission for project build out. Such Concept Plan

shall reflect the following:

a Overall building envelope areas

b Open space and natural resource areas

¢ General site improvements, drainage plans, groupings of
buildings and proposed land uses

d Anticipated parking spaces and locations

e Site vehicular access

The Concept Plan is intended to be used as a tool for both the

117



10.5.11.2

Applicant and the Approving Authority to ensure that the
proposed Project design will be consistent with the Design
Standards and other requirements of the DSGD.

Application Procedures

All Projects are subject to Plan Approval.

1 Submittal
An application for Plan Approval shall be submitted to the
AA on the form provided by the Authority, along with the
application fees set forth in the administrative regulations.
The application shall be accompanied by such plans and
other documents as required by the AA as well as any
materials required to verify compliance with any of the
provisions of this Section

10.5. All plans shall be prepared by certified architects or
engineers as required by the Massachusetts Building Code.
An application for Plan Approval shall be filed by the
Applicant with the Town Clerk. A copy of the application,
including the date of filing certified by the Town Clerk, as
well as the required number of copies of the application,
shall be filed forthwith by the Applicant with the AA.
Application submissions must include a hard copy as well
as an electronic copy in PDF or CAD format. Said filing shall
include any required forms provided by the AA. As part of
any application for Plan Approval for a Development
Project, the Applicant must submit the following
documents to the AA and the Monitoring Agent:
e Evidence that the Development Project complies with
the cost and eligibility requirements of Section 10.5.10;
o Development Project plans that demonstrate
compliance with the design and construction standards
of Section 10.5.10.3; and
e A form of Affordable Housing Restriction that satisfies
the requirements of Section 10.5.10.5
e Review Fees: The Applicant shall be required to pay for
reasonable consulting fees to provide peer review of the
application for the benefit of the Approving Authority.
Such fees shall be held by the Town of Reading in an
interest-bearing escrow account, and shall be used only
for expenses associated with the use of outside
consultants employed by the Approving Authority in
reviewing the Plan application. Any surplus funds
remaining after the completion of such review,
including any interest accrued, shall be returned to the
Applicant forthwith;
2 Circulation to Other Boards
Upon receipt of the application, the AA shall immediately
provide a copy of the application materials to all relevant
municipal Boards, Departments, Commissions, Officials as
determined by the AA and, if the project is subject to
Affordability requirements, the Monitoring Agent. These
entities shall provide any written comments within 60 days
of receipt of the plan and application.

118



3

10.5.12 Waivers

Public Hearing

The Approving Authority shall hold a public hearing and

review all applications according to the procedure specified

in Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40A Section 11

Criteria for Plan Approval

The Approving Authority shall approve the Development

Project upon the following findings:

e The Applicant has submitted the required fees and
information as set forth in applicable Regulations; and

e The proposed Development Project as described in the
application meets all of the requirements and standards
set forth in this Section 10.5, applicable Design
Standards and the AA regulations, or a waiver has been
granted there from; and

e Any extraordinary adverse potential impacts of the
Project on nearby properties have been adequately
mitigated.

e For a Project subject to Affordability requirements,
compliance with Condition b. above shall include
written confirmation by the Monitoring Agent that all
Affordability requirements have been satisfied.

Criteria for Plan Denial

A Plan Approval application may be disapproved only

where the Approving Authority finds that:

e The applicant has not submitted the required fees and
information as set forth in the regulations; or

e The Project as described in the application does not
meet all the requirements and standards set forth in
this Section 10.5, applicable Design Standards and the
AA Regulations, or that a required waiver there from
has not been granted; or

e It is not possible to adequately mitigate significant
extraordinary adverse project impacts on nearby
properties by means of suitable conditions, including
but not limited to AA’s finding that in massing,
scale, size, or architectural design, a project fails
to be compatible with the character of nearby
residential or other buildings.

Time Limit

The decision of the AA shall be made, and written notice of
the decision filed with the Town Clerk within 120 days of
receipt of the Application by the Town Clerk. This time may
be extended by mutual agreement between the AA and the
Applicant by written agreement filed with the Town Clerk.
Failure of the AA to take action within said 120 days or the
extended time shall be deemed an approval of the Plan
Approval application.

Upon request of the Applicant, the Approving Authority may ey
waive dimensional and other requirements, including design
standards, with conditions, in the interests of design flexibility and

119



overall project quality, and upon a finding of consistency of such
variation with the overall purpose and objectives of the DSGD and the
Reading Master Plan, or if it finds that such waiver will allow the
project to achieve the density, affordability, mix of uses and/or
physical character allowed under this Section 10.5. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in this Zoning Bylaw, the Affordability
provisions of Section 10.5.10 shall not be waived, except as
expressly provided in Section 10.5.10.1.

The Approving Authority will take into consideration the following
items—-design objectives when eensidering-determining whether
a waiver or waivers shall be granted:

1. Additional open space and connectivity between sites and
to existing open space areas;

2. Commercial space of a quality and size characteristic of a
downtown business district;

3. Long-term shared parking agreements or other
mechanisms to creatively and efficiently utilize or add to
existing parking supply;

4. High performance building design that increases energy
efficiency and minimizes utility and maintenance costs to
end users, and that provides for building resiliency to adopt
future technologies and sustainable strategies as they
become available;

5. Preservation or rehabilitation of historic properties or
other buildings considered significant to the Town; and

6. Deeper or broader affordability (i.e., units affordable to
households earning at or below 50% Area Median Income,
or additional units available to households earning at or
below 80% Area Median Income).

10.5.12.1 Tiered Schedule for Density Waiver Requests
Applicants specifically seeking a waiver for density in excess of 20 units per
acre shall adhere to the following guidelines:

1. All projects shall achieve high performance building design that
exceeds minimum energy code baseline and is designed to the LEED
Certified standard, Passive House standard, Net Zero, or equivalent
rating system; that increases energy efficiency and minimizes utility
and maintenance costs to end users; and that provides for building
resiliency to adopt future technologies and sustainable strategies as
they become available;

2. For the purposes of determining project density and Payment In Lieu

120



of Open Space, fractional numbers shall always be rounded to the next
highest integer;

Tiered requirements are intended to apply to the entirety of a project,
not just the portion within that tiered density;

Compliance with the tiered schedule below in and of itself does not
guarantee the waiver will be granted; CPDC will maintain their right
to consider the waiver request in the context of the whole proposal
and in consideration of its impacts to the Downtown Smart Growth
District. However, a request for a waiver for density in excess of 20
units per acre shall be considered more favorably, up to a maximum
of 65 units per acre, if providing, cumulatively, the following:

Tier 1: 21-25 units per acre
Tier 1 requirements are as follows (provide at least one):

a. Open Space: Open Space provided at-grade as well as
Private Amenity Space for tenants; or

b. Commercial: Commercial tenant space that is not less
than 12.5% of the total Gross Floor Area of the building;
or

c¢. Parking: A minimum of 2 visitor or guest parking spaces;

d. Historic: The preservation or rehabilitation of historic
properties or other buildings considered significant to
the Town.

Tier 2: 26-40 units per acre
Tier 2 requirements are as follows (provide at least one

additional from a category not chosen under Tier 1):

a. Open Space: Open Space shall be provided:

i. on-site, comprising 10% of the lot area; at least 50%
of which is provided at-grade and is publicly
accessible; or

ii. indirectly, as a Payment In Lieu of providing Open
Space as required above, into a fund established by
the Town of Reading for the acquisition of land for
open space purposes and/or the creation or
improvement of pathways, trails and other open
space amenities, at a rate of $75 (in 2022 dollars
indexed to inflation), per square foot of offset open
space.

b. Commercial: Commercial tenant space that is not less than
15% of the total Gross Floor Area of the building; or

c¢. Parking: Additional parking at a rate of 1 space per 1,000
gross square feet of commercial space;

Tier 3: 41 to 65 units per acre
Tier 3 requirements are as follows (provide at least one

additional from a category not chosen under Tier 1 or Tier 2):

a. Open Space: Open Space shall be provided:
i. on-site, in a total amount equivalent to 15% of the
lot area, at least 50% of which is provided at-grade

121



ii.

and is publicly accessible; or

indirectly, as a Payment In Lieu of providing Open
Space as required above, into a fund established by
the Town of Reading for the acquisition of land for
open space purposes and/or the creation or
improvement of pathways, trails and other open
space amenities, at a rate of $75 (in 2022 dollars
indexed to inflation), per square foot of offset open
space.

b. Commercial: Commercial tenant space that is not less than

C.

25% of the total Gross Floor Area of the building; or
Affordable Units: Deeper or broader affordability (i.e.,
affordable to households earning at or below 50% of Area Median
Income, or additional units available to households earning at or
below 80% of Area Median Income); or

Parking: A demonstrated Ilong-term shared parking
initiative that makes efficient use of land and existing
parking supply.

10.5.13 Plan Changes After Approval by Approving Authority

10.5.13.1

10.5.13.2

Minor Plan Changes

After Plan Approval, an Applicant may apply to make minor
changes in a Development Project involving minor utility or
building orientation adjustments, or minor adjustments to
parking or other site details that do not affect the overall build
out or building envelope of the site, or provision of open space,
number of housing units, or housing need or affordability
features. Such minor changes must be submitted to the
Approving Authority on redlined prints of the approved plan,
reflecting the proposed change, and on application forms
provided by the Approving Authority. The Approving Authority
may authorize such changes at any regularly scheduled
meeting, without the need to hold a public hearing. The
Approving Authority shall set forth any decision to approve or
deny such minor change by motion and written decision, and
provide a copy to the Applicant for filing with the Town Clerk.

Major Plan Changes

Those changes deemed by the Approving Authority to
constitute a major change in a Development Project because
of the nature of the change in relation to the prior approved
plan, or because such change cannot be appropriately
characterized as a minor change as described above, shall be
processed by the Approving Authority as a new application for
Plan Approval pursuant to this Section 10.5.

10.5.14 Fair Housing Requirement

All

Development Projects within the DSGD shall comply with

applicable federal, state and local fair housing laws.

10.5.15 Project Phasing
The Approving Authority may allow a Project to be phased at the

units

122



10.5.16

10.5.17

10.5.18

10.5.19

request of the applicant or to mitigate any extraordinary adverse
impacts on nearby properties. For projects that are approved and
developed in phases, the proportion of Affordable units shall be
consistent across all phases and the proportion of Existing Zoned
Units to Bonus units (as those terms are defined in 760 CMR 59.00
shall be consistent across phases.

Decisions

The Approving Authority shall issue to the applicant a copy of its
decision containing the name and address of the owner, identifying
the land affected and the plans that were the subject of the decision
and certifying that a copy of the decision has been filed with the Town
Clerk. If 20 days have elapsed after the decision has been filed with
the Town Clerk without an appeal having been filed, or if such appeal
having been filed is dismissed or denied, the Town Clerk shall so
certify on a copy of the decision. A copy of said decision shall be filed
with the Middlesex South District Registry of Deeds.

A Plan Approval shall remain valid and run with the land indefinitely,
provided that construction has commenced within two years after the
decision is issued, which time shall be extended by the time required
to adjudicate an appeal and which time shall be extended if the project
proponent is actively pursuing other required permits or there is other
good cause for failure to commence. The Approving Authority may
require the posting of a performance bond to secure and/or screen a
Development Project site in the event that demolition is undertaken
but subsequent work lapses, for any reason within or outside the
applicant’s control, for a period longer than one year.

Date of Effect

The effective date of this Bylaw shall be the date on which such
adoption is voted upon by Town Meeting pursuant to the requirements
of Section 5 of Chapter 40A of the General Laws and Chapter 40R of
the General Laws; provided, however, that an Applicant may not
proceed with construction pursuant to this Bylaw prior to the receipt
of final approval of this Bylaw and accompanying Zoning Map by both
the Department of Housing and Community Development and the
Office of the Massachusetts Attorney General.

Severability

If any provision of this Section is found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Section shall not be
affected but remain in full force. The invalidity of any provision of this
Section 10.5 shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the
Town’s Zoning Bylaw.

Amendments to Design Standards

The AA may adopt, by majority vote, amendments to the Design
Standards. Any amendment to the Design Standards must be
objective and not subjective and may only address the scale and
proportions of buildings, the alignment, width, and grade of streets
and sidewalks, the type and location of infrastructure, the location of
building and garage entrances, off street parking, the protection of

123



significant natural site features, the location and design of on-site
open spaces, exterior signs, and buffering in relation to adjacent
properties. DHCD may, at its discretion, require any amendment to
the Design Standards to contain graphics illustrating a particular
standard or definition in order to make such standard or definition
clear and understandable.

Before adopting any Design Standard, the AA shall submit the
proposed Design Standard to DHCD for approval. Any amendment to
the Design Standards shall not take effect until approved by DHCD
and filed with the Town Clerk.

An application for Plan Approval that has been submitted to the Town Clerk
pursuant to this Section 10.5 shall not be subject to any Design Standard that
has not been approved by DHCD and filed with the Town Clerk.

or take any other action with respect thereto.

Community Planning and Development Committee

ARTICLE 16 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Reading Municipal Light
Department (RMLD) to acquire by purchase, using available RMLD funds and on such terms and
conditions as the RMLD may deem appropriate, all or a portion of the property located at 251
Ballardvale Street, Wilmington, and shown on Assessor's Map R2 as Lot 25, for light plant
purposes, and to authorize the RMLD General Manager to take any and all actions and to enter
into and execute any and all agreements and other documents as may be necessary or
appropriate to accomplish the foregoing acquisition; or take any other action with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 17 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available
funds, borrow or otherwise provide a sum or sums of money for highway projects in accordance
with Chapter 90 of the Massachusetts General Laws, or take any other action with respect thereto.

Select Board

ARTICLE 18 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available
funds, borrow or otherwise provide a sum or sums of money for the operation of the Town and its
government for Fiscal Year 2023 - beginning July 1, 2022, or take any other action with respect
thereto.

Finance Committee

ARTICLE 19 To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to Section 2-6 of the Reading Home
Rule Charter, to declare the seats of certain Town Meeting Members to be vacant and remove
certain described persons from their position as Town Meeting Members for failure to take the
oath of office within 30 days following the notice of election or for failure to attend one-half or more

124



of the Town Meeting sessions during the previous year, or take any other action with respect
thereto.

Select Board

125



and you are directed to serve this Warrant by posting an attested copy thereof in at least one (1)
public place in each precinct of the Town not less than fourteen (14) days prior to April 5, 2022,
or providing in a manner such as electronic submission, holding for pickup or mailing, an attested
copy of said Warrant to each Town Meeting Member.

Hereof fail not and make due return of this Warrant with your doings thereon to the Town
Clerk at or before the time appointed for said meeting.

Given under our hands this __"" day of , 2022.

Karen Gately Herrick, Chair

Anne DJ Landry, Vice Chair

Mark L Dockser, Secretary

Carlo Bacci

Chris Haley

SELECT BOARD OF READING

, Constable

126



Select Board — Open Session
February 1, 2022 7:00 pm via Zoom

Members Present: Chair Karen Herrick, Vice Chair Anne Landry, Secretary Mark Dockser,
Carlo Bacci, Christopher Haley

Others Present: Town Manager Bob LelLacheur, Ed Ross, Annika Scanlon, Fidel Maltez,
Jeanne Borawski, Assistant Town Manager Jean Delios, Town Accountant Sharon Angstrom,
Bill Brown, Jack, Town Counsel Ivria Fried, Jay, Deputy Police Chief Christine Amendola,
DPW Director Jane Kinsella

Documents Used:

OPEB Cities and Towns - 2021

01.22 GF Revenue Summary

01.22 GF Expenses

01.22 Water Revenue Detail

01.22 Water Expense Summary

01.22 Sewer Revenue Detail

01.22 Sewer Expense Summary

01.22 Storm Water Revenue Detail

01.22 Storm Water Expense Summary

MemoSB meeting 2.1.22 (003)

2012-06-19 Board of Selectmen Minutes

OPEB Peer Funding Status Dec 2021

RPT, 10600, Town of Reading - GASB 74_75 as of 6_30_2021
TM review process amendments to policy

DRAFT 4 Reading ARPA Advisory Committee ( RAAC) SB
20190128 SB capital Oakland subcommittee draft Minutes
13064.04 Oakland Road, Reading Geo Report
Sect_5_Inventory 2012 9-24-13 - edited

Town owned parcels without buildings map
Town_owned_parcels_ BL edits plus Kims notes with buildings
Town_owned_parcels_ BL edits plus Kims notes without buildings
2021-10-14 Aerial Site Plan with Trails-rev 2

Access to TF update 2-1-22

PTTTF Recommendation - Winter Parking Ban 2-1-2022

This meeting was held remotely via Zoom.
Vice Chair Anne Landry called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm.

SB Liaison & Town Manager Reports:

Mark Dockser stated that the Reading Center for Active Living Committee (ReCalc) has been
meeting every couple of weeks. The last meeting was a joint meeting with the Council on
Aging and they were able to provide feedback on the needs of a Senior Center/Community
Center. The COA will discuss further at their next meeting and bring their comments back
to ReCalc. There is also an open seat on ReCalc. A consultant was hired that will reach out
to the community and get feedback in time for April Town Meeting.

Mr. Dockser also attended the Commissioner of Trust Funds meeting and noted that due to
COVID, some funds that typically get spent were not, so there are slightly larger balances.

127



Chris Haley attended the School Committee last week where they voted to approve a
ggered stageerng-plan for full day kindergarten, reducing the resident fees in 2023,
24, and 2025.

Mr. Haley announced that there is a virtual public forum of the PARC Committee tomorrow
evening where they will discuss on street parking regulations, parking kiosks, and parking
garage.

Carlo Bacci stated that he received a request from the Recreation Committee to be on the
Board’s next agenda to request temporary lights at Coolidge Middle School fields, as Turf 1
at the High School will be offline while it is replaced.

Mr. Bacci also attended the recent CPDC meeting. A highlight has been the Chute Street
Last Corner/Green Tomato building, and CPDC still wants it scaled down.

Mr. Bacci was involved in the interview committee for the Director of Equity and Inclusion.
The committee narrowed its recommendation to two candidates, and the decision is now in
the hands of Library Director Amy Lannon.

Anne Landry stated that the ad hoc Town Manager Search Committee met to approve
outstanding minutes and voted to recommend that the Select Board dissolve the screening
committee at its discretion.

Town Manager Bob LelLacheur began with a statement he was asked to share by Town
Counsel: “A request for the July 12 and the August 10 Executive Session Minutes had been
filed under the Public Records Law with the Town Clerk, and we reviewed the minutes and
determined that they were not ripe for release. The Town Clerk received a request for the
January 18 Executive Session Minutes, as well. Given that the minutes were not final, we
determined the notes, to the extent they existed, were also not ripe for release.”

Mr. LeLacheur highlighted a few other events. A COVID vaccine clinic will be hosted at the
Pleasant Street Center on February 3. Thank you to DPW and Facilities for their work to
clean up after the winter storm this past weekend.

Mr. LeLacheur also announced that he will be retiring. When he announced he was leaving,
he wanted to give the community the opportunity to find his successor. But filing for
retirement is not reversible, and he stated that he was willing to stay on until the
community could find a new Town Manager if they did not find one in time. But because it
is clear that Mr. Maltez is hitting the ground running, it was safe for him to file for
retirement.

Public Comment:

Jeanne Borawskl of Johnson Woods Drive, spoke as member of the public She addressed a
comment made at the Select Board meeting on January 18, 2022 that the decision of the
Finance Gommittee to create an ARPA Subcommittee was done inoa rushed manner angd
withowt consultation with the Select Board.  She noted that the Finance Gommittes has
worked carefully and dillgently for the last five months and attempted to collaborate with
the Select Board Including the Financial Forum back in Qctober where feedback was solicited
from the attendees,

i,

il
R

il Tl by J ol s g e, o g Lo e il
PP Sy L7 c e A e L R i R AR f
PRSI PR WY TR Y Pt AT T B Pdaes I g e,
el g " PP A P TS

33

e e o ke
COFRFREAY

Jeli o e
(AlE=1

G

128



Consent Agenda:
Vote to Appoint Town Accountant to a term July 2022 to June 2023:

Mark Dockser moved to appoint Sharon Angstrom as Town Accountant for a term
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. Motion seconded by Chris Haley and
approved 4-0 by unanimous roll call vote.

Town Accountant Quarterly Update:
Town Accountant Sharon Angstrom thanked the Board for their support, and thanked Mr.
LeLacheur for his leadership.

She began her update with a review of Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) and
compared Reading’s contributions with 23 peer communities. Reading’s total liability is $73
million, and has funded 8.3% so far, leaving a $67 million net liability. The plan is once the
pension is fully funded, the funds will be redirected to OPEB. Auditors have praised Reading
for its proactive OPEB contributions, as other municipalities have not even begun to fund it.
When compared to peer communities, Reading ranked 8t in funding contributions. Ms.
Angstrom was asked to find out where Reading ranked in the state.

Revenue and expenses compared to this time last year are well in line to meet projections.
Though slightly lower than last year, Ms. Angstrom stated that she is not concerned about
any revenue deficits.

Ms. Angstrom then reviewed her memo that outlined some items she wanted to address
with the Board. The first item is a request for an allocation of ARPA funds. The Health
Department is looking to do a distribution for COVID home testing kits. CARES funding
ended October 315, and the assumption was that ARPA funds would be used to cover
COVID related expenses. She requested a transfer of $250,000, which includes $80,000 for
home test kits, to spend on Public Health and mitigation efforts in the interim until the
Board can have meetings to discuss how to spend the ARPA funds.

She reminded the Board that the water tank BAN that was issued will be coming due in
December. The Town Treasurer will need to know by September whether ARPA funds will
be used, and if not, will need at least three months to arrange borrowing.

el e e gz e
el R e ey e
ee-prarkhs
T o . J I Ak A p B . J; Led....) I Joe ot ).
s Gt fret-yrbretier-they-wark-to-pursue-Bu-it-werld-be-helpfol
Jod b, J, s ), ke, LY e T . i s b ]y ] e e el o Flhmlidl, JiL fotin o oy
ke etee-by-tarabed -gemahe-sarr-iretee-H-He-Eeeavere-Me e g e e

Ms. Angstrom explained that the Town Charter permits the Select Board to provide termination
pay to the outgoing Town Manager, The precedent for the previous Town Manager was three
months severance pay, She shared that while it is within the Board's discretion to provide the
additional pay, it would be helpful to know what they decide by March 15t so she can include it

She also noted that in the ARPA final rules, under loss of revenue, the standard allowance is
$10 million, or a calculation. She performed the calculations and still came up with more
than the Town has been awarded, which means the whole grant can be used as loss of
revenue, which provides a lot more flexibility in how the grant is used.

Karen Herrick joined the meeting at 7:54 pm.

Commented [L)1]: Karen's suggested edit to “may be”
entitled

‘| Formatted: Highlight

[Formatted: Highlight
( Formatted: Highlight

129



Discuss/vote to allocate approximately $80k of the local and county ARPA Grant
funds to the purchase of COVID test kits:

Mark Dockser werke e
the cost of COVID-19 test kits. Motion seconded by Karen Herrick.

Mr. Dockser noted that a big purpose of ARPA funds is to take care of emergency
needs and that it makes sense to increase the number and moved to make an
amendment to raise the amount to $500,000. Mr. Bacci agreed a higher amount is
warranted, but not more than $250,000 at this time. Ms. Herrick seconded the motion
to amend. Mr. Haley agreed that $250,000 sounded right to him. Mr. Dockser noted that
he would be comfortable with $250,000. Ms. Landry offered a friendly amendment to
change $500,000 to $250,000. Motion to amend approved 5-0 by unanimous roll
call vote.

The motion to approve allocating ARPA funds towards the cost of COVID-19 test
kits and Public Health mitigation was approved as amended by unanimous roll call
vote of 5-0.

Vice Chair Anne Landry turned the gavel over to Chair Karen Herrick at 8:06 pm.

Review and Vote to Amend Select Board Policy Section 1.3.3 Process for
Evaluating the Town Manager and Section 6.2 Evaluation of the Town Manager:
Town Counsel Ivria Fried reviewed proposed changes to Select Board policy for the Town
Manager review. The two things of note include Town Manager goal setting and making the
review practices of the policy more consistent with the new Town Manager’s contract. The
language of the contract gives the Board the flexibility on when the review would happen.
The Board discussed the timeframe of setting the Town Manager’s goals and agreed that 60
days would be a fair amount of time.

Mark Dockser voted to amend Select Board Policy Section 1.3.3 Process for
Evaluating the Town Manager and Section 6.2 Evaluation of the Town Manager as
presented by Ms. Fried. Motion seconded by Chris Haley and approved 5-0 by
unanimous roll call vote.

Discuss /vote creation of Ad Hoc ARPA Advisory Committee and committee
charge:

Ms. Herrick addressed a misunderstanding in the public regarding the planning process of
the proposed #kis-committee. She reviewed the discussions held at Financial Forums and at
inance Committee meetings_gf Nov and Recember 2021, and the steps taken to this point.
She thanked the Finance Gommittee for all_of their planning efforts and their collaboration
to date.  She then presented the draft of the charge for discussion based on the minutes of
the Lo/20/2021 Financial Forum. and the successful format of the Ad Hoc Town Manager
Screening Committee and a template from Lexington. She noted that the charge presented
had been reviewed by Town Gounsel.Ske-Hrern-presepted-the-draf-of-the-charge-for
ehiseusster:

Mr. Dockser reviewed some advisory structures of other communities. He suggested the
Board think about how to allocate the funds, and get input from other boards and residents.
The structure should be advisory to the Select Board, comprised of the elected boards, and
be seven members: two from the Select Board, two from the School Committee, two from
the Finance Committee, one from the Library Trustees, as well as guidance from town staff.

The Board reviewed the proposed charge and had a lengthy discussion on the structure, and

the number of representatives from each participating board/committee.

130



Mr. Bacci moved to amend the charge for ARPA to eight members: three from Finance
Committee, two from School Committee, two from Select Board, and one from Library
Trustees. Motion seconded by Chris Haley. Anne Landry offered a friendly amendment to
name members who were already appointed ex-officio, with the one Library Trustee to be
appointed.

Further discussion proceeded with whether to name the individuals already appointed to the
Finance Committee ARPA Subcommittee by the other Boards. But ultimately it was decided
that names would limit the flexibility to have other members of those Boards fill in should
roles change. Ms. Herrick moved to amend to remove the names from the charge. Ms.
Landry withdrew her friendly amendment to list the names. The Board voted 3-2 to
amend the number of members to eight, with Mr. Haley, Mr. Bacci, and Ms. Landry
in favor, and Mr. Dockser and Ms. Herrick opposed.

The Board discussed further amendments including: administrative support provided by
Town Hall staff, and removing “a list of” from the Deliverable section.

Mark Dockser moved to create the Reading ARPA Advisory Committee (RAAC) as
amended in the committee charge document circulated at this evening’s meeting.
Motion seconded by Carlo Bacci and approved 5-0 by unanimous roll call vote.

Discuss/vote to appoint ex-officio and staff members to the Ad Hoc ARPA Advisory
Committee:

Ms. Herrick asked members who would like to work with the RAAC. Mr. Dockser and Mr.
Haley raised their hands and Ms. Herrick asked them to share why they wanted to be
appointed.

Mr. Dockser stated that he has been on the Select Board for three years and is very
interested in how we are thinking about capital and using funds. He also has background of
being involved in the Town including on the Finance Committee.

Mr. Haley stated that he felt he could bring fresh ideas and a new perspective, and would
like to explore spending some on solar at the schools, while offsetting electrical budgets,
and reinvesting that money into teacher pay and full day kindergarten.

Mark Dockser moved to appoint Mark Dockser and Chris Haley as Select Board Ex-
Officio members of the Reading ARPA Advisory Committee. Motion seconded by
Carlo Bacci and approved 5-0 by unanimous roll call vote.

Discuss recent land purchases and any other town-owned large buildable parcels
(Oakland Road, Symonds Way, other):

Mr. LeLacheur reviewed work done by a previous Select Board subcommittee that collected
data on all Town-owned parcels. He noted it would be best if the whole Board could discuss
what they want together instead of a subgroup. The Board could consider the needs the
Town has for land, and the amount and what types of land that the Town owns.

The Board briefly discussed the Oakland Road and Symonds Way parcels, and possible
needs including: RMLD potential relocation, Veterans housing, and recreation center.

Board members agreed to continue the discussion with the incoming Town Manager and
make it a future agenda item.

Update on Lot #5 access to Town Forest:

131



Mr. Dockser stated that he met with the Conservation Administrator and the Chairs of the
Conservation Commission, Town Forest Committee, and Trails Committee. The group
discussed and came to a consensus on the best approach for access to the Town Forest via
lot #5. They would like a 10-foot wide trail easement on the edge of Meadowbrook
property to access an existing path in the Town Forest. Access to Town Forest via town-
owned land in this area is not currently possible due to #-gas-tpe-wrderap-area-that-is
stprrerged-tpder-a-year-retre-perdthe access requiring crossing of a vear-round 100-foot
long pond.

Mr. Dockser noted key changes and benefits, and outlined the next steps including: the
Board will need to designate someone to work with Town Counsel and staff to speak with
Meadowbrook and request the easement; a survey will need to be done in order to setup a

f handicapped accessibility resulted in a suggestion to create +and-eiaewss
eraating-an accessible area and part of a trail from Wood End to the Town Forest,
good opportunity to consider rather than deing this from lot #5.

Board members offered support to Mr. Dockser to continue with the next steps.

Discuss/Vote on Overnight Parking Ban:

The Parking Traffic Transportation Task Force provided a write up of the overnight parking
issues. They recommended continuing the enforcement of no on-street parking between
1:00 am and 6:00 am, but in response to recent requests for overnight parking, they
proposed a pilot program allowing overnight parking in the 35 spots of the Lincoln Street
parking lot. Cars will still need to be moved by 6:00 am. Board members were in favor of
trying out the program.

Deputy Police Chief Christine Amendola noted issues with downtown being built up, and
even with the parking ban in effect, many residents are not moving their cars in the
morning.

Assistant Town Manager Jean Delios also noted that she is working with the MBTA to see if
they will allow overnight parking in the lots they own.

Mark Dockser voted to recommend the changes for the overnight parking ban as
proposed, and to hold a Public Hearing on February 15, 2022 at 7:45 pm to finalize
changes. Motion seconded by Chris Haley and approved 5-0 by unanimous roll call
vote.

Discuss Future Agendas:
Ms. Herrick recommended adding a Public Hearing for overnight parking, and an in depth
status update on the Zanni property to include Town Counsel.

Mr. Bacci requested an item for the Recreation Commission to request temporary lights at
Coolidge while Turf 1 at the High School is replaced.

Mr. Haley requested a discussion on the parting salary severance for the Town Manager.
Ms. Herrick suggested including Town Counsel for that conversation.

Mr. Dockser requested to add VASC to the next agenda.

Approve Meeting Minutes:
The Board reviewed suggested changes submitted by Ms. Herrick.

132



Mark Dockser moved to approve the meeting minutes of January 18, 2022 as
amended. Motion seconded by Karen Herrick and approved 5-0 by unanimous roll
call vote.

Mark Dockser moved to adjourn at 10:23 pm. Motion seconded by Karen Herrick
and approved 5-0 by unanimous roll call vote.

133



Select Board Meeting February 15, 2022 7:00 pm
Town Hall Select Board Meeting Room

Members Present: Chair Karen Herrick, Vice Chair Anne Landry, Secretary Mark Dockser, Carlo Bacci,
Chris Haley

Others present: Bob LeLacheur, Fidel Maltez, Jean Delios (remote), Sean Donahue (remote), Sharon
Angstrom (remote), Jane Kinsella (remote), Chris Cole (remote), Jenna Fiorente (remote), Christine
Amendola (remote), Jacquelyn LaVerde (remote), Brian McGrail (remote), Ron Rice (remote), Bob Hayes,
Jackie McCarthy, Bruce McKenzie (remote), Naomi Kaufman (remote), Lisa Egan, Karen Pinette (remote),
Ed Ross (remote), Emily Sisson (remote), Tony D’Arezzo (remote), Dave Pinette (remote)

Documents Used:

Winterfest

Liquor Plan Winterfest 2022

Town Insurance Recommendations

Permit

2022-02-10 VASC Packet

Sturges Proposed Score Board Final

Sturges Scoreboard Con Comm Permit

2022-02-15 PTTTF Hearing Notice

Traffic Amendment 2022-01

220135 Reading Select Bd Meadow Brook Golf Club

FW Payment Receipt

Meadowbrook Change of Location ABCC Application

Human Resources Update to Select Board 2.15.22

2022 TM Annual Warrant DRAFT-5
DSGDBylaw_TrackChanges_HolisticWaiver-Based 2-8-22 forDHCD
FY23 WS Rates Overview

WS Rates History

202220115 FY22 Goals

TM Transition Calendar of Important Dates (January through June)
2022-02-01 Select Board Minutes DRAFT - Simple- ajl & kh

Chair Karen Herrick called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and reviewed the evening’s agenda.

Board's expressions of gratitude to Bob LeLacheur:

As this is the last meeting Bob LeLacheur will be attending as Town Manager, Ms. Herrick presented a
plague to honor him and the past and future Town Managers. Each Board Member expressed their
sentiments and well wishes for Mr. LeLacheur. Mr. LelLacheur reflected on his history with the Town
starting as a volunteer, then coming up through the ranks to become Town Manager. He then thanked

134



everyone and noted that it has been remarkable how many people throughout the Town have thanked
him.

Public Comment:

Lisa Egan, Executive Director of the Reading North Reading Chamber of Commerce, previewed the
Winterfest event the Chamber is planning for Thursday, March 10",

SB Liaison & Town Manager Reports:

Carlo Bacci reviewed highlights from the last CPDC meeting. The CPDC is still hearing plans for the
Green Tomato building on Chute Street, and requested a smaller building, more open space, and to
redefine that corner. There is a new salon on Haven Street, a new sign was approved for Metro Credit
Union, and they are reviewing a sign for Postmark Square.

He also noted that the Board of Health lifted the mask mandate at their meeting last week, and he and
Mr. Dockser held a Volunteer Appointment Subcommittee (VASC) meeting.

Chris Haley stated that the Parking Advisory and Recommendations Committee (PARC) held a
community forum, where a lot of feedback was received and discussed at their last meeting. The PARC
took into consideration changing Sanborn Street parking regulations to resident only, and modifying
kiosk pricing for anything over four hours. A future agenda topic will be requested to extend the sunset
date of the PARC to April 30,

Mr. Haley also noted he attended the 10" Annual Winter Walk with the Trails Committee.

Mark Dockser noted that the Council on Aging met with the Reading Center for Active Living Committee
(ReCalc). The COA will conduct outreach in the community to see what their needs are and what can be
done in the short term. The ReCalc wants to understand from the Council what seniors’ needs are and
what a new Senior Center might look like.

Karen Herrick stated that Conservation Commission approved the plan for a Community Garden.

Town Manager Bob LeLacheur reviewed the proposed FY23 new budget line item called Select Board
Reserve Fund. The line item has $15,000 for the Board to distribute to volunteer Boards and
Committees for smaller requests throughout the year.

He also noted that yesterday was the first day for new Town Manager, Fidel Maltez.

Consent Agenda: Vote to appoint members to Volunteer Boards/Committees:

Mark Dockser moved to appoint:

Nora Bucko as a full member to the ad hoc Reading Center for Active Living (sunsets 11/30/2022),
Stephen Theodoridis as a full member to the Cultural Council with a term expiring on June 30, 2024,
and

135



Jean-Paul Plouffe as an Associate member to the Board of Assessors with a term expiring on June 30,
2023. The motion was seconded by Karen Herrick. At the request of Ms. Landry, Mr. Dockser
explained that he and Mr. Bacci recommended Ms. Bucko for ReCalc because she was a strong
candidate, involved in the community, and is already attending ReCalc meetings. He also briefly
reviewed the backgrounds of the other recommended appointees. The motion was approved 5-0 by
unanimous roll call vote.

Vote to Accept Gift for Sturges Park from Reading Girls Softball:
Bob Hayes, who recently stepped down as Reading Softball Little League (RSLL) President, presented the

donation of a scoreboard sign to be located in right field near the skating rink. The RSLL is shouldering
100% of the project cost as a gift to the Town. The RSLL worked with the Parks and Forestry division,
Conservation, and the Recreation Committee. Jenna Fiorente, Recreation Administrator, stated that she
sent a notice to abutters within a 150-foot radius of Sturges Park. She received one phone call from a
neighbor with concerns about the location, but she went over it with the resident who was fine with the
explanation. Mr. Hayes also noted that they filed for a permit from the Conservation Commission.

Mark Dockser moved to accept the gift for Sturgis Park from Reading Girls Softball as presented, from
a grateful Select Board. The motion was seconded by Carlo Bacci and approved 5-0 by unanimous roll

call vote.

Public Hearing: Amend Downtown Parking:

Mr. LeLacheur reviewed the discussion from the last meeting for a pilot plan for overnight parking, that
needed to be followed up with a Public Hearing. The Board reviewed the amendment that allows
overnight parking in the Train Depot lot on Lincoln Street. Deputy Police Chief Christine Amendola
explained that only a resident sticker is needed to park in the lot. If there is snow, cars need to be
moved from 6:00 am to 9:00 am to allow DPW to clean the lot.

Tony D’Arezzo asked what the parking requirements are at The Met, whether those residents are paying
for parking there, and whether they could use this lot instead of paying for parking at The Met. Deputy
Chief Amendola stated that she believes the residents of the building get one spot each and are eligible
to purchase resident parking permits.

Mark Dockser moved to close the Public Hearing. Motion seconded by Carlo Bacci and approved by 5-
0 unanimous roll call vote.

Mark Dockser moved to approve Traffic Amendment 2022-01 as presented. Motion seconded by
Karen Herrick and approved 5-0 by unanimous roll call vote.

Public Hearing: Meadow Brook - Relocate All Alcohol Liguor License:
The Clubhouse at Meadow Brook Golf Club burned down twice. The clubhouse has been rebuilt, and

the application is to move the location of the liquor license back inside the clubhouse from the
temporary tent outside around April 1°%, The Select Board received an email from an abutter asking for

136



consistency with the limited operating hours as approved by the CPDC. Attorney Brian McGrail was
present with Club Manager Ron Rice. He thanked the Board, the Fire Department and Inspectional
Services for their kind comments and support, and reviewed the request for the transfer and the site
approval plan to be referenced as part of the motion.

Mark Dockser moved to close the Public Hearing. Motion seconded by Carlo Bacci and approved 5-0
by unanimous roll call vote.

Mark Dockser moved to approve the application of Meadow Brook Golf Club Corp. of Reading
Massachusetts to relocate the all-alcohol license to the newly constructed clubhouse on the premises
with an address of 292 Grove Street, Reading, Massachusetts with the current approved hours during
which alcoholic beverages may be sold, which are from 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. except on Sundays and
legal holidays when the hours shall be 12:00 noon to 1:00 a.m. and also be subject, however, to any
terms and conditions of the CPDC Site Plan Review Approval Decision dated November 7, 2018, as
modified on September 23, 2020. The motion was seconded by Carlo Bacci and approved 5-0 by
unanimous roll call vote.

Discuss Draft Changes to SB Policies: Article 6 Personnel Related Policies:

Human Resources Director Sean Donahue shared a very high-level overview of personnel policy updates
made by the staff committee. The Personnel Policies have not been updated since 2009. Some of the
topics addressed include: the “Reading Rebound” for employees who leave and return within six
months, , EEO statement, ADA language, anti-harassment language, Workers Compensation procedures,
diverse interview process, technology and equipment expectations of use, remote work, language
updated to accommodate the four-day work week, family sick time usage, floating holiday (personal)
time, vacation time, compensatory time, FMLA, service credit. Other items that will be considered
further include: tuition payment/reimbursement, deferred compensation contributions, employee
recognition, and incentive for limited sick time use. The next steps are to meet with Mr. Maltez to
review the changes, make the final edits and have Labor Counsel review, then bring the policy back to
the Select Board for implementation in the near future.

Ms. Herrick noted the plan to conduct an pay and class study, and asked if there would be an employee
survey. Mr. Donahue explained that the pay and class study is currently out to bid, and will compare
similar jobs with peer communities. The Personnel Policies Committee had a lot of representation, and
surveyed within the organization as best they could.

Preview Warrant for Annual Town Meeting:

Mr. LeLacheur previewed the 19 articles for April’s Annual Town Meeting and noted that there could be
another one to three articles possible. Over the weekend there was legislation passed to allow remote
Town Meetings through September. However, the Town Moderator seemed to want to return to in-
person, though he might like written reports going forward.

137



Possible articles forthcoming include: a resident petition to honor his wife with a trust fund, a request
from a PARC member to ask the state to reverse the road diet, and a resident request for safe routes to
schools.

Preview Water/Sewer Storm Water Rates:
Mr. LeLacheur stated that the water department is chewing through reserves right now. Last July they

were at 5.5 million, but are currently projected at just over $3 million. At April Town Meeting there will
be a request to redirect $400,000 for Emerson Street to Walkers Brook water main work. Emerson
Street will instead go into the operating budget starting in July. To use water reserve rates will bring
reserves to a new low. There has been an effort to trim as much as possible to prevent a rate increase
too large. However, sewer rates can be lower. The Board could vote to use $650,000 of sewer reserves
and leave sewer rates unchanged. Board members briefly discussed possible use of ARPA funds, and
requesting earmarks from the state to help with the water projects.

Town Manager Goals update:
Mr. LeLacheur presented the goals as reviewed by the Board earlier this year and encouraged the Board

to discuss these and other goals with Mr. Maltez. Mr. Dockser suggested that Infrastructure move up in
the priority list, as the new Town Manager can offer some insight. Ms. Landry noted that Economic
Development expansion still seemed of strong interest to the Board. Mr. Maltez stated that he will take
the Board’s recommendations, and within his first 60 days, will bring them what he thinks are the goals
and put some timelines, deadlines, and metrics into them, then proceed from there.

Discuss Town Manager Transition:

New Town Manager Fidel Maltez stated that Mr. LeLacheur is completing the budget document to hand
off to him. The highest priorities right now are the Town Meeting Warrant, Finance Committee in
March, and Town Meeting in April. Mr. LeLacheur and Mr. Maltez are sitting next to each other and
communicating throughout the day. Mr. LeLacheur has shared past Town Meeting files as a guide.
Assistant Town Manager Jean Delios prepared a calendar of things to expect. Mr. LeLacheur and Mr.
Maltez will be meeting with Town Moderator Alan Foulds tomorrow.

Discuss Future Agendas:
Karen Herrick stated that the Trails Committee wants to swap out a member and the VASC may need to

meet again. The Community Garden group could be ready to present their updates by March 1%,
Mark Dockser requested a ReCalc update on March 22",

Karen Herrick suggested review of the Capital Plan, and requested that Select Board be posted to attend
the upcoming Finance Committee budget meetings in March.

Anne Landry noted that the Director of Equity and Inclusion has been hired at the Library, though is
starting in March. If they start by March 22", they can come by and introduce themselves.

138



Carlo Bacci and Mark Dockser added a discussion on the process, needs, priorities, and land use.
Karen Herrick suggested a “Lunch and Learn” tour of RMLD.
Carlo Bacci requested to add a discussion and vote on Town Manager termination pay.

Chris Haley requested adding PARC getting extended to April 30'". He and Karen Herrick also agreed to
add discussing appropriate contacts for major Board and Committee members.

Approve Meeting Minutes:

The Board reviewed suggested changes to the draft of the February 1, 2022 meeting minutes. They
inquired about the wording from the Town Accountant’s report that read that the Town Manager “is
entitled to” termination pay, whereas the Charter reads “may receive termination pay”. The Board
instructed Ms. LaVerde to review the video to confirm what Ms. Angstrom actually said, then confirm
with Town Counsel how to document in the minutes if what was said conflicts with the Charter.

Executive Session: Vote to Approve Collective Bargaining Agreements (Public Employees
Committee/Health Insurance; International Association of Firefighters AFL-CIO, Local 1640; Public
Works - AFSCME Council 93, Local 1703; Reading Patrol Officers Association - Mass Cop, Local 191A,
AFL-CIO; Reading Police Supervisory Officers Association - IBPO; Reading Public Safety Dispatchers -
Mass Cop, Local 191A, AFL-CIO; Reading Facilities Maintenance Workers and Town Custodians -
AFSCME Council 93, Local 1703; Public Works Supervisory Union, AFSCME Council 93, Local 1703; DPW
Engineers, AFSCME Council 93, Local 1702, Sub local 038):

Mark Dockser moved that the board go into Executive Session, including staff members Bob

LeLacheur, Fidel Maltez and Jackie LaVerde, under Purpose 2 and Purpose 3, to discuss strategy with
respect to collective bargaining with and approve contracts for the following unions:

o Public Employees Committee/Health Insurance;
International Association of Firefighters AFL-CIO, Local 1640;
Public Works - AFSCME Council 93, Local 1703;
Reading Patrol Officers Association - Mass Cop, Local 191A, AFL-CIO;
Reading Police Supervisory Officers Association - IBPO;
Reading Public Safety Dispatchers - Mass Cop, Local 191A, AFL-CIO;
Reading Facilities Maintenance Workers and Town Custodians - AFSCME Council 93,
Local 1703; and
o the Public Works Supervisory Union, AFSCME Council 93, Local 1703.
and further the Chair declares that an open meeting could have a detrimental effect on the bargaining

0O O O O O O

position of the body; and the board will NOT reconvene in open session. The motion was seconded by
Karen Herrick and approved by 5-0 unanimous roll call vote. Select Board entered Executive Session
at 10:21 pm.

139



